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Financial Highlights
BB HE

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
ETRHMBRA

RMB million A R# & E T
2019 ) o %
|

I%\?ﬁénue (%) .
t-- 1,639.3
----- N e

- = — Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

KD EHEE AL ERRR
74.3/167.9 Sl
|

r = & S o, go%fg%ﬁ‘he Year
%\ _- 2 487/613

For the year ended 31 December

BE+TZA=t—-HLFE

2019 2019 2018

—E-NF —E-hEF —E-N\F

YoY Change RMB’000 RMB’000

R ARET T ARBTT

Revenue W #5 +19.3% 1,955,525 1,639,287

Gross profit EA +8.5% 389,419 358,904

Gross profit margin EAE -2.0b.p. 19.9% 21.9%

Profit before taxation B %3¢ B i A -47.0% 117,485 221,754

Adjusted EBITDA* 4% 8 EE EBITDA? +12.8% 289,180 256,336

Profit for the year affributable to owners of KRR & HEA A

the Company J& {5 £ A& T -55.8% 74,264 167,943

Earnings per share — basic BRAF| —HRK -55.8% 22.2 50.2

Final dividend (RMB cents) REEB (ARED) -100% - 16.0

Total assets EE +17.3% 2,583,161 2,203,052

Total liabilities mEeE +62.3% 1,125,603 693,578

Equity atiributable to owners of the ZAN/NEIEZ RSN

Company FE{h iR 1.6% 1,356,425 1,378,937

Net gearing ratio FEERMEE N/ATT 3 A 14.8% -
# Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before accounting for bank and other interest income, ~ * 4 T FEEBITDA ABR R 1T R A Ab A S UL A -
finance costs, taxes, depreciation and amortisation, fair value gain and investment BB BIE - EREHE - DTEK
income from financial assets at FVTPL, net exchange gain and impairment loss on ARBEATEF AR EREAERERK
goodwill. A BRI TR R EREE BN RF
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Financial Highlights
B BE

PATIENT VISITS REVENUE PROPORTION BY
mAAR MAJOR HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES*
Thousand Visits F A X FERZURSS{IGEE*
+
No. of @ o
inpatient
ER AR & 2019
" 2019 75.6
I 2018 66.4
i 61 No. of i Neurology related disciplines
':D:' surgeries ! HEBENEHENE
~®\ %) AN — ] @
o (22 FiTE
o o _ __ | 2019 261 orﬂjopaec!ics related disciplines
No. of — Ao BREENE
outpatient o
FIZ AR
2019 1,753.3 Internal medicine related disciplines
2018 1,650.6 AREERE
2017 1,542.5
|
! Cardiovascular related disciplines
i LMEEENE
+ | 3¢
O&G related disciplines
REVENUE YOY GROWTH OF MAJOR HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES* et
FEMEFAWRSZELLEAE
Paediatrics related disciplines
REBSEENE
0,
31.4% 37.6% o
. o Paediatrics related disciplines General surgery related disciplines
Cardiovascular related disciplines REBEEHEMNE LEIREEANE

DIERERNE

Emergency medicine related disciplines
SREBRE

? 4.2%
42 .8 /o ]8 2% O&G related disciplines

Oncology related disciplines REPIBRIFZ
EEEENE Nefrology related d|$C|pI|nes
&L

Other disciplines
HAtiR =

12.2% |

General surgery related disciplines

TR BN E

19.4%

Internal medicine related disciplines

ARBERENE

* The amount does not include revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services, hospital management services, sale of pharmaceutical products and others.

*ZER T REREREREMERERY - BRrERRE RS ER RG] EMD -
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

TTHABRRE

The Chief Executive
Officer’s Statement

TTHURE RS

Looking forward, the Group will
capitalise on the development
opportunity of the Greater Bay Area to
expand the businesses and investments
of the Group and further strengthen
the current development of healthcare
companies. At the same time, the Group
will also create social values, stabilise
the growth of the Group and accelerate
the expansion of its healthcare
networks.

BEAN AREBEEALENE
BRBEAAEEEENNEH L
BE SRR ERRREEE -
R AEE NGRS B - R
R SR B IR B AR P R -
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

THBARRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Company, | sincerely express my gratitude to all Shareholders
and other stakeholders from different parts of the community for your continuous
support to the Group. In 2009, China launched a major medical and healthcare
system reform and pledged to provide all nationals with equal access to basic
medical and healthcare with reasonable quality and financial risk protection.
For the past 10 years, China has made substantial progress in improving equal
access to medical and healthcare services and enhancing financial protection,
especially for people with a lower socio-economic status. In 2019, the China’s
healthcare industry actively implemented the Healthy China 2030 Strategy
and promoted high-quality medical services development in every aspect
of the medical and healthcare system reform. The operating conditions and
core business income for private medical institutions are clearly improving
and maintaining a solid and stable growth. With a continuous growth trend,
private medical institutions today hold an important position in the domestic
medical market. With the support from the local government at the policy level,
private medical institutions will play an even more important role in the Chinese
healthcare industry.

BURR -

$AER%$ A RO FT A A% R K it
EREMAFZHBATHAEENHE
ﬁ%o—ffhi PRI E BB RS
BANE %mAA;ﬁE@L%mﬁK
BEERS -BETFE PREXS
ZEE mi%ﬁ&ﬁﬁW%%hﬁﬁm
Hixﬁ@ tﬁ%ﬁﬁA% BmE -
—NF - HPEE ?ﬁ%fLAm&§$
lmwﬂwy BEGLERANNEEAME
HEERESLEERE - L2BHEHRBNL
BRI R ETEE %WA%@&* T E2EE
RS - &8 Lﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁi‘@%’ﬂi FEEE
BERSERENEENSEE—E2it - &
&mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%FEM§ﬁ IR 3
BEEPREETEREASETENER -

—

EREEBRERNABR AR F5H 2019
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
THERRE

In 2019, the Group focused on consolidating and strengthening the operating
capabilities and service offerings in our existing medical facilities, including
Kanghua Hospital, Renkang Hospital, Kangxin Hospital and our rehabilitation
healthcare services centres and hospitals. In terms of hospital services, in 2019,
Kanghua Hospital, through improvement of the system, talent acquisition and
training, and optimisation of the medical insurance management, our medical
quality and service management system has been further enhanced, leading
to an overall decreasing trend in cost incurred per patient visit. Kanghua
Hospital also infroduced a number of online services and payment platforms
to enhance patients’ consultation experience and we believe that it will be one
of our major operation development strategies in the years ahead. During the
year, Kanghua Hospital achieved a number of recognition and awards at the
National level, which further enhanced our brand and reputation, including its
ranking as the third place nationwide among the “Top 100 Private Hospitals of
2019 in the PRC", the “Top 30 Listed Healthcare Services Companies in the PRC",
the “Top 80 Hospitals in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Ared”,
the “Top 100 Most Competitive Non-Governmental Hospital Group”, the “Top 100
Most Competitive Non-Governmental Hospital” and the “2018 Best Employer of
Healthcare Companies in the PRC".

In 2019, our hospital services segment had solid operations and recorded good
operating performance, including 75,568 inpatient visits with a year-on-year
increase of 13.8%, 1,753,320 outpatient visits with a year-on-year increase of
6.2% and 46,056 surgical operations with a year-on-year increase of 12.2%.
Our cardiovascular related disciplines, emergency medicine related disciplines,
paediatrics related disciplines and oncology related disciplines, have all recorded
more than 30% growth in revenue as compared with the prior year.

With respect to the development of rehabilitation services, the Anhui Hualin
Group is engaged in the provision of rehabilitation services, vocational training,
investments in medical projects, management arrangements and healthcare
information consultation for the disabled in Anhui Province. In 2019, Anhui Hualin
Group recorded RMB87.1 million in revenue and received 45,646 outpatient
visits and 4,561 inpatient visits. In 2019, the Anhui Hualin Group successfully won
the bids of two rehabilitation centre projects: the Changfeng County Beicheng
Rehabilitation Centre and the Feixi County Kanghua Children’s Rehabilitation
Centre. One of the major hospitals of the Anhui Hualin Group is the Hefei
Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital, a rehabilitation specialty hospital aiming to
become a class lil rehabilitation hospital in the long term, also entered into the
formal operation stage from the trial operation stage. By creating a customisable
management protocol, actively exploring and maintaining referral channels,
as well as establishing rehabilitation specialties, the Group has successfully
established the Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital brand image in the local
area.

—_—
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

With the improved service quality and solidification of the Group’s operation in
2019, the Group recorded revenue of RMB1,955.5 million with a year-on-year
increase of 19.3%. However, the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company in 2019 decreased by 55.8% to RMB74.3 million. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the loss incurred in relation to Kangxin Hospital, which
faced multiple challenges including huge burden on healthcare professional
headcounts, overhead expenditure and fixed costs. The hospital is still at the
stage of developing and promoting its brand and reputation in Chongging and
has continued to incur significant losses during its initial stage of ramping up
its operation. In addition, an impairment loss on goodwill in respect of the cash
generating unit of Kangxin Hospital of RMB60.0 million during the year was also
recognised. The Group’s Adjusted EBITDA (Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before
accounting for bank and other interest income, finance costs, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation, fair value gain and investment income from financial assets
at FVTPL, exchange gain/loss and impairment loss on goodwill) has recorded a
year-on-year increase of 12.8% to RMB289.2 million, based on which the Board
believes that the Group’s core operations remains strong after eliminating the
effects of financing, investment-related income, effects of exchange rates, capital
expenditures and extraordinary non-cash related losses.

In 2019, by closely following the trend of healthcare reform policies, the Group
actively promoted the establishment of medical association and deepened the
layout strategy of its medical network through constantly consolidating the quality
of its own medical services. In the future, the Group believes that under the
relevant support policies, the Group will further optimise its medical management
system, focus on the development of key and characteristic specialties, develop
a comprehensive layout in the One Health industry and expand its industry
influence.

The China’s medical industry will witness significant advancement in the
coming years, including healthcare providers reforms with further penetration
of accessible and affordable hospital healthcare services to the public,
pharmaceutical reforms of essential drugs prices, medical insurance reforms
in improving the basic healthcare insurance system, and promotion of the
integration of internet and healthcare. During the year, the Group actively
responded to the policy requirements and continuously improved the
management and operation of its medical institutions.

In the beginning of 2020, an unexpected and unprecedented pandemic caused
by the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19°) has affected a wide range of industries
and sectors in the PRC and elsewhere, leading to a possible slowdown in global
economy. At present, the Group continuously monitors the latest development
and actively coordinates with local healthcare authorities and organisations, as
well as our stakeholders. The major epidemics in the past ten years (including
SARS) have been catalysts for reforms in the healthcare system and industry. With
the continuous support of the PRC government to the healthcare system and
industry in recent years, favourable policies may inspire progressive changes
in the healthcare system and industry in response to the impact of COVID-19,
such as accelerated development and application of internet medical services,
integration of the Chinese and Western Medicine, and promotion in vaccinations
and medical insurances. The Group intends to position itself to capture such
opportunities, while maintaining fast-paced expansion and delivery of high-
quality services.

THBARRE

%%_7 NFEAEERBESRA REK
ZE AEEEESREARELISHSHETT
REARLLIERI9I% - AT —E—NF
$QE%EA%E¢WEWH9%8%1A

RE74388 T - RO T ERARRLE

EEMERER  ZBmERE 2B ﬁ
EEEEEXAB A BEMFAXMEEKX
RENEERE ZERDENERNETH

REENREREENRE  BERRKES
MEADEEE S EARIBK - o FARITH
BEOBRBSESBEMNERHEREREBA
R¥60.0 B BT o ANE[E AY4E T Z EBITDA (4
%%wmmﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@ﬂg%k mE
RO  FiTE - rEREN  AFERERIE
NEEFABGNEBHEERERA - EX
Wiz EEEEEREBENNER) RF
STRILIER128%E AR 2892HE T ' &
It BE2eRE  NEENZOEBRER
mE WERBKRA  EXFE BRI H
REAREBRSHEEERDREES -

—T-NF ARERBERBRIA A
TEHEESBRERFEENER L - BHi%
HEB) BE R RS AV AR IR AR L B AR AR M P BRRS -
AW REEREERBRROKET -
E—FTELBEEEER FIZREHN
FEER - M&%%Eﬁ&%%ﬁ%%ﬁ@
e BEARITEREN

RREE  hENEFRTERNEEARE
BIEE %%ﬁﬁ1%&$&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ—i%
K (&1 Ko ] B HEH B8 *E%%%)@m&
B (PREREYER)  BERRNEE (5
EEEERBERRSGIE) & ie 55 EH
BEOBS -FA ASEREGERRRE
KU T =EHERRBNEIEREE

RZZE_ZFY BAHUTRESER
(fcoviD-19)) ATl FER BRIFTAB
MNEBEHPREREMBERBZITERI
PIsERk 2 - AIRL E B2 BREBE A - B AT -
AEFERBELLSHER  VEE BB
BRAEARF S EAEEETERGT - B
A+ EBRBEENEBZIBE (BIESARS) 5K
%%ﬁ%%&ﬁ%&imﬁmw P& & i 4F
FP B BT S B8 %&ﬁ%mﬁﬁih Y=
EﬁaMDwm 2 5 R BB AT RE Rk B
BEEBANITENTESS)  flunEBEE

BIRG TAREAUREESEHEENES

REMMEBRRELER AEEBEEYER
HERERIMEHEEREERENEE
BIEH o TUEfTERE

—

EREEBRERNABR AR F5H 2019

N————

9



The Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
ITBHEARRE

Looking ahead, the Group will further seize the opportunities brought by the
reform of China’s medical industry. The Group will accelerate the expansion
of its network, in particular, the Greater Bay Area, while ensuring the steady
development of its existing medical institutions. The Group will further consolidate
its leading position in the private healthcare industry in China and strive to
achieve excellent results and maximise return to Shareholders.

Chen Wangzhi
Chief Executive Officer

20 April 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Business Overview for 2019

In 2019, the Group’s consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019 has reached its record high to RMB1,955.5 million (2018: RMB1,639.3
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 19.3%, mainly attributable fo
the growth in the operations of Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital, which
are our owned-hospitals, delivering solid growth in revenue of 16.9% and 6.2%,
respectively. The business sentiment and overall economic environment in the
Dongguan region remained stable with steady growth in 2019. We continued
to step up our efforts in recruitment of experienced medical experts and
improvement of our medical capabilities and attracted a record high number of
inpatients and outpatients visits in 2019.

However, the Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
has decreased substantially by 69.8% to RMB48.7 million (2018: RMB161.3 million).
The decrease in profit is mainly atfributable fo: (i) the loss incurred in relation to
our specialty hospital in Chongqing, the PRC, namely, Kangxin Hospital which
was acquired by the Group in August 2018. Kangxin Hospital commenced
operation in March 2017 and 2019 was its third year of operation. Despite its
growth in revenue of 57.0% to RMB54.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (revenue of Kangxin Hospital for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB34.9 million), however, the hospital faced multiple challenges including huge
burden on healthcare professional headcounts, overhead expenditure and fixed
costs. The hospital is still af the stage of developing and promoting its brand and
reputation in Chongqging and has continued to incur significant losses during its
initial stage of ramping up its operation; and (i) the Group has recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill in respect of the cash generating unit of Kangxin
Hospital ("Kangxin Hospital CGU") arising from its acquisition in 2018. The Board
considers that the estimated medium-term future growth of Kangxin Hospital
was lower than previously anticipated, accordingly, the aggregate recoverable
amount of the Kangxin Hospital CGU is below its aggregate carrying amount,
which results in the recognition of an impairment loss of RMB60.0 million during
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

The Group's Adjusted EBITDA (Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before accounting
for bank and other interest income, finance costs, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, fair value gain and investment income from financial assets at
FVTPL, exchange gain/loss and impairment loss on goodwill) has recorded a
year-on-year increase of 12.8% to RMB289.2 million (2018: RMB256.3 million),
based on which the Board believes that the Group’s core operations have
remained strong after eliminating the effects of financing, investment-related
income, effects of exchange rates, capital expenditures and extraordinary non-
cash related losses.

Hospital Services

The Group’s owned hospitals, namely, Kanghua Hospital, Renkang Hospital and
Kangxin Hospital, have delivered promising operating results, in particular (i) the
total number of inpatient visits reached 75,568 (2018: 66,388), representing a
year-on-year increase of 13.8% ; (i) the overall average spending per inpatient
visit amounted to RMB15,031.1 (2018: RMB13,855.1), representing a year-on-
year increase of 8.5%; (iii) the overall bed utilisation rate increased slightly to
85.6% (2018: 85.1%), primarily caused by the improved utilisation at Kangxin
Hospital during the year; (iv) the average length of stay slightly decreased to 7.3
days (2018: 8.0 days); (v) the total number of outpatient visits reached 1,753,320
(2018: 1,650,592), representing a year-on-year increase of 6.2%; (vi) the overall
average spending per outpatient visit amounted to RMB347.8 (2018: RMB334.7),
representing a year-on-year increase of 3.9%; and (vii] the fotal number of
surgical operations reached 46,056 (2018: 41,045), representing a year-on-year
increase of 12.2%.

The table below sets forth certain key operation data of the Group’s owned
hospitals of the hospital services segment for the years indicated:

7N £ [E 59 45 3 X EBITDA (4% 3 2 EBITDA & &
ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁuéuﬁz)\ BERA - FIE I
ENES  ATFEKSEREAFERABR
NEMEERBWA - ELWSBENE
2R EEERINAEN) ZFAELLIER12.8%

EARKE292FEL(ZE—N\F: ARK
2563BEL) Bt EEERE AEEH

ML EBIOERRELE BB - [

Ry 8 EAXEREAFEAMEBRR
HRFFRS -

2 B R 7%
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-ALEE

Change 2019 2018
& —E-NF — )\
Inpatient healthcare services b B R R
Inpatient visits EB AR +13.8% 75,568 66,388
Average length of stay (days) FHERBH(CR) -07 7.3 8.0
Average spending per visit (RMB) BAXRFHRZ (ARET) +8.5% 15,031.1 13,855.1
Outpatient healthcare services P BRI
Outpatient visits P92 AR +6.2% 1,753,320 1,650,592
Average spending per visit (RMB) BAREHREZ (AR +3.9% 347.8 334.7
Physical examination services B AR TS
Physical examination visits B AR -15.3% 185,634 219,191
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFAREZ(ARET) +22.6% 552.5 450.7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Kanghua Hospital

In 2019, Kanghua Hospital, on one hand, continues to provide high standard of
healthcare services with a core focus on medical quality and safety, and on the
other hand, builds up and improves the diagnosis and treatment capability in
serious and severe illnesses of its departments in various disciplines, enhances
the hospital’s specialist development and further deepens cross-disciplinary
cooperation, in order to enhance the competitiveness and promote the
development of Kanghua Hospital:

]

(2)

In respect of hospital management, through improvement of the system,
talent acquisition and training, and optimisation of the medical insurance
management, the medical quality and service management system of
Kanghua Hospital can be further enhanced, leading to an increase in
competitiveness. (i) With the “Action Plan for Further Improving Medical
Services” issued by the National Health Commission as the foundation,
Kanghua Hospital completed 18 core amendments to the medical system.
(i) Kanghua Hospital introduced experts in hospital management to further
enhance the medical quality and safety standard, for example, with the
introduction of the PDCA (Plan-Do-Check-Act) management protocol used
on medical records and statistics, among all healthcare companies in
Guangdong Province and Dongguan, Kanghua Hospital ranked first for
consecutive months in 2019 in terms of admission quality. (i) To cope with
the severe situation of medical insurance work in 2019, Kanghua Hospital
designed the "365" medical insurance upgrade plan, by adjusting and
perfecting the 3-level organisational structure, announcing six medical
insurance management systems and formulating five continuous
improvement policies. With the abovementioned actions, the medical
insurance for outpatient visit and inpatient visit in 2019 has improved in
terms of expenses control, leading to a decreasing trend in the overall
average spending per outpatient visit and inpatient visit.

In relation to hospital services, (i) at the request of the government,
Kanghua Hospital planned the “Household Kanghua Angel” project under
the “Internet + Medical Health” initiative, and implemented it in September
2019. Kanghua Hospital is the first hospital in Dongguan to develop and
operate an online nurse appointment platform. (ii) Kanghua hospital
introduced online functions such as the “Yingyitong” machine and payment
by scanning GR code and enhanced the consultation experience.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEF W& D

(3)  In 2019, with a focus on the diagnosis and treatment of serious and severe
ilinesses, the number of CD-type cases (complicated conditions requiring
urgent treatment) and surgeries with level 3 or level 4 complexities
increased.

(4)  In respect of the development of various disciplines, the Endoscopy Centre
for Ear, Nose, Throat, Head and Neck is established, with the CCU ward
and Chinese Medicine ward upgraded and the construction of ICU Zone
2 activated. Hematology and plastic & reconstructive surgery of Kanghua
Hospital are the 2019 “Key Clinical Specialty of Dongguan” and “High-
Standard Clinical Specialty of Guangdong Province” respectively. Also,
Kanghua Hospital passed the certification of “Respiratory and Critical
Medicine” under the Chinese Medical Doctor Association, and passed
the re-certification and maintained the qualifications of a National Chest
Pain Centre. Its clinical laboratory passed the 1SO15189 certification for
the third time and its Reproductive Medicine Centre also passed the
certification. Furthermore, Kanghua Hospital passed the certification and
became qualified as a Comprehensive Stroke Center under Chinese Stroke
Association. Its Atrial Fibrillation Centre is also upgraded from a constructed
unit to a recognised unit.

In 2019, Kanghua Hospital's brand and reputation were further enhanced, as
exemplified by multiple awards bestowed upon it, including its ranking as the
third place nationwide among the “Top 100 Private Hospitals of 2019” in the PRC
for two consecutive years, the “Top 30 Listed Healthcare Services Companies in
the PRC”, the “Top 80 Hospitals in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater
Bay Area”, the “Top 100 Most Competitive Non-Governmental Hospital Group”,
the “Top 100 Most Competitive Non-Governmental Hospital” and the “2018 Best
Employer of Healthcare Companies in the PRC".

Renkang Hospital

In 2019, Renkang Hospital continued to optimise its operation management
system as well as strengthen its management of medical technology and control
of medical quality, freatment schemes and medical insurance expenses. This has
contributed to the steady growth of the number of patients and revenue and the
effective reduction of its operating costs.

With the self-sufficient resources of Renkang Hospital, together with adjustment
and streamlining of personnel, and structure optimisation, it is well positioned
to take advantage of the respective strengths of various personnel, promote
effective cooperation and enhance working efficiency for the continuous
growth development of Renkang Hospital. Renkang Hospital actively promoted
advanced technology such as ultra-thin veneers, haemodialysis, blood perfusion
and beeswax thermal therapy, expanded new businesses such as ozone
autohemotherapy and gentle birth, and developed special projects. It shows
encouraging results in various disciplines including in particular the disciplines
of obstetrics & gynaecology, gerontology, stomatology, nursing home, blood
perfusion room, anaesthesiology, clinical laboratory, chinese medicine and
health examination.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We recruited and introduced talents in various disciplines, with more than
130 employees hired in Renkang Hospital in the year. We also focused on
internal training and emphasised the importance of continuing education and
encouraged our personnel to learn on the job and improve themselves, together
with a more visible and structured promotion path.

Furthermore, Renkang Hospital continues to promote the development of
special and exceptional specialities, including the disciplines of gynecology and
obstetrics, paediatrics, stomatology, health examination, geriatrics and traditional
Chinese medicine. Indeed, through the induction of talented individuals, investing
in equipment, expanding inpatient wards and strengthening marketing efforts,
the comprehensive strength and influence of these specialities are constantly
enhanced. In 2019, Renkang Hospital became a member of the Southern Geriatric
Disease Prevention and Control Alliance, the Dongguan Geriatric Medical
Specialist Alliance and the Guangdong Province’s Commission on Occupational
Health.

Kangxin Hospital

In 2019, the Kangxin Hospital entered its third year of operation. With the rapid
development of the hospital, it attracted cardiovascular specialists to join and
well-known domestic experts to offer diagnosis at the hospital. Furthermore, the
disciplines of Radiology and Clinical Laboratory obtained a number of patents and
certifications and carried out a series of academic study. As a result, the number
of patients in the 2019 increased substantially, with over 16,400 outpatient visits,
an increase of 64.1% compared to full year 2018, and around 1,800 inpatient
visits, an increase of 56.3% compared to full year 2018.

However, Kangxin Hospital faces several challenges, such as short operating
history, new personnel composition, incomplete structure and general market
downturn.

(1 Interms of surgeries, during the year 2019, Kangxin Hospital performed 145
cardiovascular surgeries, representing a year-on-year increase of 31.8%,
and 580 cardiology surgeries, representing a year-on-year increase of
59.8%.

(2)  For medical technology, under the continuing cooperation with Heart
Federation, Kangxin Hospital actively developed 17 new technologies
and projects including heart surgeries with minimal invasion, coronary
bypass surgery (without stopping the heart), left atrial appendage closure,
3-dimensional radiofrequency ablation and stress echocardiogram.
Currently Kangxin Hospital is the only non-government hospital in
Chongging with notable operations in both cardiology and cardiovascular
surgery. It ranks fifth and second in Chongging in terms of the number of
cardiovascular surgeries and cardiology surgeries, respectively. Also, its
diagnosis and treatment capability on serious and severe patients are
clearly enhanced. Among 142 accident and emergency patients attended
by ambulance, four patients with cardiac arrests were rescued, with 39
patients were diagnosed with chest pain followed with PCI surgeries,
representing a year-on-year increase of 162.9%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

(3)

(4)

In respect of hospital infrastructure, (i) Kangxin Hospital is one of
the few non-government hospitals in Chongqing with HIV (Human
Immunodeficiency Virus) primary screening laboratory, with its clinical
laboratory passing the test for HIV primary screening laboratory under
Chongqing Health Commission at first attempt. (i) In order to accommodate
demand in the market, without deploying additional workforce, Kangxin
Hospital established the hypertension health centre, and devised the
first protocol in Chongqing for hypertension treatment with support and
instructions from Shanghai Rujin Hospital. (il The organisational structure
of Kangxin Hospital has further improved, with a change in registration
regime of medical practitioners in June 2019, together with additional
disciplines such as cardiac rehabilitation, pediatric cardiology and
comprehensive internal medicine outpatient service. (iv] Phase Il of the
construction project is proceeding according fo plan, with the launch of the
main building in April 2019, and relocation of supporting facilities such as
bus stations completed.

In relation to brand and reputation, Kangxin Hospital was bestowed as the
“High-Standard Chongging Non-Government Hospital with Contribution
and Development” in the “Top 70 Brands with Confribution” event organised
by the Chongging Health Commission.

The Group believes that the Kangxin Hospital will continue to strengthen its
influence and reputation in the field of cardiovascular specialty in Southwest
China and deliver stable returns in the foreseeable future.

—_—
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The table below sets forth the revenue contribution by healthcare disciplines of

our hospital services segment for the years indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR I

SEME KRS ER

TREIINARFEIRE B R D A B

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLEE

% of % of
revenue of revenue of
the Group’s the Group’s
owned owned
Change 2019 hospitals 2018 hospitals
DIEARE DIEREE
BERERK ERERD
g —E-NF WEBESt ZZ-N\F KEaskk

RMB'000 RMB'000

Healthcare disciplines B2 ARBT T ARBETT
O&G related disciplines FERMABRE +4.2% 312,596 16.9 300,043 19.1
Cardiovascular related disciplines LDINEFBRE +31.4% 254,476 13.8 193,684 12.3
Internal medicine related disciplines ~ ARBRERZE +19.4% 213,266 1.5 178,675 1.4
General surgery related disciplines LRI EBRE +12.2% 152,698 8.3 136,124 8.7
Neurology related disciplines BREESEENE +18.2% 120,504 6.5 101,970 6.5
Emergency medicine related disciplines 22 BB E +33.0% 120,420 6.5 90,549 5.8
Orthopaedics related disciplines ERAARE +2.6% 113,445 6.1 110,588 7.0
Paediatrics related disciplines REBSERNE +37.6% 65,279 35 47,455 3.0
Oncology related disciplines EBEEMMNE +42.8% 51,153 2.8 35,827 2.3
Medical aesthefic related disciplines ~ EZEXAEBEZE +23.9% 41,706 23 33,657 2.1
Nephrology related disciplines ERrEBN = +28.4% 43,807 2.4 34,116 2.2
Physical examination Erw +3.8% 102,561 55 98,791 6.3
Other disciplines HAFRARE = +22.2% 256,257 13.9 209,633 13.3
Total BEt 1,848,168 100.0 1,571,112 100.0

Note: The Group’s healthcare disciplines can generally be classified info clinical disciplines [+ :
and medical technology disciplines. Medical technology disciplines provide
diagnostic and treatment support according to the requirements of clinical disciplines
from time to time. Revenue derived from services delivered through medical
technology disciplines is generally recognised in the relevant clinical disciplines that

utilised such services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEF W& D

In 2019, the Group performed a total of 46,056 surgeries (2018: 41,045), included
in which 17,457 surgeries (2018: 14,758) were of level 3 or level 4 complexities,
representing a year-on-year increase of 12.2% and 18.3%, respectively.
Obstetrics and gynaecology ("O&G”) disciplines, internal medicine disciplines,
cardiovascular disciplines, general surgery disciplines and neurology disciplines
(2018: O&G disciplines, internal medicine disciplines, cardiovascular disciplines,
general surgery disciplines and orthopaedics disciplines) were the top five
revenue generating disciplines of the Group for the year of 2019, accounting for
approximately 57.0% of the Group’s total revenue in hospital services in the same
period (2018: 58.5%).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue across all disciplines of
our owned hospitals recorded considerable growth, primarily driven by local
demands of our service offerings. In particular, (a) our O&G related disciplines
continued to be our top and stable revenue driver, accounting for 16.9%
(2018:19.1%) of the total revenue from our hospital service segment, and have
recorded a year-on-year revenue increase of 4.2%, primarily attributable to the
expansion of our O&G related workforce and medical facilities, and growth in
local demand and penetration of reputation in the discipline especially at our
O&G VIP centres; (b) revenue from cardiovascular related disciplines recorded
a strong year-on-year increase of 31.4%, primarily attributable to the Group’s
continuous growth in industry reputation within Guangdong Province and the
consolidation of revenue from Kangxin Hospital since its acquisition in August
2018; (c) revenue from oncology related disciplines recorded a significant year-on-
year increase of 42.8% primarily attributable to the recruitment of new oncology
professionals in 2017, which has contfinued to attract patients to Kanghua
Hospital ever since; and (e) revenue from emergency medicine related disciplines
recorded a year-on-year increase of 33.0%, mainly attributable to the upgrade
and expansion of our emergence wards and ICU wards at Kanghua Hospital.
The Group will continue to recruit medical experts and talents, accelerate the
installation and implementation of new medical equipment and promote the
comprehensive development of all of our disciplines, as well as increase the
capability to receive and treat critical tumor patients.

—_—
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2019, the Group’s main revenue driving strategies of our hospital services
segment are:

(i Cardiovascular disciplines: The Group is cooperating with Provincial
People’s Hospital in all aspects, attracting well-known experts, improving
the level of interventional treatment of complex CTO pathological changes
in the Cardiac Centre and further expanding the influence of specialty
practices;

il Neurology disciplines: The Group is establishing the Neuroscience NCU,
expanding wards, developing further facilities in the Stroke Centre and
cooperating with lower-level hospitals;

(il Oncology disciplines: The Group is using new radiotherapy equipment fo
consolidate and improve its advantages in the freatment of and technology
used for nasopharyngeal cancer, breast cancer and cervical cancer,
compared to others in the industry. The Group is further cooperating with
the Cancer Centre of the University of Hong Kong-Shenzhen Hospital; and

(ivi  Emergency medicine related disciplines: The Group is establishing
emergency wards, KICU wards, and Trauma Treatment Centres. The Group
is also excelling in the treatment of trauma patients, strengthening the
development of ECMO technology, conducting emergency applications
of ECMO technology and building a training base for cardiopulmonary
cerebral resuscitation. Moreover, the Group is establishing additional ICU
wards and increasing the number of beds in its hospitals. The Group is
additionally developing treatment for certain diseases (severe pancreatitis
and sepsis) and expanding its superior projects (CRRT and ECMO
technologies).

The Group’s special services are high-end healthcare services that extend beyond
basic medical services and are specifically catered for the more affluent patients
who are willing to pay a premium for higher quality and customised healthcare
services not generally available in public hospitals. The Group’s special services
consist of VIP healthcare services, reproductive medicine, plastic and aesthetic
surgery and laser treatment. In 2019, the total revenue derived from special
services amounted to RMB181.5 million (2018: RMB161.7 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 12.2%. In 2019, our revenue from VIP healthcare services
including our VIP inpatient and VIP outpatient services recorded a year-on-year
increase of 31.8%, primarily attributable to our more premium service offerings
from Huaxin Building (a complex in Kanghua Hospital dedicated to VIP healthcare
services), and wider recognition of our comprehensive O&G services dedicated
to VIP patients. Our revenue from VIP inpatient services recorded RMB72.4 million
(2018: RMB51.0 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 41.9%, primarily
driven by the increase in average spending as our O&G service offerings at
our VIP inpatient centre continues to gain reputation and market demand.
Furthermore, our revenue from VIP outpatient service amounted to RMB37.6
million (2018: RMB32.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 15.3%.

BEERWR DT

RZZF—NF  AREBERRGOMHEE
U2k BB B SR AR /3

i SmER: AEEEEARERS S
HAEE W MBEXR  ES0MP
O B FECTORR & N AR BKF - I
E—FPBBREXMENTES

(i) AR} AN B IEFE 2 AL R AP
REZ - BARE FREEZRE-
I 8T AR BB & 1F

i) FEEF - BEANEMABMEL A%
B IEfE G A DR B R B EE Kk
NEHTERWE FLIRENREEER
BEEMTENES NEETLEE
BRERIINBHRET LE—FEE:
K

vy 22E@ENZE: AEEITERTEZY
A B - KICURE RBIERAHF O °
AEBERAISBHEREE « J18BECMO
RTe 3R - BIREECMOBITHY FE & JE
A RES O ISEERIIREM 5 M|
MERREE I REBIEERXRT
BEZWICURKE @ W1 InH ER AR IR
HE BN AEBEEREE TR
m(EERREARRESIE) /85 -
WiEFx H B IEE (CRRT X ECMO i
fiir) °

AEENEKRRESBEEABERBEN
St BERS  TEHHSWASZE  ®
EHEEALTRAVERENIEHNSRE
FEHEBERS L MEBINER - NEEM
BHRREREEEEERE  £HEEE . &
ERERFMRENEE R_T—NLF -
KEBEKRRENBERZABARBISISES
T(ZE—N\F: AR TEET) @ &
FHRALLLERL2% RN_T—hLE &8
BRERB(BREEEERRELEEMZR
IR FEFBRLIER318%  TBRHNE
DE(REBREMRESEEERSHLES
AXRE) AT IREFEERE I EZRA M
AEESERE2ENEBERRS - &M
VEBFRIRGWEHSEBARE2458 T
—E-N\F: ARES50EET)  KRFEA
B EA41.9%  FBFFHL HEINEE
g REABRMANEBEERP OIRENRE
BRGEERSEERTHEE K - I &
MEBMZRENNEASARKEIIAET
(ZE2E—N\F: AR¥N6EST)  RF:t
A L 38 £15.3% °

—

EREEBRERNABR AR F5H 2019

N————

19



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

However, our revenue from reproductive medicine has dropped to RMB52.7
million (2018: RMB63.9 million) with a year-on-year decrease of 17.5%. The drop
of reproductive medicine was mainly due to the retirement of a reproductive
medicine specialist at Kanghua Hospital in later 2018, and also, the gradually
stabilising demand due to the two-child policy in the Guangdong Province since
its launch in year 2016.

The table below sets forth some key operating data and revenue for the Group’s
special services:

R BPIMEBEBE2REE TREARE
N7TAET(ZE—N\F: ARK63IEHE
TC) c RFEA R TRR175% c AEEE2NT
BREERAR_ZE-—N\FRREERNE
EEEERRAUALARREE - — X
FHEH MIEBUR AR B SR E BB E -

TNRIE AR EE A IRIR A S T RS2 8
2R R ek

For the year ended 31 December

BET=A=t—ALEE

Change 2019 2018

Special Services 45 Tk AR 7% o —E-RE —E—N\E
VIP healthcare services BEEEERK

Inpatient visits BT AR +34.0% 3,639 2,715

Outpatient visits FI2 AR +1.6% 58,182 57,278

Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (ARBFT) +31.8% 110,247 83,652
Reproductive medicine LHESR

Number of outpatient visits FI% AR —-20.3% 48,486 60,808

Revenue (RMB'000) am (AREFTT) -17.5% 52,701 63,863
Plastic and aesthetic surgery BEERIME

Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (AREBFIT) +10.9% 5,174 4,664
Laser treatment BHRE

Revenue (RMB'000) W (AREBFT) +40.2% 13,397 9,553
Total revenue from special services RS 8 B U =

(RMB‘000) (AR®BFIT) +12.2% 181,519 161,732

Rehabilitation and Other Healthcare Services

The Group’s rehabilitation and other healthcare services segment, through
its ownership of 57% equity interest in Anhui Hualin, has recorded a revenue
of RMB87.1 million (for the period from its acquisition on 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018: RMB49.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Anhui Hualin directly and indirectly (through its wholly-owned subsidiary) holds
sponsor interests in certain private non-enterprise entities in Anhui Province, the
PRC. It mainly operates two rehabilitation hospitals, one general hospital, ten
rehabilitation centres and one vocational training school (collectively referred
to as “Anhui Hualin Group®). The Anhui Hualin Group has generated significant
synergistic value to the Group and expanded our presence in the rehabilitation
healthcare sector in the PRC.

Anhui Hualin Group currently employs more than 700 staff and has a stable
cooperation with the Anhui Disabled Persons Federation and local governments
in the provision of training services for the disabled. The Anhui Hualin Group
is also a major organisation offering children rehabilitation services in Auhui
Province, the PRC.

FE18 N Ho At B8 5 AR 75
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Since its acquisition, Anhui Hualin Group has developed steadily, with its network
of medical institutions and rehabilitation centres constantly expanding. In 2019,
after participating in the government’s public bidding, Anhui Hualin Group
successfully won the bids of two rehabilitation centre projects: the Changfeng
County Beicheng Rehabilitation Centre and the Feixi County Kanghua Children’s
Rehabilitation Centre.

One of the major hospitals of the Anhui Hualin Group is the Hefei Kanghua
Rehabilitation Hospital, a rehabilitation specialty hospital aiming to become a
class lll rehabilitation hospital in the long term. The hospital is equipped with
advanced rehabilitation medical equipment and professional medical teams
to provide patients with a wide range of high-end, convenient rehabilitation
treatment programmes. Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital demonstrates the
Group's commitment to further its rehabilitation medical offerings and capability.
The Board envisages that the Anhui Hualin Group will operate as an integrated
rehabilitation service platform combining medical rehabilitation, vocational
rehabilitation, educational rehabilitation and social rehabilitation centred around
a class Il rehabilitation specialty hospital. In 2019, Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation
Hospital also entered into the formal operation stage from the trial operation
stage. By creating a customisable management method, actively exploring and
maintaining referral channels, as well as constructing rehabilitation specialties,
the Group’s brand image has been successfully established in the local area.
In 2019, the hospital also signed out-patient and in-patient medical insurance
agreements with Hefei Medical Insurance Centre, thus obtaining the qualifications
of a locally designated medical insurance institution. In addition, the Group’s
chain rehabilitation centres actively increased its business volume with the help
of resources, venues, scale, experience and other advantages, enhancing the
overall brand influence in Anhui Province’s rehabilitation market.

Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital established orthopaedics discipline in
April 2019. In May 2019, it established nerve and spinal cord injury rehabilitation
(renamed as intensive care rehabilitation in October 2019) and bones and joints
rehabilitation (renamed as integrative medicine rehabilitation in November
2019) disciplines. In December 2019, with an addition of modern rehabilitation
treatment, Kangfuya Sub-specialty Hospital was established with specialised
disciplines such as orthopaedics, intensive care rehabilitation, integrative
medicine rehabilitation, modern rehabilitation treatment and children
rehabilitation. With burn rehabilitation as the primarily development direction,
Hefei Jingu Rehabilitation Hospital commenced the operation of hyperbaric
oxygen therapy and Chinese medicine (pain management) in April and May
2019, respectively.

BEERWR DT
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As at 31 December 2019, the hospitals and centres operated by Anhui Hualin
Group had a total of 200 registered beds. In 2019, Anhui Hualin Group had
45,646 outpatient visits (from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: 36,451, 4,561
inpatient visits (from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: 1,295) and served 1,973
(from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: 1,541) rehabilitation patients.

In the future, Anhui Hualin Group will continue to attract talents through various
channels and training, constantly enhance its medical software and hardware
configuration, comprehensively improve the level of its medical services, further
increase its business revenue, and continue to make beneficial contributions to
the Group.

Hospital Management Services

In August 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of 60% equity interest
of Kangxin Hospital and had become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Board considers that full integration and consolidation of Kangxin
Hospital into the Group’s operations will enable the Group to benefit from the
operating prospects of Kangxin Hospital to a greater extent in the long term. Since
the acquisition of Kangxin Hospital, throughout year 2019 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has no other management arrangement with third party
hospitals and the Company will continue to search for appropriate opportunities
to undertake hospital management operations to the extent commercially
desirable to the Group.

Sale of Pharmaceutical Products

The Group’s sale of pharmaceutical products segment includes a
pharmaceuticals and medical consumables trading company established for
the purpose of streamlining pharmaceuticals and medical consumables sales
directly to the patients at the Group’s hospitals and walk-in customers who may
not be patients of the Group’s hospitals. The operation of this pharmacy company
has in general lowered our overall cost of revenue through centralizing purchase
function and thereby increasing the overall margin of the Group. Revenue
from sales of pharmaceutical products for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB18.6 million (2018: RMB16.0 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of 15.8%.

—_—
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Industry Outlook and Strategy TR = KRR

Entering 2019, the One Belt One Road Initiative had been promoted in all aspects  HFAZF— NG » —#— K {Em2 W -
and the strategy of Healthy China 2030 had been fully implemented. The demand E 1L Ji B 2030 8BS 2 H B s o Bl R & &

for an international healthcare market had also increased, and the upgrade of ESkIREIE  BAEEEEHRIMNR -
domestic healthcare consumption had accelerated. In 2019, new policies in the == — .4 - & B B8 B FR LR NIUR SAH -

field of medicine and healthcare were frequently instituted in China and the pace TEKEE’] P — IR - R FBES -
of medical reform was further accelerated. Among these policies, those which ~H P HEEREITEESERMBE ST ¢
are important for the direction of the medical services industry include:

() Promoting social capital fo run medical services: policies are encouraging (1) {REHSRHE  FE L THT S E

and supporting social capital to provide medical services, including BB - &%f*j(t;‘ii\gﬁt&ﬁ ﬁ
simplifying the process of assessment and obtaining approval, promoting FRAVBERBELSNEE D

the division of labor between public medical institutions and social medical B TEBRIFHENLT ?E,v? I/Zl\
service providers, improving medical insurance support policies and EEBR

improving the consolidated regulatory system.

(2)  Implementing DRG payment: policies are promoting the change of medical  (2) Bk m 2 HAE Y A« #HEBHER

insurance payment methods from “payment by project” to “payment by REMAFARMRER ]2 &R
disease”. That is, setfing a fixed reimbursement standard for each disease BT #EER - BHIEBERR
and reimbursing the expenses to medical institutions by medical insurance E’J EREMNEZEE  THEREBKR
institutions in accordance with a unified standard. This new method of —REMBEEEREER o UL
payment will effectively solve the problem of excessive drug prescription in E’J XA ERFRREASE PG
hospitals, unreasonable inspections and treatment plans and improve the LA &#\%IE B ER BTG A
quality of medical services. CReBERKEE -

(3)  Supporting the heritage and innovation of Traditional Chinese Medicine  (3) 3z 3 o B8 % =5 2 () {5 7 A1 FIJ %ﬁ?")?é

["TCM"): policies are strengthening the training of falents in TCM, including TR EZEASBEENREK  BER
through promoting the combination of college education and doctor- ERRHEMEBRMAKERES - A
accepted education and improving the evaluation system of professional K 58 & B8 A% ;:FE%WE o [A] ¥ -
titles of TCM doctors. Simultaneously, the state will be supporting the BREZSEEPEEERESRH
construction of scientific research and innovation arrangements such as BIFETEE R - ARG ISt B B RREH R
TCM laboratories, as well as increasing pilot clinical collaborations between RE R P E R R i ESL B -

TCM and Western medicine for major and difficult diseases.

(4)  Encouraging the construction of elderly care services system with the (4 SEBEREBEELNBERSFER:

combination of medical care and nursing care: policies are strengthening fRemss st BEEEHEEA
market mechanisms, improving the training of nursing professionals BREJINREBTEHELHEER
for the elderly and encouraging social forces to participate in the elderly BHIZHEE B HETEUER
care services market. This will continuously improve the elderly care RER DR AKIENEZRGE
services system which is predicated on home care and relies on the social R BERREFAZELL ZERX
community, effectively meeting the diversified and multi-level needs of WEZREBERGEXK -

medical care and elderly services of the elderly.

(5)  Continuing to promote the construction of medical association: policies  (5) #EH B EHEAE  E - FEA K
are further integrating and medical resources are being shared within =@ Fﬁﬁ E’JIBZ o fE AN - j]l]
the regions. Additionally, policies are accelerating the establishment of a REVEEBREZ L TRBRE
graded diagnosis and treatment model that consists of a first diagnosis in m¥E %F‘E MRED BN D BDE
primary hospitals, a two-way referral system between higher and lower R BB o

hospitals and the division of treatment for acute and chronic diseases.
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In 2019, by closely following the trend of medical reform policies, the Group
actively promoted the establishment of the medical association and deepened
the layout strategy of its medical network through constantly consolidating the
quality of its own medical services. In the future, the Group believes that under the
relevant support policies, the Group will further optimise its medical management
system, focus on the development of key and characteristic specialties, develop
a comprehensive layout in the One Health industry and expand its industry
influence.

The Impact of COVID-19

In the beginning of 2020, an unexpected and unprecedented pandemic caused
by the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19°) has affected a wide range of industries
and sectors in the PRC and elsewhere, leading to a possible slowdown in global
economy. In response to the threats of COVID-19, the Group, as a hospital
operator, has put in place numerous precautionary measures to ensure the
health and safety of our employees and the stable operations of our hospitals for
the provision of responsive service to our patients.

At present, the Group continuously monitors the latest developments and actively
coordinates actively with local healthcare authorities and organisations, as
well as our stakeholders, to refine our policies, measures and best practices,
including minimizing cross and secondary infections by implementing work
shifts and flexible working arrangements, sourcing sufficient safety materials
and protective gears for our front-line healthcare workers and administrative
staff, and controlling patient movements and restricting non-patient visits to
our hospital premises. As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, while
the Group’s hospitals as a whole generally remain operational as usual, the
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a certain degree of operational disturbance,
including temporary closures of our rehabilitation centres and rescheduling of
some of our non-emergency services and surgeries. The COVID-19 pandemic is
rapidly developing, and it remains to be seen whether it will result in material and
long-term disruptions to the Group’s operations. The Group will closely monitor
the COVID-19 pandemic and make announcements as appropriate should any
material adverse development materialise.

The major epidemics in the past ten years (including SARS) have been catalysts for
reforms in the healthcare system and industry. With the continuous support of the
PRC government to the healthcare system and industry in recent years, favourable
policies may inspire progressive changes in the healthcare system and industry
in response fo the impact of COVID-19 impact, such as accelerated development
and application of internet medical services, integration of the Chinese and
Western Medicine, and promotion in vaccinations and medical insurances. The
Group intends to position itself to capture such opportunities, while maintaining
fast-paced expansion and delivery of high quality services.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments or capital assets as of the date of this report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B %% 151 e
Segment Revenue DERUL S

The Group generates revenue primarily from: (i) hospital services — providing 7%

healthcare services through its owned hospitals, namely Kanghua Hospital,  # — &i& $%T§Eﬁﬂ'\]% 5t (BN B 2= 28 B -
Renkang Hospital and Kangxin Hospital (since August 2018), comprising inpatient  {Z & 2h OB (BT — \E/\ A#E))
healthcare services, outpatient healthcare services and physical examination 24t BB R ’FE%{IFE SRR IR
services; (i) rehabilitation and other healthcare services — providing rehabilitation & AR 7 & 88 4% AR 75 (i) 18 R H (b B8 FHEW
services to patients with physical or mental disabilities and other healthcare ~ — %%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬂ R AR ERERE R

%EE?&EMT%E%E’N&E& (i) & B Az

related services including elderly care and training service for the disabled; (i) £ fb 28 &R R ARTS @%%E E3EYSYETIIN
providing hospital management services; (iv) sale of pharmaceutical products %J\I ,ﬁ Hlﬁ% iR B E %Hfﬁ% (lv) A Zx
and medical consumables to patients of the Group’s hospitals and walk-in BERrmAR ﬂiZ K 5T A
customers who may not be patients of the Group’s hospitals; and (v) others. E*J\T%ﬁ B B ﬁﬁ K (v E
The following tables below set forth the revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit and "~ Z 851 PR 4 /£ 48 Sk B2 ) 5 81 2 /) s »
gross profit margin of the Group by segment for the years indicated: e AR ~ EF R EFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—NF+-A=+—HLEE
Rehabilitation
and other Sale of
Hospital healthcare  pharmaceutical
services services products Others Total
BRR% BERE HEER Hith st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT ARBT T AR®F T AR®F T
(Note)
(P 2E)
Revenue Wz 1,848,168 87,115 18,577 1,665 1,955,525
Cost of revenue WA A (1,483,481) (67,566) (14,413) (646) (1,566,106)
Gross profit E7 364,687 19,549 4,164 1,019 389,419
Gross profit margin EAE 19.7% 22.4% 22.4% 61.1% 19.9%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZE—)\FT+-A=+T—HLFE
Rehabilitation
and other Hospital Sale of
Hospital healthcare management  pharmaceufical
services services services products Others Total
RERAM BhEn
EURb BERE % HEER Hth @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT NS
(Note)
(W3E)
Revenue W 157112 49,670 2,258 16,043 204 1,639,287
Cost of revenue WaEm A (1,232,085 33,687) (1,746) 12,678) 187) (1,280,383
Gross profit EH 339,027 15,983 512 3,365 17 358,904
Gross profit margin EH= 21.6% 32.2% 22.7% 21.0% 8.3% 21.9%

Note: The operation of rehabilitation and other healthcare services was acquired in April M5t : BREREMBERSZEZER N\
2018. FY AU o
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Revenue from the Group’s hospital services amounted to RMB1,848.2 million
(2018: RMB1,571.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 17.6% and
accounting for 94.5% (2018: 95.8%) of the fotal revenue of the Group.

Included in revenue from hospital services comprised (i) revenue from inpatient
healthcare services amounting to RMB1,135.9 million (2018: RMB919.8 million)
representing a year-on-year increase of 23.5%, accounting for 58.1% (2018: 56.1%)
of the total revenue of the Group; (il revenue from outpatient healthcare services
amounting to RMB609.7 million (2018: RMB552.5 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 10.4%, accounting for 31.2% (2018: 33.7%) of the total revenue
of the Group; and (iii) revenue from physical examination services amounting to
RMB102.6 million (2018: RMB98.8 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of 3.8%, accounting for 5.2% (2018: 6.0%) of the total revenue of the Group. The
increase in revenue from hospital services is mainly due fo (i) increase in the
number of inpatient, outpatient and physical examination visits as well as overall
average spending during the year, (i) consolidation of revenue from Kangxin
Hospital (acquired since August 2018); and (iii) the growth in revenue across all
our major disciplines and VIP special services during the year. During the year
2019, the revenue from our VIP special services accounts for approximately 9.3%
of the Group’s total revenue (2018: 9.9%) and 9.8% of the Group’s revenue from
our hospital services segment (2018: 10.3%). The solid growth in revenue from our
hospital services has demonstrated that the demand of our service continues to
remain strong and the reputation of the Kanghua brand has further strengthened
especially in the Guangdong region.

Revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services amounted to RMB87.1
million (for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: RMB49.7 million)
representing a year-on-year increase of 75.4%, accounting for 4.5% (2018: 3.0%)
of the total revenue of the Group. In April 2018, the Group acquired Anhui Hualin
which is principally engaged in provision of rehabilitation services to patients with
physical or mental disabilities and other healthcare related services including care
services for elderly and training service for the disabled. The increase in revenue
is mainly attributable to the establishment of Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation
Hospital in November 2018 (a rehabilitation specialty hospital aiming to be rafed
as a class Il rehabilitation hospital) and the opening and fransformation of
other rehabilitation hospitals and centres within Anhui Hualin Group, which has
attracted a considerable number of patients in the Anhui region.

In 2019, the Group did not have any revenue from the hospital management
services segment (2018: RMB2.3 million). Our hospital management agreement
with Kangxin Hospital ceased when the Group acquired the controlling interest
in Kangxin Hospital in August 2018. During the year 2019 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has no other management arrangement with third party
hospitals and the Company will continue to search for appropriate opportunities
to undertake hospital management operations to the extent commercially
desirable to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical consumables
amounted to RMBI18.6 million (2018: RMB16.0 million) representing a year-on-
year increase of 15.8%, accounting for 0.9% (2018: 1.0%) of the total revenue of the
Group. The pharmaceuticals and medical consumables trading operation was set
up for the purpose of streamlining pharmaceuticals and medical consumables
sales directly to the patients at the Group’s hospitals and walk-in customers who
may not be patients of the Group’s hospitals. The increase in revenue from the
sale of pharmaceutical products and medical consumables is primarily due to the
increase in the number of outpatient visits in both Kanghua Hospital and Renkang
Hospital which drove pharmaceutical and medical consumable sales within both
hospitals.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital services (consisting of inpatient healthcare
services, outpatient healthcare services and physical examination services)
primarily consisted of pharmaceuticals, medical consumables, staff cost,
depreciation, service expenses, utilities expenses, rental expenses and other
costs. Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital services increased to RMB1,483.5
million (2018: RMB1,232.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
20.4%. The greater extent of increase in cost of revenue for hospital services was
primarily due to (i) the continual pressure in the rise of medical staff costs and
other staff benefits due to shortage in medical professionals in the Guangdong
Province; and (i) full consolidation of the cost incurred at Kangxin Hospital which
has caused the increase in cost of revenue more rapidly than revenue as it is still
at an infancy stage of ramping up it operation and thus, it is operating at negative
gross margin.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s rehabilitation and other healthcare services
amounted to RMB67.6 million (2018: RMB33.7 million) representing a year-
on-year increase of 100.6%, and primarily consisted of staff costs, medical
consumables, depreciation, utilities and rental expenses. The significant increase
in cost of revenue of our rehabilitation and other healthcare services segment is
mainly attributable to the rise in operating cost relating to the new Hefei Kanghua
Rehabilitation Hospital which was established in November 2018 and fully
operational in the year 2019.

During the year, the Group did not have any cost of revenue from our hospital
management services segment (2018: RMB1.7 million). Our hospital management
agreement with Kangxin Hospital ceased when the Group acquired the
controlling interest in Kangxin Hospital in August 2018.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s sale of pharmaceutical products amounted to
RMB14.4 million (2018: RMB12.7 million) representing a year-on-year increase
of 13.7%, mainly representing cost of inventory and purchase of pharmaceutical
products, which was in line with the increase in revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEENRR DN

For the year ended 31 December 2019, pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and staff cost accounted for approximately 30.8% (2018: 31.1%), 27.9% (2018:
27.8%) and 30.1% (2018: 29.8%), respectively, of the total cost of revenue of the
Group. Our total staff related costs including salary, bonus and other benefits had
increased by 23.6% as compared with the prior year, mainly aftributable to (i) an
increase in general salary level and bonus as well as other staff benefits with a
view to retaining and attracting quality healthcare professionals in the healthcare
industry that remains highly competitive; and (i) the impact on full consolidation of
the Anhui Hualin Group and Kangxin Hospital during the current year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Total gross profit of the Group amounted to RMB389.4 million (2018: RMB358.9
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 8.5%. The overall gross profit
margin decreased 0 19.9% (2018: 21.9%), primarily due to:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

—

our significant growth in cardiovascular related disciplines, neurology
related disciplines, emergence medicine related disciplines and oncology
related disciplines during the current year. These medical disciplines usually
require treatments typically involving more delicate, precise and advanced
surgeries and diagnostics support and command a higher margin than
basic medical services;

the growth in our VIP centres that are targeted towards high-end patients
and typically command higher margin than basic healthcare services (our
VIP inpatient and outpatient services related revenue recorded a year-on-
year growth of 41.9% and 15.2%, respectively);

the overall increase in the average spending of our patients and the
ability to increase healthcare consultation prices. In 2019, the Group has
year-on-year growth of 8.5%, 3.9% and 15.0% in the average spending
from inpatient, outpatient and physical examination healthcare services,
respectively, from our owned hospital operations;

however, the above impact has been considerably offset by (a) the full
consolidation of results of Kangxin Hospital which recorded a negative
gross profit margin due to its infancy stage of ramping up its operation that
incurs a large amount of fixed medical staff costs, overhead expenditure
and other direct fixed costs; and (b) an increase in overall direct staff related
costs of 23.6% and an increase in overall depreciation and amortisation
expenses of 64.5% mainly caused by the impact of purchase of various
new medical equipment and new leasehold improvement incurred in
Kanghua Hospital, as well as the impact of application of new accounting
standard (IFRS 16) relating to leases. The increase in staff related costs
includes general increase in overall salary level, and more competitive
compensation packages offered to our healthcare professionals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BB ERN T BEEER

The following table sets forth certain key operational information of each of the TRIERFIRFEFEAEBRHRENTHE
HETEELEER

Key Operational Information of Our Owned Hospitals

hospitals owned by the Group for the years indicated:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=A=t+-ALEE

Change 2019 2018
) —E-NF ZZT—N\F
Inpatient healthcare services B B BRI
Inpatient visits: FBE AR
Kanghua Hospital FREEER +16.5% 59,578 51,159
Renkang Hospital ZRER +57% 14,135 13,375
Kangxin Hospital R gk +231.8% 1,855 559
Total inpatient visits b AR +16.1% 75,568 65,093
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARTEAREZ (ARET)
Kanghua Hospital FREE R +4.9% 16,061.0 15,308.8
Renkang Hospital CEER +1.1% 9,277.5 9,178.1
Kangxin Hospital R 2R +3.9% 25,794.6 24,819.3
Outpatient healthcare services P2 B R R 15
Outpatient visits: FI2 AR :
Kanghua Hospital FREE R +8.5% 1,335,875 1,231,290
Renkang Hospital CEER +6.1% 401,030 378,094
Kangxin Hospital B ERR +2451% 16,415 4,757
Total outpatient visits PIZ AR +8.6% 1,753,320 1,614,141
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARTEAREZ (AREETT)
Kanghua Hospital FREEEE +1.6% 376.6 370.6
Renkang Hospital CEER +0.2% 248.7 248.1
Kangxin Hospital |51 -12.5% 4253 485.8
Physical examination services R
Physical examination visits: i AR
Kanghua Hospital EREEERT -5.0% 115,170 121,261
Renkang Hospital CEER -16.5% 70,464 84,394
Total physical examination visits BBina AR -9.7% 185,634 205,655
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFEARZ (ARET)
Kanghua Hospital FREE R +10.1% 825.1 749.2
Renkang Hospital CEER +13.5% 106.9 94.2
J—
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BEENWR DN

Other Income

The other income of the Group primarily consisted of bank and other interest
income, fair value gain on and investment income from financial assets at FVTPL,
government subsidies, rental income, clinical trial and related income and others.
In 2019, other income amounted to RMB38.3 million (2018: RMB46.8 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 18.1%, primarily due to
(i) an increase in fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL of 35.0% to RMB8.7
million (2018: RMB6.4 million), which represents fair value gain from our portfolio
investment fund; (i) a decrease in investment income from financial assets at
FVTPL of 20.9% to RMB14.5 million (2018: RMB18.4 million), which represents
investment income from our principal-protected structured deposits with banks in
the PRC; (iii) an increase in rental income to RMB6.2 million (2018: RMB4.7 million),
which mainly represents rental income from our staff quarter; (iv) a decrease in
government subsidies and clinical trial and related income; and (v) a decrease in
bank and other interest income to RMB2.8 million (2018: RMB7.2 million) mainly
as a result of decrease in average bank balances.

As part of the Group’s cash management to maximise return on idle cash,
the Group invested in certain principal-protected structured deposit products
issued by a PRC commercial bank, unlisted fund and portfolio investment fund
(all classified as financial assets at FVTPL) to achieve higher interest income
and capital gain return (which is recognised as “other income” above) without
interfering with business operations or capital expenditures to earn better return
on our excess cash balance, which consistent with our cash management policy.

Other Expenses, Gains and Losses

The other expenses, gains and losses of the Group primarily consisted of
allowances on credit loss, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
donations and net exchange gain/loss. In 2019, other expenses, gains and losses
amounted to a net loss of RMBO0.7 million (2018: net gain of RMB2.2 million),
primarily due to (i) a decrease in allowances on credit loss to RMBO.6 million (2018:
RMB3.5 million), mainly due to an overall improvement on credit quality of our
accounts and other receivables; (i) donations made during the year of RMB2.0
million (2018: nil); and (iii) a recorded net exchange gain of RMB2.2 million (2018:
net exchange gain of RMB5.9 million) mainly arising from our Hong Kong dollar
denominated financial assefs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment of Goodwill

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has recognised (i) goodwill
of RMB56.6 million arising from the acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group, which
has been allocated to the cash generating unit (CGU) of rehabilitation and other
healthcare services business; and (i) goodwill of RMB125.4 million arising from
the acquisition of Kangxin Hospital, which has been allocated to the CGU of
hospital services business (the “Kangxin Hospital CGU"). As at 31 December 2019,
the Board conducted a review of the carrying values of the aforementioned CGUs.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of rehabilitation and other healthcare
services business has been defermined based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the management of the Group. The key assumptions are growth rates and pre-
tax discount rates, which are estimated based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market. The Board believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of this CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU
and determined that there is no impairment of this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the Kangxin Hospital CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the management of the Group. The key
assumptions are growth rates and pre-tax discount rates which are estimated
based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
After taken into consideration of the historical performance and most recent
actual performance of the Kangxin Hospital CGU, the Board considers that
the estimated medium-term future growth in revenue of Kangxin Hospital will
be lower than previously anticipated. Accordingly, the aggregate recoverable
amount of Kangxin Hospital CGU is below its aggregate carrying amount, and
an impairment loss of RMB60.0 million was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2019. The goodwill relating to the Kangxin Hospital CGU was
approximately RMB65.4 million as at 31 December 2019.

Kangxin Hospital commenced operations in March 2017, and year 2019 was its
third year of operation. The Board is of the view that the primary factors resulting
in the change in future cash flow projections and the impairment of goodwiill
relating to the Kangxin Hospital CGU are as follows:

(i the actual revenue performance of Kangxin Hospital during the year
2019 was lower than previously anticipated. The number of inpatient and
outpatient visits as well as the number of surgeries operated in 2019 had
not reached our initial forecast numbers;

(il  competition for quality healthcare professionals in the Chongqing region is
very keen and as Kangxin Hospital is still at an early stage of operation and
developing its brand and reputation, it remains a challenge for Kangxin
Hospital to recruit well-known and reputable doctors that are conducive to
aftracting patient visits. As a result, we have reduced the expected growth
in number of patient visits in Kangxin Hospital; and
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(il  Kangxin Hospital has incurred fixed costs at a rate that is faster than its
revenue growth as originally anticipated. In particular, certain fixed costs,
including wages, repairs and maintenance and other fixed administrative
expenses have increased at a higher rate than expected due to market
conditions and the competitive landscape in Chongging.

In view of the slow-down in revenue growth and the higher rate of costs increase,
the management considers probable that there will be a decrease in the future
cash flow projections in the short to medium term.

Impairment of goodwill in relation to the acquisitions of Anhui Hualin Group
and Kangxin Hospital is assessed by comparing the recoverable amount of
the relevant CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal, to its carrying values at
the end of the Reporting Period. The value in use of the CGUs is determined
by the Board based on the present value of estimated future cash flows to be
generated from the CGUs and with reference to the valuation reports prepared
by an independent professional valuer, which was approved by the Board.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or changes in facts
and circumstances resulting in downward revision of future cash flows, an
impairment loss may arise. The management of the Group adopts significant
judgement and assumptions in the value in use calculation for estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs. Such key assumptions include growth rates
and pre-tax discount rates. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of RMB60.0 million on the goodwill relating to
Kangxin Hospital as the recoverable amount of the Kangxin CGU is less than its
carrying amount. The Board is of the view that no provision for impairment has to
be recognised for the goodwill relating o Anhui Hualin Group for the year ended
31 December 2019. The management and the Board will closely monitor the
situation, and make adjustments as appropriate should future market activities
and conditions indicate that such adjustments are required.

As disclosed in this report, the recent COVID-19 pandemic has affected almost
all industries and sectors, which may lead to a slowdown in the local and global
economies. The situation has resulted in some businesses to temporarily cease
operations for a significant period of time during the first quarter of year 2020.
Our hospitals are largely operating as usual, subject to a certain degree of
business disruptions, including temporary closures of our rehabilitation centres
and rescheduling of some of our non-emergency services or surgeries. The Board
is of the view the operations and financial condition of the Group as a whole
are relatively less affected by COVID-19 pandemic, primarily because the bulk of
our revenue from healthcare services are not directly correlated to the economic
cycles and the overall demand of our Group’s healthcare services (particularly
those that are essential to health and well-being) is likely to remain strong despite
the COVID-19 pandemic in the medium to long term.

—
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group primarily consisted of staff costs,
repairs and maintenance expenses, office expenses, depreciation and
amortisation, rental expenses, utilities expenses, entertainment and travelling
expenses and other expenses. In 2019, administrative expenses amounted to
RMB232.3 million (2018: RMB185.2 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 25.4%, primarily due to (i) an increase in administrative staff
related costs to RMB89.0 million (2018: RMB72.6 million) as a result of general
salary increase and increase in number of administrative staff headcounts; (i)
an increase in depreciation and amortisation to RMB32.4 million (2018: RM16.3
million) due to expansion of our operations as well as the impact of application of
new accounting standard (IFRS 16) relating to leases; and (iii) an increase in office
and administration costs as well as other utilities expenses due to expansion of
our operations and acquisition of Anhui Hualin and Kangxin Hospital last year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year amounted to RMB17.2 million (2018: RMBO0.9 million).
Finance costs for the current year represents (i) interest on bank loans raised
during the year of RMB5.4 million (2018: RMBO.9 million); (i) the interest element
relating to lease liabilities charged to profit or loss during the current year due
to application of new accounting standard (IFRS 16) relating to leases of RMB13.3
million (2018: nil); and (iii) less amount of interest capitalised in the cost of
qualifying assets of RMB1.5 million (2018: nil).

Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group primarily consisted of PRC enterprise
income tax and Hong Kong Profits Tax. In 2019, income tax expenses amounted
to RMB68.8 million (2018: RMB60.5 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 13.7%. The subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are generally
subject to income tax rate of 25% on their respective taxable income. Our effective
tax rate in 2019 is 58.6% (2018: 27.2%), and the increase is primarily due to tax
effect of tax losses not recognised for losses incurred of Kangxin Hospital and tax
effect of impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill.

Profit for the Year

In 2019, profit for the year amounted to RMB48.7 million (2018: RMB161.3 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 69.8% and profit for the
year attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB74.3 million
(2018: RMB167.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
55.7%. The decrease is primarily due to the continuing losses incurred by Kangxin
Hospital and impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill of RMB60.0
million for the current year.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-Use Assets and Deposits Paid for
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year 2019, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment and
incurred expenditure on construction in progress of RMB76.6 million (2018:
RMB96.8 million) and RMB118.3 million (2018: RMB32.9 million), respectively,
mainly for the purpose of upgrading and expanding the service capacity of our
hospital operations and construction cost incurred of Phase Il medical facility at
our Kangxin Hospital.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had right-of-use assets of RMB323.1 million
which includes leasehold lands of RMB150.4 million (leasehold lands were
classified as prepaid lease payment as at 31 December 2018) and leasehold land
and buildings relating to leases of RMB172.7 million recognised in accordance
with IFRS 16. During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements for
the use of properties in the PRC ranging from two to three years. The Group is
required to make fixed monthly payments. On lease commencement, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB8.4 million each relating
to those new leases.

In addition, as at 31 December 2019, the Group had deposits paid for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment amounting to RMB109.6 million (2018: RMB81.1
million). The deposits mainly represent deposits paid for construction cost of
Phase Il medical facility at our Kangxin Hospital and amount paid for acquisition
of new medical equipment and other new facilities as the Group continues to
upgrade its medical facilities and expand its operation capacity.

Accounts and Other Receivables

The account receivables of the Group primarily consisted of balances due from
social insurance funds, certain corporate customers and individual patients.
As at 31 December 2019, accounts receivables increased to RMB264.2 million
(2018: RMB176.5 million), of which 74.0% (2018: 77.7%) were aged within 90 days.
Average accounts receivables turnover days for the current year is 41.1 days (2018:
30.2 days). The increase in accounts receivables was primarily due to expansion
of our owned hospitals’ operations and delay in accounts settlement from
government bodies and federations on social insurance funds.

The other receivables of the Group primarily consisted of prepayments to
suppliers, interest receivables and others. As at 31 December 2019, other
receivables increased to RMB36.4 million (2018: RMB30.5 million) primarily due to
i) a slight decrease in prepayments to suppliers to RMB9.9 million (2018: RMB11.7
million); and (i) an increase in other receivables mainly due to expansion of the
Group’s operations in general.
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Accounts and Other Payables

The accounts and other payables of the Group primarily consisted of accounts
payables, accrued expenses, receipts in advance, payables for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, provision for medical dispute claims and others.
As at 31 December 2019, accounts and other payables increased slightly to
RMB488.5 million (2018: RMB481.8 million) primarily due to (i) a slight decrease in
accounts payable fo RMB262.0 million (2018: RMB263.9 million); (i) an increase
of accrued expenses to RMB83.1 million (2018: RMB77.5 million) mainly due to
increase in accrued staff salary and bonus due to increase in number of staff
headcounts, and increase in other operational and administrative charges due to
expansion in operation; and (i) an increase in payable for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment to RMB57.4 million (2018: RMB54.5 million) due fo payables
incurred for purchases of medical equipment purchases and improvement works
made fo our owned-hospitals during the year.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded net current assets of RMB378.2
million (2018: RMB286.0 million) and net assets position of RMB1,457.6 million
(2018: RMB1,509.5 million).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and cash
equivalents of RMB223.9 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB203.3
million). The increase is mainly due to operating cash inflow generated across
all our operations. The Group continues to generate steady cash inflow from
operations and coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances. Thus, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group will have adequate and
sufficient liquidity and financial resources to meet the working capital requirement
of the Group for at least the next twelve months from the end of the Reporting
Period.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had investments (classified as financial
assets at FVTPL) in aggregate of RMB477.2 million (2018: RMB479.1 million)
primarily consisting of, (i) portfolio investment fund of RMB77.2 million (2018:
RMB54.0 million), representing an investment fund deposited with a discretionary
fund manager engaged in Hong Kong mandate to manage the fund and
achieve appropriate capital gain return that is consistent with the Group’s cash
management policy. The portfolio included a mixture of cash and shares that
are primarily listed in Hong Kong. During the year, consistent with its cash
management policy, the Group made additional investment into the portfolio
investment fund of HK$15.6 million (equivalent to approximately RMB13.4
million) for the purpose of utilising idle cash for better capital gain return; and
(i) structured bank deposits of RMB400.0 million (2018: RMB402.0 million),
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representing principal-protected products issued by a PRC commercial bank.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had an unlisted fund measured at fair value of
US$3.4 million (equivalent to approximately RMB23.2 million) representing an
investment in equity securities of a private company in the PRC for the purpose
of capital gain, strategic long-term investment and potential cooperation in
healthcare. During the year 2019, the Group disposed of the unlisted fund and the
relevant gain was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2018.

As part of the Group’s cash management policy to manage excess cash, the
Group purchases investment products from financial institutions to achieve
higher interest income without inferfering with business operations or capital
expenditures. The Group carefully balances the risks and returns associated
with the investment products when making the investment decisions. The senior
management of the Group is closely involved in scrutinizing any decision of
the Group to purchase investment products. The investment products should
generally satisfy the following criteriq; (i) its term should generally not exceed one
year; (i) it should not interfere with the Group’s business operations or capital
expenditures; (i) it should be issued by a reputable bank which the Group has
a long-term relationship, preferably exceeding five years; and (iv) the underlying
investment portfolio should generally be low risk.

Cash Flow Analysis

The table below sets forth the information as extracted from the consolidated
statement of cash flow of the Group for the years indicated:
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Net cash generated from operating activities REEE MBI FE 98,178 176,963
Net cash used in investing activities WEEESAEFE (212,882) (285,388)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BERBE (TR REFHE 135,105 (74,424)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3R & K& IR &S5 B8 O ) F58 20,401 (182,849)

Net cash generated from operating activities

In 2019, the net cash generated from operating activities amounted to RMB98.2
million (2018: RMB177.0 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 44.5%,
which was primarily due fo (i) our improved Adjusted EBITDA for the Reporting
Period; (ii) changes in working capital including increase in inventories, increase
in accounts and other receivables and decrease in accounts and other payables;
and (i) increase in tax paid during the year amounting to RMB71.9 million
(2018: RMB53.3 million). The decrease in operating cash inflow was generally
attributable to the overall increase in operating costs of the Group especially the
loss incurred at our Kangxin Hospital during the year.

—_—

36

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——

RE DB TR

RZZTE—NF  KETHHABRESFEAA
REEIg2BE L (ZE—N\F: AR1770
BEIL) WEFELRE D 44.5% EBHA)
R EARE A A T ELEBITDAIE hI : (| B IBEE S
BE) BEFEEMN BURERREEMER
FRIBIE O K A BR A R H A FE S FRIE R A
Kl FABENRIBELE N EARBNIESE
TL(ZE—N\F: ARKESIIFEETL) - £&
BWERABL —RBEATHERARRNEEBK
BRI CHEFARLERES
BB ATE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Net cash used in investing activities

In 2019, net cash used in investing activities amounted fo RMB212.9 million (2018:
RMB285.4 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.4%, which was
primarily due to (i) no significant acquisition being made during the current year;
(i) a decrease in investment income received from financial assets at FVTPL and
interest received as compared with last year; and (i) an increase in purchase of
property, plant and equipment as compared with last year due to expansion of
operations.

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

In 2019, net cash from financing activities amounted to RMB135.1 million (2018:
net cash used in financing activities of RMB74.4 million), which was mainly due
to (i) new bank loans (net of bank loan arrangement fees of RMB12.6 million) of
the Group amounting to RMB222.8 million (2018: nil); (ii) the Group’s net advances
from non-controlling shareholders of Anhui Hualin and Kangxin Hospital
of RMB7.7 million (2018: net advances from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries of RMB41.0 million); and (iii) the Group’s repayment of lease liabilities
of RMB22.0 million (2018: nil). During the year, the Group obtained new bank
loan facilities in aggregate amounting to RMB620.0 million for the purpose of
providing funding for the development of its Phase Il medical facility and financing
its operation at Kangxin Hospital, in which RMB235.4 million has been drawn
down during the year.

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposal

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no significant investment,
acquisition and/or disposal during the Reporting Period and there has not been
any significant events since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this report.

Cash Management Activities

As part of the Group’s cash management, the Group has from time to fime
invested into investment products issued by a reputable PRC commercial bank
with terms ranging from 92 to 103 days and portfolio investment funds to achieve
higher interest income without interfering with business operations or capital
expenditures. The investment products are not rated by any credit agency but are
classified as low-risk by the issuing bank and listed securities with low risk profile.
The Group carefully balances the risks and returns associated with the investment
products when making the investment decisions. The senior management of the
Group is closely involved in scrutinizing any decision of the Group to purchase
investment products.

Capital Expenditure

the Group regularly makes capital expenditures to expand its operations,
maintain its medical facilities and improve its operating efficiency. Capital
expenditure primarily consists of purchases of property, plant and equipment.
The capital expenditure of the Group during the year was RMB194.9 million (2018:
RMB129.7 million). The Group has financed its capital expenditure mainly through
cash flows generated from operating activities and bank loans obtained during
the current year.
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USE OF PROCEED FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s H shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 November
2016. The Company’s net proceeds from the initial public offering of its H shares
amounts to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalently to approximately
HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses. The net proceeds from the initial public offering have been and will be
utilised in accordance with the purposes set out in the Prospectus.

Up to 31 December 2019, of the net proceeds from the initial public offering,
(i) RMB68.0 million, representation approximately 8.7% of the net proceeds,
has been utilised and used as general working capital; (i) RMB131.2 million,
representing approximately 16.8% of the net proceeds, has been utilised and
used on expansion of our current operations and upgrading our hospital’s
facilities; and (i) RMB157.8 million, representing approximately 20.2% of the net
proceeds, has been utilised and used for acquisition and potential acquisition
of businesses. As at 31 December 2019, out of the balance of the unutilised net
proceeds of RMB425.6 million, part of which has been used to purchase certain
financial products (classified as financial assets at FVTPL) to achieve higher interest
income and capital gain return without interfering with our business operations
or capital expenditures o earn better return on our excess cash balance, and the
remaining balance has been kept at the bank accounts of the Group (included
in bank balances and cash). As at the date of this report, the Company does not
anticipate any material change to its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus.
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The following table sets forth the intended purposes for the net proceeds fromthe T~ 3= & 51| & /& A B 3% & BT 15 7018 % B8 O 4t
initial public offering, the utilisation of such proceeds and the timeline of utilisation  EA® - ZEMERENSAB AL EEE
estimated by the management: HETI B AR

Net proceeds
from the initial public
offering intended

for the purpose Expected timeline
as disclosed Utilisation up to for the utilisation
in the Prospectus 31 December 2019 Unutilised amount  of the unutilised
Purpose (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million) amount Nee
RRERML - BE-Z-1F
BRAMBERERE TZA=+-8f
RENRERR AR EHAEE ERKYA
Rz (A\EBEETR) (ARBEETR) (A\EBEER) SENEBHRME
Expansion of the Group’'s current operations and 70.4 50 654  Bytheendof
upgrading of hospital facilifies 31 December 2021
BAREERBEBRARBR R W-E-—%+-A
=t+—BA
Expansion of operating capacity and capability 2817 126.2 155.5 By the end of
in multi-disciplinary specialised freatment and 31 December 2021
diagnosis and upgrade of medical facilities RZE-—F+-f
BREEENRZEMDRENAR =t—HBA
FHRBE R
Expansion of hospital management operations 78.3 - 78.3 By the end of
EABREEZE 31 December 2021
R-F-—F+-R
=t+—H#
Expansion of healthcare operations in the PRC 273.9 157.8 16.1 By the end of
through selective mergers and acquisifions 31 December 2021
BRERUGBEARTENBREY RZE-—F+-A
=t+—H#
Working capital and other general corporate 78.3 68.0 103 By the end of
purposes 31 December 2020
EEESRAM—RRRRE R-Z-2&+-H
=t+—H#
Total 782.6 357.0 425.6
@t

Note: Such timeline is an estimation of the management only and is subject fo change on  Mi&t : G EAAAMR(Z R B R E MM AR TR E

account of the Group’s operating conditions and market conditions from time to time. BB MR R RE TR T AER - 1
In particular, it should not be taken as an indication that any potential transaction is ER HEHTEHRGAAMNBER S IEEE
under negotiation and/or will materialise. Bk SEAEERXSBEEENTR -
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INDEBTEDNESS

Bank Loans

During the year, the Group obtained new bank loan facilities in the aggregate
amount of RMB620.0 million for the purpose of funding the development of
the Phase Il medical facility and financing operations at Kangxin Hospital, in
which RMB235.4 million has been drawn down during the year. The principal
agreements underlying such bank loan facilities include the following:

(i)

(i)

a RMB420.0 million fixed asset facility agreement with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Chongqing Jiangbei Branch, pursuant
to which RMB169.4 million has been drawn down during the year. The
bank loan carried an interest rate at the benchmark lending rate offered
by the People’s Bank of China (adjusted annually from the drawn down
date) and is secured by shares pledged over the entire equity in Kangxin
Hospital held by the Company and its non-controlling shareholder. As at 31
December 2019, the effective interest rate of the secured bank loan is 5.9%
per annum; and

a RMB200.0 million financial leasing agreement with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co., Ltd., pursuant to which RMB66.0
million has been drawn down during the year. The loan carried an
interest rate at the benchmark lending rate offered by the People’s Bank of
China plus 5%, which was fixed at the drawn down date. This agreement
involves a sale and lease back arrangement over certain medical
equipment assets of Kangxin Hospital, pursuant to which such assets
have been transferred to the lender and leased back to Kangxin Hospital,
with an option exercisable by Kangxin Hospital to purchase the assets
at a nominal consideration upon the maturity of the lease. Despite that
such arrangement assumes the legal form of a lease, the Group retains
effective control over such assets; thus, the Group accounted for such
arrangement as a secured loan at amortised cost at an effective interest
rate of 6.74% per annum and repayable in quarterly variable instalments
until September 2027. In addition, such assets have been pledged to the
lender as security throughout the loan period. As at 31 December 2019,
the property, plant and equipment with net book value of RMB58.8 million
had been pledged to secure the banking facility granted.

In connection with the bank loan facilities above, certain of our controlling
shareholders, a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and a related
company controlled by certain of our controlling shareholders provided
guarantees and undertakings in favour of the relevant lender. The financial
assistance provided by certain of our controlling shareholders is exempted from
the connected transaction requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by
virtue of Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

—
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary of business
primarily arising from medical disputes brought on by patients. Provision for
medical disputes is made based on the status of potential and active claims
outstanding as at the end of the relevant period, and primarily taking into
account any judicial appraisal or court determination against the Group. As at 31
December 2019, the total stated claim amount of the Group’s on-going medical
disputes was approximately RMB5.8 million (2018: RMB9.8 million) and there
were certain medical disputes without claim amount stated. Based on the Group’s
assessment, during the year ended 31 December 2019, approximately RMBO0.4
million (2018: RMB1.3 million) had been provided and included in accounts and
other payables of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no contingent liabilities or guarantees
that would have a material impact on the financial position or operation of the
Group.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with
net book value of RMB58.8 million (2018: nil) had been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (2018: the Group had no banking facilities).

Capital commitments

The capital commitments of the Group were primarily attributable to construction
costs relating to the expansion and renovation of the Group’s medical facilities.
As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitments in respect of property, plant
and equipment contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements were RMB332.0 million (2018: RMB116.0 million).

Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial instruments primarily consisted of accounts and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, restricted bank balances, accounts and other payables, amounts due to
a shareholder, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary,
bank loans and lease liabilities. The management of the Company manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

BEERWR DT

NARBE
REBZHIRERFALRBEELTHRB
ANRHEEBAUNRE - BEUDHBEEL
RIEEHEEEREIREME AT A
THREERAARMIEL  ETEEEAEE
B E RO TR ELEHRSERE R - R =F
—NE+ZA=+—H KEBEHKRTHER
BRAUNBREABENAANREBSSEET(Z
T—N\F: ARBISHET) MAZHE
BAGAEYHEESE - REAEEEL
N B2 hF+-_A=+—81
FE AEERHEEHOARBEL4BETT(Z
T—N\F: AREI13EET) WEE Wit
AREBREMBER M AR FKIEF -

RZE-NF+ZA=+—0 TEELE
AREHASEMBERRANEEELEEAR
EORABERER -

BEE A

RZZE-NF+-A=1+—R0 AEEKE
BFHE/SARKBIEETL(ZT—/\F:
T)METYE BERRBEERERR
SEFLNRITRENER(ZF—\F:
AREEIWEIRITRE) o

B AR

ANEBRNENEETEEANHEREEHEE
BREEELDNEENEERAN - R2F
—NE+ZA=+—8 KEBECTLHER
RGBT BERERBEZDE  BELREN
EREERAREINIAET(ZE—N
F:AREN60EET) ©

TRt A

AEENEHTATERRBRERRAE
MR R A FEFABSENEREE -
EHRITER  ROTEHREAS  XRHIR
TTAEER ~ B BRSNS B At B 308 ~ B —
BIRRIE - A — BB QB IR IR R
MR - RITERREEEE - AR FERE
JE & ¥ MBS ¥R iE e L A E - DARBIR MR R
M PREUE E B 1 o

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019

N————

41



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

Exposure to fluctuation in Exchange rates

The proceeds of raised by the Company in its initial public offering of its H Shares
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group deposits certain of its financial
assets in Hong Kong dollars, and is mainly exposed to fluctuation in exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars against RMB. The Group is therefore exposed to
foreign exchange risk.

The Group has not used any derivatives financial instruments to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should such need arise.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio (total interest-bearing bank
loans divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%) was 14.8% (2018: zero).
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of private hospitals, provision
of rehabilitation and other healthcare services, provision of hospital management
services, sales of pharmaceutical products and provision of other services
(including elderly healthcare services) in the PRC.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
sef out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing,
a fair review of the Group’s business during the year, and the probable future
business development of the Group are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 62 to
75 and on pages 11 to 42 respectively of this annual report. Also, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note
37(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Group after the reporting period are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on page 37 of this annual report and in Note 42
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on pages 4 to 5 and Financial Summary on page 238 of this
annual report respectively. In addition, discussions on the relationships with its
staff, customers and suppliers is also contained in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report section on pages 76 to 115 of this annual report. Discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in this
annual report on pages 43 to 44.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is subject to national and local environmental laws and regulations in
the PRC, including with respect to hospital sanitation, diseases control, medical
wastes management, and discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive
substances. The Group is conscious of its environmental protection obligations
and is committed to the sustainable development of the environment and society.
The Group has established internal rules regarding environmental protection and
actively seeks to implement ecofriendly technologies and clinical environment
where feasible. The Group believes that it has maintained good relationship with
the communities. With respect to medical wastes management, the Group has
engaged qualified third parties to arrange proper disposal for all of its hospitals
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

Report of the Board
EEERE

FFREMARZAFHEURSEHAE
T-AFE+ A=+ —HIEFENEER
GAMBRE -

FEXK

AEBEIRATPERELLL S8R =R
FE1E R B A B A AR 7% - SR B fe B IR ARAS
HEEMREHREMRYE (BREFEER
%) e

T A

ARATEMBARNEIZXEHFBEAR
AV IBmARMES

E 3/ 3C1)

ERAEEMEES 2 T 2/E N HEE
ARzl AEBFAXB 2T ERRR
AEEZ AR AREBHER D I &R AF
BFERESAZEEERARERENEA2
A EERBwmEDIT—&1 - I NEH
TRlE R E R B R RBERAI RN AR A W% R
RITFEI7DIBIE - MERRABEFERE
BrEBREEARBANAFRFIELE
BRE WMo — 8RR A MmN
42 - ERMBRARKREFZAEEFAX
BoMo BN AFRFAES B 2 W EH
BRAFRF8EZHBHE - o F

ARIPENAFRETOENSE 2R - 4+
SRERRE —H - BRARBEIREBRINA
RBTHASEAEEYE 2 HBEEN R
MO Z T mABNAREFABEA4E -

RIBRE

AREBETHBEBERNM T RFER AR
BREBRAL  KRES  BEEMER -
HIK S H ARSI E B - AR E
BRI ERBERENRS  BORREET
SHAFERR - AEEDBIERBREN
WEBRE - WIEHBREAITHER NEE
RRBMMEBRERE - ARERS  E8EM
BAERROEE EBEEMEESE K
SECRFCERE=ZTRREAIER
FMOERREMABRETHERE °

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019

N————

43



Report of the Board
EEEWRE

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group had complied with the applicable environment laws and regulations in
the PRC in all material respects.

Please refer to pages from 76 to 115 of this annual report for the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company prepared in compliance with the
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group during the Reporting Period.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 135 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 8 November 2016. The Company’s net proceeds from the
initial public offering amounted to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalent
to HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses. As of the date of this annual report, the Company did not anticipate
any material change to its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus.

For a description of the utilisation of the proceeds from the initial public offering,
please refer to pages 38 to 39 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has a highly diversified customer portfolio, including individual patients
as well as business corporations and government administrations who purchase
healthcare services for their employees. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group’s largest customer or the five largest customers in aggregate
confributed to less than 1% of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed to approximately 27.8% and
69.7%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases, including pharmaceuticals,
medical consumables, medical equipment, construction and renovation
services, electricity supply and non-healthcare related ancillary management
services (“Total Purchases”). The Group’s largest supplier, Dongguan Yuheng
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (3R 5271 #4 18 B %25 BR 2 &) ("Yuheng”), accounted
for approximately 27.8% of the Group’s Total Purchases. Yuheng has been an
Independent Third Party during the Reporting Period. Yuheng is a wholesaler of
pharmaceuticals and medical equipment primarily to hospitals in the PRC. The
Group's relationship with Yuheng began in 2010. The Group has a long term
agreement that does not impose any minimum purchasing commitment on the
Group and the Group may place orders with Yuheng at its own discretion. The
pricing of the relevant products is determined at the time the relevant order is
placed with reference to market price. The agreement sets out the framework of
delivery, seftlement, inspection and quality control, product defects, compensation
arrangements for delivery failure, medical equipment training, packaging and
warranty. The agreement is for an indefinite period but the Group may terminate
it if Yuheng commits a material breach or fails to deliver the relevant products
within a prescribed period. The Group has a 90-days credit period with Yuheng.

None of the Directors, the Supervisors or any of their respective close associates
(as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules), or any Shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors, direct or indirect own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital has any interests in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2019.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the charitable contributions and other
donations made by the Group amounted to approximately RMB2.0 million in
aggregate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December 2019 are set
out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the reporting period up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai
Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during the reporting period and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Mr. Chen Shaoming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Wang Shaofeng
Mr. Yue Chunyang

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and
in which a Director or a Supervisor, or any entity connected with any Director or
Supervisor, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as of
31 December 2019 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the
Controlling Shareholders has or had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance, whether for the provision of services or otherwise,
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the Reporting Period.
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NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Agreement, the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken that they will not, and will also procure their respective close
associate(s) (as appropriate) (other than the Group) not to, either directly or
indirectly, compete with the Group’s principal business (which is primarily to
provide hospital services) and granted to the Group the option for new business
opportunities, option for acquisitions and pre-emptive rights. During the Reporting
Period, the Company did not receive any Offer Notice (as defined under the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus)
from the Controlling Shareholders.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders
confirming their compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2019 for disclosure in this annual report. The independent
non-executive Directors have also reviewed the Controlling Shareholders’
compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2019.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive Director.
No other Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules) had engaged in or had any interest
in nay business which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has purchased appropriate liability insurance for its Directors,
Supervisors and senior management. The permitted indemnity provisions are set
out in such liability insurance.

Saved as disclosed above, no permitted indemnity provision was made by the
Company during the Reporting Period and no permitted indemnity provision was
in force as atf the date of this annual report.

Report of the Board
EEERE

T o F i

RIBTHEF W EREREARESFH
SUYREREELETHEA (ER) (K%
& R QI\DTAE%‘EF‘%;,\ZKEIE’JIK%
BEEERHEBRRSE #F YR TA
KEMEGHRSERE  WREEERE
SRBERE - NWMEHA - ARE W B
BRRZFEERNRLBEN (EERBRERE
HAAIROZERR AR OBRR ] —#0) o

ARFEREIRBRRER  ARBE_T
—AF+ A=t Rl AEATEE
BHENERE AR RRE - B
HOEFTEENABRRAE TN
F+ A= AL EMT R hE -

EEMERANESHFAL

SEMEURANESFALTHFEBEHR
REMIEHRARMENTRI2 -

ARENELEEHEREIFNTEZOMS
RBEHA BEEMEEERNEXRER
B -

EERBFEREB T 2EDS

RBEMA - BEEFAREIEAZIBEA
(EERBELMAR) ST MAEALREE
EBEZRAMEEBRBEF XA BB F
MR RN ERHEA TR o

BHER 2 BERX

ﬁ@ﬂaﬁ%% CEELEREEARRE
BENETRR - BAFNBERXNRE
%E\ ZEEERRA

B B R ERSN - AR FR A R EE L
AR BEGRY - BERAFHRAT
150 4 A ] 288/ A BB R DT AE 2K

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019

N————

47



Report of the Board

EEE

W

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the
Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as nofified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he/she is keen to taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the registered
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were

as follows:

B5

WE&ﬁEﬁﬂA

BN

BE-_F-NFT_A=+—0 ALTE
¥ ERRBHTRAARKARLHAER

bic| w/?i. (E%ﬁ %&Hﬁ

= &1 58 XV EL)

ZB - HERG RERETEERER S

&Hﬂ

S EPIEXVERE TR FE 8 #AME AN

NERBEMR AN ED AR (BEEEF
$ET)§.m%&Hﬂf"iﬂﬂﬁﬂZEZSMX%ENE%‘JZ

%&*{’E%ﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁ& B
NERES NS
it RARIFIRE

s ZAH A B AR
= {5191 55 352 1'7@_%2)3.:5
E<FRIZBRME RN B MBS

B PR ROR B AT
(@)  The Company @ AT
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate  the Company’s
percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital®
same class® EARRT
Number HEER EBRTERE
Name of Director Class of Shares  Nature of inferest of Shares B A7 P 4 HBEE
EEpME B 10 38 Al RS ROBE HMOBEIEY BOEIEY
Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Inferest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
TEBRE NE K agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company"; interest in a (4 8)
controlled corporoﬂonm
BRRALAED E’]Tﬁz’;m
tEREEN—TT":
EHEE SR
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
PR A 5t & NE K agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company": interest in a (fF &)
controlled corporation®; family
interest of spouse[‘”
BRRA R A 017 5
ERERN—T": RRAEH
EENEEY  IEEBRGE
/\ (4
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Inferest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
EHa+ W& agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company"; interest in a (#F8)

—_—

controlled corporation®; family
interest of spouse“”
ﬁf‘ﬁﬁ%iﬁ Bl Y R
ERERE—A" RZEH
EEERY EBE KRR

ﬁ:u. ]

48 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——



Notes:

M

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Pursuant to a concert party agreement, each of Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin has agreed to jointly control their
respective inferests in the Company and the decisions as to the business and
operations of the Group shall be in accordance with the unanimous consent
of all of them. Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

As of 31 December 2019, Kanghua Group (held as to 97.46% by Mr. Wang
Junyang) held 197,500,000 Domestic Shares and Xingye Group (held as to
80% by Mr. Wang Junyang) held 25,000,000 Domestic Shares. As Mr. Wang
Junyang controls more than one third of the voting power at the general
meeting of each of Kanghua Group and Xingye Group, Mr. Wang Junyang
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which each of
Kanghua Group and Xingye Group is interested by virtue of the SFO.

As of 31 December 2019, Xingda Property (held as to 50% each by Mr. Chen
Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin) held 27,500,000 Domestic Shares. As each of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin controls more than one third of the
voting power at the general meeting of Xingda Property, each of Mr. Chen
Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin is deemed to be interested in the same number
of Shares in which Xingda Property is interested by virtue of the SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

The shareholding percentages are calculated on the basis of 250,000,000
Domestic Shares and 84,394,000 H Shares issued by the Company as of 31
December 2019.
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(b)  Associated corporations of the Company

(b) AN EIEEEEE

Approximate
percentage inferest
in the associated

corporation
Name of Director Associated corporation Nature of interest 1 AB B
EENE ML E ERMtE EEMOBEIL
Mr. Wang Junyang Kanghua Group Beneficial owner 97.46%
FEHRE RELE EREEA
Mr. Wang Junyang Xingye Group Beneficial owner 80%
EFEHRE R EE ERBEAA
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Xingda Property Beneficial owner; family interest of spouse 100%
BREE A% 5 4 HEY R ERBEAA  BEBNRGER
Ms. Wang Aigin Xingda Property Beneficial owner, family interest of spouse 100%
Byt YR ERBEAEAN EBNRGER

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2019, to the knowledge of the Board,
none of the Directors, the Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required fo be (i) nofified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors, the Supervisors and chief
executives of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFOJ; (i) recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or {iii) nofified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2019, according fo the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO and so far is known to, or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity had an interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly and indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

Interests in the Shares of the Company

E{aT 8 B % 2N AR B 5% 3 A - i 25
AR B D B #E 2

(a)

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate the Company’s

percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital
same class EARAT
Number HEER BBITERAR
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares B 12 B i #a%E
me/ EH % 47 %8 5 RS BH&E #BAEIE HOEsH
Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
TEBEE NE & regarding inferest in the Company; (Long position]
interest in a controlled corporation® (&)
BRARADEERN HAERER
B—0 REEHLEE R
Ms. Wang Aici Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
FTEELLT NE & regarding inferest in the Company” (Long position]
BERARAEROHAEAER (177)
— 50
Kanghua Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 197,500,000 79% 59.06%
REEHE NE & ExnEEA (Long position]
(FR)
Xingye Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
B E NE K = ET?E BA (Long position]
(177)
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
BRAE A% 5 NE R regarding interest in the Company™. ~ (Long position]
interest in a controlled corporation®; (&)
family interest of spouse"!
BERAR RO HE
f’EFﬂ’iﬁnE’] H0 RR AR
R BB R ik Em
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
ITEYRL NE & regarding inferest in the Company; (Long position]
interest in a controlled corporation®; (F8)
family interest of spouse*
BEANAR RO Z
EREREM— 70 REEGEES
BmY: BRI REERY
S —
EREERERMHERARF 572019 5]
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Approximate

percentage of

Approximate the Company’s
percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital

same class 1EARAT
Number HEER BBITERAR
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares B 43 A4 k]
wE/ B % 47 48 5 RS BH&E #BOEIE HSPEsH
Xingda Property Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 27,500,000 1% 8.22%
BEY % NE % ERBEBA (Long position]
(#FE)
New China Asset H Shares Investment manager 8,689,000 10.30% 2.60%
Management (Hong HAR RELIR (Long position)
Kong) Limited (177)
NEEETHE (BB)
BRAR
Lin Lijun ("Mr. Lin") H Shares Interest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
MAE (THEE]) HAR corporation®® (Long position)
REEHEB R RS (H#FE)
LVC Assefs Management  H Shares Interest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
Limited H corporation® (Long position)
REEHEB R RS (HFE)
LVC KH Investment L.P. H Shares Beneficial owner 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
H% ERBEBA (Long position]
(FE)
Haitian (HK) Holdings H Shares Beneficial owner 5,052,600 5.98% 1.51%
Limited (formerly named ~ HP% ERAEA (Long position)
as "Haitian (HK) Financial (177)
Development Limited”)
BXR (BB ERERRA
(RMEEX (BE) 2@
HERARAR]
Zhan Yongxiang H Shares Beneficial owner 5,021,966 5.95% 1.50%
EoXHE HAR EREAEA (Long posifion]
(FE)
Mr. Wang Mingsong H Shares Interest in a controlled 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
("Mr. Wang Mingsong”)  HJ% corporation® (Long position)
FHRREE REEHEB R R (#FE)
([EBAREE]D
Bo An Investments Pte, Ltd.  H Shares Interest in a controlled 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
("Bo An Investments”) H % corporation® (Long position)
BRIREALABRAA REFEH AR R R (#FE)
([EZHRE])
Huaxia International H Shares Beneficial owner 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
Company Limited HAR EmlEEA (Long position)
("Huaxia International”) (17%)
ZEREERAA
(TEEEER])
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Pursuant to a concert party agreement, each of Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin has agreed to jointly control their
respective inferests in the Company and the decisions as to the business and
operations of the Group shall be in accordance with the unanimous consent
of all of them. Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wang Junyang holds 97.46% and 80% in Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group, respectively. As Mr. Wang Junyang controls more than one third of the
voting power at the general meeting of each of Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group, Mr. Wang Junyang is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which each of Kanghua Group and Xingye Group is interested by
virtue of the SFO.

Each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin holds 50% in Xingda Property.
As each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin controls more than one
third of the voting power at the general meeting of Xingda Property, each of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aiqin is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Xingda Property is interested by virtue of the
SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed fo be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Lin holds 100% in LVC Assets Management Limited, which in turns holds
100% in LVC KH Investment L.P. Each of Mr. Lin and LVC Assets Management
Limited is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
LVC KH Investment L.P. is interested by virtue of SFO.

Mr. Wang Mingsong holds 100% in Bo An Investments, which in turns holds
100% in Huaxia International. Each of Mr. Wang Mingsong and Bo An
Investments is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Huaxia International is interested by virtue of the SFO.
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M

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
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(b)  Substantial shareholders of other members of the Group b) AEBEEMKEARNEZRRE
Approximate
percentage
interest held
by the substantial
Name of member shareholder
Name of shareholder of the Group Nature of interest FERREFE
BREEEB AEERE QA LR ERMEE BB BE D
Kangdi Enferprise? Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
Ei-¢ CERER ERBEAA
Ms. Zhang Dandan™® Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
SR FHE 2 0 CERER EREEA
Ms. Wang Aier" Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 13%
FTER LM CERER ERBEAA
Notes: Bt 5
(11 Pursuantto an entrusted management agreement, each of Kangdi Enterprise, N BEZTEERZ BHEXE  RKY

Ms. Zhang Dandan and Ms. Wang Aier irrevocably vested their entire voting
power at any general meeting of Renkang Hospital to the Company.

(2)  Kangdi Enterprise is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Zhengren and as to 50% by
Ms. Wang Keying, all of whom are members of the Wang Family and cousins
of Mr. Wang Junyang.

(3)  Ms. Zhang Dandan is a member of the Wang Family and aunt-in-law of Mr.
Wang Junyang.

(4)  Ms. Wang Aier is a member of the Wang Family and aunt of Mr. Wang
Junyang.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2019, to the knowledge of the
Directors, no other person had, or were deemed or taken to have inferest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the registry kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period.

—_—
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR EERESNERHONEEESN
DEBT SECURITIES FER|

FA 3R 45 H X9 T fa] B S 2N 2 7] sk E AT A T R
DR EER—F  HEE EERNAAA
SETHAE (BERESE ZRERAR
18552 F &) TS (R e sk - Al S A A
BRI E bk A B HO R 17 S 15 55 T S o

BEXS
BE_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HIEFE K
REAEHMABRELTRANFEVAEREET
RBRFHEMENRHZBEREL - ARH
HMIERRRAE T X BT

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, the Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with
respect fo connected transactions and continuing connected transactions. Details
of the Group’s non-exempt connected fransactions are set out below:

Continuing Connected Transactions

Actual
transaction value

Annual cap
for the year ended

31 December 2019

for the year ended

(RMB million) 31 December 2019
(Note) (RMB million)
Nature of the connected BE-Z—NF BE-Z—N&F
Continuing connected person’s interest in the +ZA=+—8 +ZHB=+—H
transaction under transaction LTFENFEELR I FEENER
UT&FEITH Connected person =X ZHHEER (AR¥EET) RBEE
SERER S BE RS GES (ARBEET)
The Kanghua Hospital Lease  Kanghua Group  The land and buildings under the 34.0 333
Agreement RES lease are owned by Kanghua
RERREERZE Group and leased to Kanghua
Hospital
MEELSENHEERXEE R
THTRESR A+ AZEEY)
The Renkang Hospital Lease  Tongli Enterprise  The land and buildings under 5.6 5.6

mHE % the lease are owned by Tongli
Enterprise and leased to Renkang
Hospital
HRANEXEABELREE &
BT CRER N L FEEY

Agreement
CRBREESHH

Wi BEEFEEREER AR CREREER
EEEERE_E-_—F+-A=+—
HIE=FOFELRIAARFAH A=
T NE+-_A+NLBNRE -

Note: The renewal of annual caps under each of the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement
and the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2021is set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2018.

—
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The Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Kanghua Hospital (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
entered into the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement with Kanghua Group in
relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying Kanghua Hospital from
Kanghua Group for a term of 10 years commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2025.

Rent

The rent payable under the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement is determined
with reference to (i) the actual GFA used by Kanghua Hospital during the year
(which shall not be less than 254,896.1 sq.m.); and (i) the monthly rental per sq.m.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the actual GFA used by Kanghua Hospital
was 311,284.0 sq.m. and the monthly rental per sq.m. was RMB9.0.

The Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Renkang Hospital (a 57%-owned subsidiary of the Company),
entered into the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement with Tongli Enterprise in
relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying Renkang Hospital from
Tongli Enterprise for a term of 10 years commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2025.

Rent

The rent payable under the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement is determined
with reference to (i) the actual GFA used by Renkang Hospital during the year
(which shall not be less than 73,265.6 sq.m.); and (i) the monthly rental per sq.m.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the actual GFA used by Renkang Hospital
was 77,449.7 sg.m. and the monthly rental per sq.m. was RMB6.0.

—_—
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Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive Directors of the
Company

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing

connected transactions, and after due and careful enquiry with the management
of the Group, confirmed that such transactions were:

(i carried outin the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) made on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i)  carried out according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The independent non-executive Directors are satisfied that they have received
and reviewed sufficient information to give the confirmations above.

Confirmation of the auditor

As to the requirement set forth in Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the
auditor of the Company has written to the Board to confirm that it has not been
aware of any matter which leads it fo believe the aforesaid continued connected
fransactions:

(il have not been approved by the Board;

(il arenot carried out in accordance with the related transaction agreement in
any material respects; and

il  exceed the annual cap.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Apart from disclosed in this annual report, none of the related party fransactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, which are subject to announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company had not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
reporting period, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the
Reporting Period.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the PRC
Company Law which oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out
in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

As part of the cash management policy fo manage excess cash, the Group had
invested in certain financial product issued by a PRC commercial bank to achieve
higher interest income without interfering with its business operations or capital
expenditures during the Reporting Period.

The Group carefully balances its needs for interest income and the risks
associated with financial products by investing in simple financial products issued
by reputable financial institutions. The Company’s senior management, including
its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, is involved in these investment
decisions. The Company’s senior management periodically reviews investment
strategies and investment portfolios to ensure they achieve the Group’s cash
management objectives. Before making a proposal to invest in financial products,
the head of the finance department of the relevant hospital or Group company
must assess the cash flow and operational needs and capital expenditures of
such hospital or company. If the cash flow exceeds its operational needs and an
appropriate low-risk investment opportunity is available, the head of the relevant
finance department will submit the investment proposal to the Company’s
senior management for approval. Regardless of investment size, a proposal
to invest in any investment products must first be reviewed and approved by
the Company’s chief financial officer, who is also responsible for reviewing the
relevant documentation and negotiation with the counterparty. After the chief
financial officer approves the proposal, it must also be approved by (i) the chief
executive officer, if the investment amount exceeds RMB10 million; or (i) the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, if the investment
amount exceeds RMB100 million.

In assessing a proposal o invest in a financial product, a number of criteria must
be met, including:
o the term of the financial product should generally not exceed one year;

o the proposed investment must not interfere with our business operations or
capital expenditures;

o the financial product must be issued by a reputable bank with which we

have a long-term relationship, preferably exceed five years; and

o the investment portfolio of the financial product should generally bear low
risk.

—_—
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting
Period. Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 62 to 75
of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and fo the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, the Company
had maintained the public float of the issued Shares as required under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE HONG
KONG LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20,
13.21 and 13.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to aftend and vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 May 2020 to 23
June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30pm on 22 May 2020.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed above, there are no important events after the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2019. A resolution will be proposed for approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor
of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Wang Junyang
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
20 April 2020
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee, in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Articles, has conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle,
and has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed cautiously
the operation and development plans of the Company and provided reasonable
suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored
and supervised the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws and regulations of
the PRC and the Articles, and in the interests of the Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the Report of the Board and audited
consolidated financial statements proposed by the Board for presentation at the
AGM. We are of the opinion that the Directors and the chief executives and other
senior management of the Company are able to strictly observe their fiduciary
duties, to act diligently, to exercise their authority faithfully in the best interests
of the Company and to work in accordance with the Articles. We are witnessing
better operations and internal controls.

Up to the date of approval of this report, none of the Directors and chief executives
and senior management members of the Company had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed upon
the interests of the Shareholders. None of them was found to be in breach of any
laws and regulations or the Articles. The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with
the achievement and cost effectiveness of the Company during the Reporting
Period and has great confidence in the future prospects of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Supervisory Committee

Chen Shaoming
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
20 April 2020
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The Board is committed to promote good corporate governance to safeguard
the interests of the Shareholders and believes that maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company and would
provide a practice enhancing greater accountability and transparency and
meeting the expectations of the Group’s stakeholders. The Company will continue
to review and enhance its corporate governance to ensure that it will continue to
meet the applicable requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai
Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 116 to 127 of this
annual report. The overall management and supervision of the Company’s
operation and the function of formulating overall business strategies were vested
in the Board.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
has met the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and the requirement that the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.

—_—
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The Company has received annual confirmation on independence from each
independent non-executive Director pursuant to the requirements under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. The Company considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

The CG Code requires the Directors to disclose to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identities and the time involved. The Directors have
agreed to disclose to the Company their other commitments in a timely manner.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Wang Junyang is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board. Mr.
Chen Wangzhi is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky is a senior management member and the
chief financial officer of the Company. The three of them have separate roles.

Relationship between Directors and Chief Executives

Certain Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company are members of
the Wang Family. Please refer to the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” on pages 116 to 127 of this annual report for details.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the business of the Company. It delegates day-to-day management
of the Company to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company within the control and the authority framework set by the Board. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters of the Company, including:
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, recommendation
for appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. For details, please refer to the Arficles.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out
in this corporate governance report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors in respect of legal actions against them.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
since the date of the 2019 interim report of the Company.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The joint
company secretaries of the Company update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution fo the Board.

Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and refreshed by,
inter alig, the following means:

° participation in continuous professional training seminars and/or
conferences and/or courses and/or workshops on subjects relating to,
inter alia, corporate governance, directors’ duties and legal and regulatory
changes organised and/or arranged by the Company and/or professional
bodies and/or lawyers;

o reading materials provided from time to time by the Company to Directors
regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties; and

o reading news, journals, magazines and/or other reading materials
regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct of the
Company for Directors’ and Supervisors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and the Supervisors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Reporting Period. Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of
unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or the Shares are
prohibited from dealing in the Shares during the black-out period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors entered into a service contract with the Company on 11
October 2016 and renewed on 8 June 2018. According to these service contracts,
each Director’s term of office (a) three years commencing from the date when
their respective appointments were approved by the Shareholders; and (b) subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts
may be renewed in accordance with the Articles and applicable laws, rules or
regulations.

None of the Directors or the Supervisors has entered or is proposed to enter
into any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision
A.1.1 of the CG Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to aftend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of
the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with agenda and relevant information in advance
before a Board meeting. They have access to the senior management and the
joint company secretaries of the Company at all times and, upon reasonable
request, may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the secretary to the Board with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records. Minutes of Board meetings
and committee meetings record sufficient detail of the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of Board Meetings and committee meetings
are sent fo the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which a meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board convened four meetings. A summary of RREHAR  EESEHANAEE - EFH
the attendance record of the Directors is set out in the table below: RSB 2HN T &
Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2019
REZE-Z-NEF+-A=+-HLEEHRH Attendance rate
Name of Directors EZHF LR/ AHEERAY HE®
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman) TEBERE(EE) 4/4 100%
Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Execufive Officer] R 5t & (7748 3 4/4 100%
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon Vice Chairman) TERELE(FEE) 4/4 100%
Ms. Wang Aigin FTEHLT 4/4 100%
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Lv Yubo AEREE 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B#g Rt 4/4 100%
Dr. Chen Keji BRAEREE 4/4 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BRERLE 4/4 100%
During the Reporting Period, the Company convened one annual general RBREAR KRR -_ZE—hLESA+ =
meeting on 12 June 2019. All Directors attended the annual general meeting, HZBM—AREBFAE - B EE}B‘Z%E&

apart from Mr. Lv Yubo and Dr. Chen Keji, who could not attend due to pre-
arranged business commitments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, to handle particular
responsibilities of the Board and the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of
the Company are established with defined written terms of reference that have
been uploaded to the respective websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company, and are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with Rules 3.21 and
3.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code and the roles and responsibilities delegated to the Audit
Committee by the Board. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the
appointment of external auditor; reviewing the Group’s financial information and
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control procedures; supervising the Company’s internal audit system and its
implementation; reviewing connected transactions and their compliance with the
relevant terms and rules; reviewing the interim and annual results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval; and other matters that the
Board has authorised it to deal with.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr.
Chen Keji.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings. A
summary of the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out in
the table below:

TRERRE

RBEHRRN  ERZBGEH-EE-&F
ZEREEXNEBHFELEMBEN T

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2019

REZE-Z-NF+-A=+-HLEEHRH Attendance rate
Name of commitiee member ZEEHENSA HE/THEERAE HEE
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B8Rt 3/3 100%
Dr. Chen Keji GIES 3/3 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREfELE 3/3 100%
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEET
The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of ZARNAFRVIELEE S SHEBESHERR
reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the roles (P& S4<FRIRIIRE » LA &é%ALTﬁk%
and responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The ZEeHAENRE -EREZE€T 288
Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for preparing the procedures and &R R T%%& MEREEBIRRANRE
criteria for determining the candidates for Directors and the senior management 27 &R - W H H E R MEEETIILE

of the Company and conducting preliminary review on their qualifications and
credentials, including proposing to the Board on its size and composition in
accordance with the Company’s operating results, assets and shareholding
structure; reviewing the procedures and criteria for determining the candidates for
Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company and making proposals
to the Board; looking for the qualified candidates for Directors and chief executive
officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for the Directors and
chief executive officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for
the other senior management, on which the Board needs to resolve and other
matters that the Board has authorized it to deal with.

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr. Wang Junyang
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), and two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr. Chen Keiji.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy. Please refer to “Board Diversity Policy”
on page 70 of this annual report for more details.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry
out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. A
summary of the attendance record of the Nomination Committee members is set
out in the fable below:

RBEHN - REZESAR - AEH =

A
HEBEEREHRCHEMEHN T K :

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2019

REZ-E-NE+-A=+-HLEEHH Attendance rate
Name of committee member ZEEHERR HE/THESENE HE =
Mr. Wang Junyang TEBKE N 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BEg Rt n 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREELE N 100%
PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS RAEEEF

When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Nomination Committee evaluates the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board, and identifies any
special requirements for the vacancy. The Nomination Committee will then identify
suitable candidates and convene a Nomination Committee meeting to discuss
and vote on the nomination of directors and make recommendation fo the Board
on the candidatels) for directorship.

CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee will consider candidates who possess the particular
skills, experience and expertise that will best complement the Board effectiveness
at that fime.

In considering the overall balance of the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Committee will give due consideration to the board diversity policy of the
Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for formulating the criteria for and conducting
assessment on the Directors and senior management as well as determining
and reviewing the remuneration policies and plans for the Directors and senior
management, including formulating remuneration plans and proposals in
accordance with the terms of reference of the Directors and senior management
and the importance of their positions as well as the remuneration benchmarks
for the relevant positions in other comparable companies; the remuneration
plans and proposals including but not limited to criteria, procedures and
main assessment system for performance assessment, main proposals and
regulations on award and punishment; reviewing the performance of the
Directors and senior management and conducting annual assessment on their
performance and results; supervising the implementation of the remuneration
policies of the Company and other matters that the Board has authorised it
to deal with. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in paragraph B.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules (i.e. make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management member).

—_—
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The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Remuneration Committee], Mr.
Yeung Ming Lai, and one executive Director, Ms. Wang Aigin.

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy is to enable the Directors
and senior management to be competitively rewarded having regard to the
Group’s operating results, roles and responsibilities and individual performance
of the direcfors and senior management and comparable market practices.

Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management as named in the
Prospectus (for the avoidance of doubt, excluding Directors and Supervisors) by
band during the Reporting Period is set out below:

CE AN

JJ:%E./D-*F

FNZEEhMA BN TESRESR
f'ﬁi( TMEBREEXR)  BHEBRENR—
BHTESRIE %bz’ziﬂﬂﬁk

AEEFHEENEEAEARESRD
REBEEEEAEMOGLELEE - AL
W LA R E BB AE DA B RERIRSR -
E AL BRI - AT AR A
55 -

FHREEHe R ANGESFATHFEBEH
REFE P BREMENRI12 -

REREHAR - BERERTIRANSHERRE
RREHM (ARt TREEENES)
B EE ST

Number of individuals

Remuneration band iR Ef8 A
HK$1 - HK$500,000 175702 500,000 7T -
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T & 1,000,000 7% 7T 5
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T 21,500,000 7 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,000 %8 7T 1
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. A’  RHEHR > FWEESEH— A 83 o &
summary of the aftendance record of the Remuneration Committee membersis BHZE &K B HEL B EH N T K
set out in the table below:
Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2019
REZE-E-NF+-A=+t-HLEEDRH Attendance rate
Name of commitiee member ZEEHENSA R/ THEERAE HEE
Ms. Wang Aigin TEHuL " 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BH#gEE n 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BRERLE n 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy, which will form the basis of the Board's
considerations in 2019. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing its effectiveness and achieving
a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavors to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate o the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision of all Board appointments
should be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including but not limited to:

(@)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, Supervisors and senior management; and

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

DIRECTORS” AND AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 which give a frue
and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are published in a timely manner.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which are put
to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement prepared by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 128 to 134 of this annual report.

EFESULEE

EZCCRMEFTSLLCER - UTHwE
EBRNOABREERR  WHKRES
ER_T-NFZENEE - ARFAEED
VHERGLTTICEETENNE  EERD
HYBUYBRSKFOERER - ARAH
NEREESERE KRS TEHS
AEBSFE  BAARAREBHBR &
EAR IR A — R ST LB R ER
BREFARRER - Fik  SUEMBEE S
Tk BELR - KL MBANRGFD -
BEESEmMRLRTE  BUARENR
BAKSEFTSTROEHOREME B

(@ FHRARBELEERBRETETL
EBEATAREHEENER

bl ZHLEBEFE EENREAEEE
MBI EEREER &

0 ZBFEMEEARREBTERMERE
KRR K H R

SERZYMHH M FRRETH
BHRENEE

EEAREGEBE_2—NE+ A
=S+-RILFEZGANBREOEE &
Ut B AR 40 2 5 A R ) A S B )
RARAEENBGERLRALRE - BF
NAEREABRRAEENGA N BEE
R i

ARREEEREFSRHEMFTHERE
B FEEERENHRESTSRIZLELR
AlH) AR A M ISR E T RITFE - AR R
ExexRBREREARTRE - MREA]
REORHMIEN -

E=UFHMEEREEMFRIEENERER
THEERER  AlRE N AREREL L6
BREANES

ARABZBIMBLARBEGRE T HHRROR
&= B AR B0 PR B0 AR F 128 2134
B BB E] -

—_—

70 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
—_—



Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness at least annually. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed. The systems and internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has in place infernal control procedures in ensuring any confinuing
connected fransactions are conducted in compliance with their terms and the
applicable requirements under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

An internal audit function has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant
management. The internal audit function is to ensure the risk management and
internal control procedures are in place and function properly as intended. The
internal audit function also reviews the continuing connected transactions of
the Group and the adequacy and effectiveness of the relevant internal control
procedures. The results of the internal audit are reported to the Audit Committee.
The independent non-executive Directors, in performing their review of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group, also take into account the
findings of the internal audit function.

Clinical risks are particularly relevant to the Group’s hospital operations and a
key area of the Group’s clinical governance. The Group has adopted a three-tier
risk management approach to identify, assess, mitigate and handle these risks.
At the first line of defence, the hospitals’ front-line staff, guided by clearly defined
procedures, are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with day-to-day operations. The hospital managers and executives,
as the second line of defence, implement rules and procedures, provide
coaching and support, and deal with, and analyse unusual and unexpected fact
patterns and outcomes detected or anticipated by their staff. They ensure that
risks are within the acceptable range in the ordinary course of business and that
the first line of defence is effective. They also continuously benchmark against
international best practice and collate lessons learnt from past incidents to
identify areas of improvements. As the final line of defence, the Audit Committee
and the internal audit function of the Company ensure that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection, monitoring and making
recommendations to improve the relevant processes. On an ongoing basis,
each hospital of the Group reviews and assesses the status of potential risks
which may impact on its ability to achieve its business objectives and/or those of
the Group. This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
system of internal controls continues to remain relevant, adequately addresses
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews are
regularly reported to the senior management and the Board. Such top-down and
company-wide risk management system is intended to cover every aspect of the
Group's clinical operations.
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The Board from time to time and at least annually reviews the significant risk
factors affecting the operations of the Group as a whole and is cognizant that
the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic has become a relevant risk factor to the
hospital operations (including, in particular, the health and safety of patients and
staff) of the Group. The COVID-19 pandemic is rapidly developing, and it remains
to be seen whether it will result in material and long-term disruptions to the
Group’s operations. Please also refer to the paragraph headed “The Impact of
COVID-19" in the Management Discussion and Analysis section.

The Audit Committee was satisfied as to the implementation and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control procedures. There were
no matters of material concerns relating to financial, operational or compliance
controls. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group during the Reporting Period.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls undertaken
within the Group, the external auditor also assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain key risk management and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’'s recommendations are
adopted and enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be
made.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(il is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

(il conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and regulations;

(il has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website. These policies and guidelines also identify
who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their responsibilities
for communications with stakeholders; and

(ivi  has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation of the
policy and relevant trainings are also provided.

The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Company
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Company is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

—

72

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——

BEEeTHEE)VBFEEFELRERE
BRELNEANLBEZR UTREBIETAH
COVID-19 & BB AL [E BB iE & A A
EERAX(BFE(CER)RAREEZEAEN
EENZE) o COVID-19E B FEMEELE
ELAeBRERRHATEHAASENES S
B SHELHEEEN B AT — T
[COVID-19MI R & | — KL o

BEZER B G YA K EREREEMA BTG
BEFNERMAMIERENE - H RN
B EBERERENNEAFTH - EFEY
¥R E B R 5 B R B B I M A B AR AR R
MR MEREIME

P 2 B AN 52 B N O L B B IR AN R R4 S
SNER A% BURD IR B T T 2 Al b B IR A A D
ZHIE TR M R AA R ETTRE  EREDE
EBEZH B - EEERBRT - NAF]
BRANSMNRIZ BRED ) 255 - W HT AR EIEMA
R YR I 1T O ©

WEH SR

B 12 A 2 A B B R P A R BB I
/NI

il HMBEREBEZFNMBEGRIEEFEL
MRBAAENEE METKREE
MR BEREABEERARTHE
B RIS BN e

il MEERZEIEREZMER

s

(ii) BBVBRE AERHEBHEER
CJEIZ M - FEHR M M B A OE S

i3

B RENAKRE -KEE DM
MIEREE AR EEH TRERE
B3| o EEBUR R IE S| IR B AR
NRRENZE S AAREFNSRES
EBENEML R

S O B

vy CRMEEBABRRT BBABRDN
BB - AR FEAREE -

ARAEREVEATHERTERAA
FEBEABHEE  BIFEEBRERLME
ERPIFTAFFZ 2B IEXA - HERA AR
ZEPER - AR EHERE S ERRE -
MRARNRBBRTERFTATORERE
KA RREBHRE - ARERIEAAR
WERH S - ERLAUBM KB E T R IRHEE
B FERERBENEMMNZENEE - A2
AR NERA S BEPAAEANER R
EXRFETMERERLRE  JBBERE
AREENBERIRE -



Corporate Governance ReporT

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total fee paid/payable in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by the Group’s auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, is set out below:

CE AN

JJ:%E./D-*F

ZEENEN &
BE_Z—NWF+_A=+—BIFE =&«

EERHEED « WERS B TRENE
SRR RBEN, NN EREIRNT :

RMB’000
ARET T
Audit services BEBIT R
— Audit services in connection with the consolidated financial - ARG E P TE MR EFT RS
statements 2,694
Non-Audit services IEBE RS
— Review of interim condensed consolidated financial statements - 25 F EAES BA 47 & B 5 3R &% 510
Total =) 3,204

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chau Hing Ling of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as one of the joint company
secretaries. Her primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky, the chief financial officer of the Company and the other joint company
secretary.

During the reporting period, both of Ms. Chau Hing Ling and Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board believes that effective communication with investors is essential for
establishing investors’ confidence and attracting new investors. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information which enables investors to make the best investment decision.

The general meetings of the Company provide an important channel for
communications between the Board and the Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board, as well as chairmen of the three Board committees or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committee and where appropriate,
the independent Board committee, will be available to answer questions at
Shareholders’ meetings.

Published documents together with the latest corporate information and news are
available on the Company’s website at http://www.kanghuagp.com. Investors
can also communicate with the Company through email at kh@kanghuagp.com.
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DIVIDEND CONSIDERATIONS

The payment of dividend is to allow the Shareholder to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s
operations and future growth. The declaration, form, frequency and amount
of dividend to be paid by the Company must comply with relevant laws and
regulations and the Articles. In deciding whether to recommend any dividend, the
Board will take into account a number of factors, including financial performance,
reserves, operations and liquidity requirements and development plans of the
Company. The Board will comprehensively consider other relevant factors as
appropriate from time to time. The Company does not have a fixed dividend
distribution ratio.

PRC laws require that dividends be paid only out of the profit for the year
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects
from the generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions, including
the IFRS. Distributions from the Company and its subsidiaries may also become
subject to any restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities, convertible bond
instruments or other agreements that the Company or its subsidiaries may enter
into in the future.

The amount of any dividend actually distributed to the Shareholders will depend
upon the Group’s earnings and financial condition, operating requirements,
capital requirements and any other conditions that the Directors may deem
relevant and may be subject to approval of the Shareholders. The Board has
an absolute discretion to recommend any dividend for any year. There is no
assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or distributed in any
year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of an EGM shall proceed in accordance
with the procedures set forth below.

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares with the
voting power at the proposed meeting have the right to request the Board to
hold the EGM or a class meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative
regulations and the Articles, the Board shall give written feedback to agree or
disagree to hold the EGM or the class meeting within ten days after receiving the
proposal.

If the Board agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting, a meeting notice shall
be given within five days after the Board makes such a resolution. Changes to the
original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting or fails to give
feedback within ten days after receiving the request, the Shareholders individually
or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares have the right to request the Supervisory
Committee to hold the EGM or the class meeting in writing.
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If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting,
a meeting notice shall be given within five days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant
Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the EGM within the specified
period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory Committee does not convene
or preside over the Shareholders’ meeting. Shareholders who individually or
jointly hold 10% or more of the Shares for not less than 90 consecutive days
may convene and preside over the EGM by themselves. The expenses of the
Shareholders” meeting held by the Supervisory Committee or Shareholders by
themselves shall be borne by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to Put Forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

When the Company holds a Shareholders’ general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 3%
of the Shares have the right to submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 3% of the Shares may put forward interim
proposal and submit to the convener in writing ten days before the EGM.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky, the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company. His contact details are as follows:

Address:

Unit 3207, Metroplaza Tower 2
223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Fong
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2428-2880

Fax: (852) 2418-5688

Email: kh@kanghuagp.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the Company’s annual general
meeting on 12 June 2019, the Company resolved to amend the articles of
association of the Company for the purpose of providing better flexibility to the
Group in arranging for financing for its operations.

Details of the above amendments are set out in Supplemental Notice of 2018
Annual General Meeting dated 27 May 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant change in the articles of
association during the Reporting Period. The currently valid Articles of Association
is available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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RIB - HERERRE

The Board is pleased to present the environmental, social and governance report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “ESG Report”). The
contents of the ESG Report are in compliance with the relevant environmental,
social and governance reporting guidelines set out in Appendix 27 to the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

The ESG Report covers the Group’s operations at Kanghua Hospital, Renkang
Hospital, Kanghua Hospital — Huawei Clinic, Kangxin Hospital and the Anhui
Hualin Group (the “Relevant Operations”).

Any opinions or suggestions in relation to the ESG Report may be sent to the
Company's email address at: kh@kanghuagp.com.

1. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

1.1 Core values in environmental, social and governance

The Group is committed to integrating corporate, social and
environmental responsibilities into various aspects of the Group’s
operations for achieving sustainable development. To this end,
the Group has implemented various environmental, social and
governance policies:

(@ compliance with the requirements of the laws, rules and
regulations on the corporate environment, society and
governance;

(b)  promotion of the establishment and improvement of relevant
management systems and mechanisms in corporate
environment, society and governance;

(¢ emphasis on delivering patient-centric healthcare services with
the highest possible ethical and professional standard;

(d  active engagement with stakeholders to identify changing
needs in corporate, social and environmental aspect of the
Group’s operations; and

e} encourages staff o save energy, cherish resources, support
and promote measures on energy-saving and emission
reduction.

The Group has set up a special working group formed by the
management and hospital executives and managers of each
hospital and operating facilities to promote the above policies and
prepare the relevant disclosures and report to the Board.

—_—

76 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
—_—

EFEMARELARANEBEE_ZE—NEF+=
A=4+— Eigfm%% e kER
L (RE - HEREARS]) - BRR g

LEARENRNATEE L LR
_‘T“tﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁi& e RERREE
El

RE - ?i@&%/éi&%5&%$%1ﬁﬁé@%
Bhr  CHEER REER-FELMY E
MEE&ﬁ@ﬁ%%EM%Eiﬁﬁﬁ%
REFEK])

WEEMARRE HEREABRENE

Regs T§§L1$’A A #Y & D b HE
kh@kanghuagp.com °

1. RE -HEREREEBE

E[I]

11 IRIB e MERMZLMER

$$§Kﬁﬁéﬂ%ﬁ%~ﬁ@&i§
BEERMAREELSENEER
ﬁ NERAIHFEER - Bk
AEBEEERSERE HE8K
E/DBZEE

THERBCERE 2
SORRER  BAIRE
TE

(a)

& 5 ik
I Hﬂ}* A}

FHT

(b) ﬁLLJ_&E&Lm%iaiﬁ
HEREARNERE RS
IEDNE Tk

@ EEUERSHNERREXR
BRERHUABERB O
BRIRTY

d BHEFHE—BL2H
LA BIAREEE B E -
HekREHFETEHZ\4
MER: K

) HBEIEHXNER B
AR SET%&T&%EEHE/
BEFE B

=

AEBEBEKY TEHEBEIIENE
&Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxgh&ML
R ERITTRABNEREAER -
VAEE) il BRSR I 4R R AR R I 55 -
WEEESER -



1.2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The communication and responses among the stakeholders

As part of the Group’s sustainable development objectives, the
Group maintains communication with stakeholders through various
channels with a view to proactively responding to stakeholders’
requests and fostering the Group’s capability in fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibilities:

Stakeholders
HHE

Communication and responses
BB DR

RIE - HEREBRSE

12 HHhEEBRHEDE

ERASERHERRA RN —
WMy AEEBBSZEREER
MERFEBE  SHEIHOIEE
MENERRRENREE 11
BIREMEEEEL:

Key issues
FESE

Investors/shareholders

KEE/BR

Government and regulatory
authorities

BT R EEE#E

Staff

i
H

Suppliers

HER

Shareholders’ general meetings,
annual reports and interim reports,
results announcements, corporate
announcements, investors conferences
BREARE FHREPHRE  XEQ
HhEQE REEA®

Regular communications, field visits,
meetings, operating information
disclosure and reporting

THER BHRE g3 &
PR RS

Labour union, regular communications
between staff and management, staff
activities, regular in-house publications,
trainings and education, responsibility
and accountability systems

BITe BEIREEETCHER-

SIR% - FHAETY - 555 EEH
B AEREKBERE

Due diligence, meetings, negotiations,
regular review of cooperation and
quality check, internal audit of
procurements and prescriptions by
doctors

ERAL 2% R THBRLEAR
EREERE  REABEZNLE
BT

Corporate governance and strategic
development and directions

EEERNRBEERNR

Strict compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, license, maintaining
and renewal hospital classification, anti-
corruption, environmental protection,
responsive to the government's latest policies
and directives on healthcare
BEERBEREEESR BR EFR
BEBROE REG RERE ZE
B B8 B B e SR IBUR K 4 3

Staff retention, collegiality, quality standard,
ethical practice, career progression,
development and training, workplace health
and safety, fair and reasonable reward and
punishment mechanisms

STHRE SFERE BERE BEE2
ToBERRE - BREEI THESHRE
REZZ - AIEE IR REM S

Stable and uninterrupted supply of quality
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment on terms no less
favourable than market, proper qualifications
and licenses, service support and training on
equipment, anti-corruption, environmentally
preferable purchasing
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Stakeholders
FHE

Communication and responses
BEED R

Key issues
FTESR

Patients

Community

ol

Healthcare facilities

BEHE

Day to day operations and communications,
dedicated customer service, satisfaction
surveys and feedback, service complaints
and response systems

HEEZNLER ZENTEFPRE
mEBEERAEERE  RERFEOE

Community activities, public health
awareness events, free medical
consultations, regular in-house
publications, donations, supporting
charitable causes

HEERY AHRELEBREY 2B
BEAEH THALNY B X
REEEX

Mutual cooperation and patient referrals,
technical assistance to lower-tier
hospitals, multisite doctor practice

MEAERBAED [ TRERE
HEAIER  BEZHAE
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Clinical standard and the Group’s reputation
as a quality and ethical healthcare services
provider, patient satisfaction, anti-corruption
(e.g. refusing “red packets”)
RARBRERAEBEREE NSBERZ
ENBERGREBNEE BEWSE
RB®R(ERI4I8])

Improving the community’s awareness of
public health and safety and the profile
of the Group as a socially responsible
healthcare services provider, addressing
healthcare needs from the underserved and
unprivileged

RetBRHAHBEEZ2HEZRAK
SRR EEENERRKREMHEA
MR BRERBSTENEEBZRELE

Delivery of optimal clinical solutions to
address the different needs of patients,
referral of patients requiring acute, complex
and critical care from lower-tier hospitals to
the Group, the Group’s influential presence
in the industry
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group regularly keeps track of the latest national and regional
environmental laws and regulations and adopts all necessary measures
to comply with them. The Board considers that wastewaters and solid
wastes (particularly medical wastes) produced by the Group’s hospitals and
operating facilities are particularly relevant to environmental protection.
The Group is compliant with applicable laws and regulations, including,
the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Regulations on Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment, the Regulations
on the Management of Medical Waste and the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had not been subject to any
penalties in relation to environmental protection.

Developing sustainable best practices requires modification of staff
behavior, and this occurs most frequently through ongoing staff education.
Education and supporting processes are one of the most critical elements
to effective implementation of environmental protection initiatives and
reduction in environmental footprint.

In particular, with the outstanding performance of Kanghua Hospital in
the National Greening Action promoted by the PRC, it is recognised as the
“Model National Greening Unit”, which is the only Grade A Class Il hospital
in the PRC bestowed with such award. Kanghua Hospital has achieved
approximately 58.81% of green space and 63.54% of greening coverage
ratio, providing patients with a pleasant hospital environment surrounded
by greenery.

2.1 Wastewaters

Hospitals discharge considerable amounts of chemicals and
microbial agents in their wastewaters. Many substances contained
in the wastewaters, such as chemicals, medicine residues as
well as pathogenic resistant bacteria and viruses, resist normal
wastewater treatment and could pose a danger to public health and
the environment if released untreated into the public sewer system.
Due to the chemical and biochemical contaminants, the wastewaters
treatment requires specialised technologies and processes that
cannot be feasibly conducted at the source. The Group engages
a qualified and licensed service provider to process all of the
wastewaters produced by its hospitals. Before the wastewaters
are processed by the service provider, they are stored in dedicated
facilities to ensure they will not contaminate the primary water supply
for human consumption and clinical use.
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2.2

HEREARE

The table below sefs forth the discharge volume of wastewaters by
the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

TREJINAATRFERRELER
RSB E

Change 2019 2018
2y —E-NF —T-N\F
Wastewaters discharge (ton) V5 K HE AR (WE) +8.6% 318,692 293,463
Wastewaters discharge per gross & B S 78 K55 7K BEIR
floor area [ton/gross floor areq) (BB FREEE ) +4.5% 0.69 0.66
The increase in wastewaters discharge in 2019 was primarily RZT—NFERFRKEERIE INE
aftributable fo (i the increase in operational capacity and business of ZHRNEAEER T —NEFHN
the Group in 2019; and (ii) the full year consolidation impact from the NIRRT REBTER K
operations of Anhui Hualin Group and Kangxin Hospital, which were AEERZE-N\FREHZE
acquired by the Group during year 2018. HEREBRRLEBREBNESE
CXitZ Uik
The discharge of wastewaters is integral to the Group’s clinical ‘?’?K?ﬁﬁﬂl%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬂ
operations and is generally expected fo increase in line with business E S - *ﬂﬁ ARt 3’5%%7}%1“
growth. The management does not currently consider that it is Eﬁﬂi' m-EEEBRRR &
feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to control or reduce T‘?‘?% FERBREZS (Ei\ HA
the amount of wastewaters discharge without compromising sanity HEERLZEZZBEZ)BAT
and clinical safety, which are of overriding importance to public BT {A] B2 ol R AR A I SR
health and safety. The Group regularly reviews its wastewaters DIEKBEIRERAIIT c NEEE
treatment protocols with a view fo ensuring there is no inadvertent B st )5/ KEE AR - AR
contamination of its water supply and that the wastewaters will HEHKTEHBERZ2NSERE
be properly handled by the hospitals before treated by the service PRSI P BR IR 2 A + )5 7K
provider. The management believes that the wastewaters produced ERZERE -EEERR B
by the hospitals, after properly treated by the service provider, will B 2 A 105K IE 1S B AR TS 4R 7Y
pose minimal risks to the environment. HZERIBE  HIRIREKNE
S B
Hazardous solid wastes 22 BEEEBEY

Hospital operations generate a variety of solid medical wastes in
the diagnosis, treatment or immunization of patients or in research
that can pose a danger to public health and the environment if not
properly treated and disposed of. Materials containing pathogens
are infectious can cause diseases if exposed. These include:

o human anatomical waste: waste from surgery and autopsies
on patients with infectious diseases;

o sharps: disposable needles, syringes, saws, blades, broken
glasses, nails or any other item that could cause a cut; and

° pathological: tissues, organs, body parts, human flesh, fetuses,
blood and body fluids.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Non-infectious but hazardous wastes include:

o pharmaceuticals: drugs and chemicals that are returned from
wards, spilled, outdated, contaminated, or are no longer
required; and

. radioactive: wastes contaminated with radioactive substances
used in diagnosis and treatment of diseases.

The Group’s hospitals have in place a comprehensive medical waste
management system:

1. Identification and segregation of waste types: segregation of
different types of wastes at source (wards, operation theaters,
laboratories, examination rooms efc.) with color coding systems
and clear operation guidelines and handbooks, supervised by
responsible staff. Effective segregation diminishes total waste
and the hospital’s environmental footprint;

2. Transport & storage of waste: use of puncture proof and leak
proof containers; bags are properly tied and sealed; use of
special containers for radioactive wastes; use of designated
transport trolleys and timely collection; and storage in covered
areas remote from normal passages with security measures to
prevent unauthorized tempering;

3. Identify the need for use of personal protective equipment:
special clothing, gloves, masks and eye protection identified
and provided to the healthcare works responsible for waste
transportation and disposal; and

4. Proper disposal of waste: collection and subsequent
disposal by qualified and licensed service provider (including
incineration, landfill or chemical/biochemical treatment, as
appropriate to the type of wastes) specialized in medical
wastes disposal. On account of the hazardous nature of these
wastes, they are not typically recycled.
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The table below sets forth the volume of hazardous solid medical
wastes produced by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

TREIRFATFEBREER
BELNEEZERBEENE

Change 2019 2018
gz —ZE-hEF —ZT—N\F
Hazardous solid wastes (kg) BEEEEED (A7) +9.0% 588,721 540,103
Hazardous solid wastes per gross 52 £ T & A 5 = [ 48
floor area (kg/gross floor areal By (AT, #%Em|
18) +3.7% 1.266 1.221

The disposal of hazardous solid medical wastes is integral to the
Group’s clinical operations and is generally expected to increase
in line with business growth. The management does not currently
consider that it is feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to
control or reduce the production of hazardous solid wastes without
compromising sanity and clinical safety, which are of overriding
importance. For example, many surgical tools, protective masks and
gloves and syringes are strictly for one-time use only; extending their
use may reduce waste production but is not clinically acceptable as
it significantly increases the risks of cross-infection among patients
and staff. The Group regularly reviews its waste management
system with a view to ensuring that all of the steps in the chain are
properly followed with the safety of the patients and staff as top
priority. One of the key steps in managing the hazardous wastes is
proper identification and segregation because: (i) this ensures no
hazardous wastes are inadvertently mixed with domestic wastes and
disposed without proper freatment, potentially posing harm to public
safety and environment; and (i) the service provider processes the
wastes collected according to the identification and segregation by
the hospitals. The hospitals have a responsibility and accountability
system for waste management at the source and provide regular
trainings to the front-line staff to ensure that the guidelines and
handbooks are strictly adhered. The management believes that the
hazardous solid wastes produced by the hospitals, after properly
treated by the service provider, will pose minimal risks to the
environment.
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2.3 Domestic wastes 2.3

The Group’s operations generate domestic wastes that are non-
infectious and non-hazardous from the offices, dormitories, kitchens,
rooms, including bed linens, utensils, paper, etc. These wastes are
identified and segregated at source and are eventually collected,
treated and recycled by general wastes service providers.

The table below sets forth the volume of domestic wastes produced

RIE - HEREBRSE

A TR AR

REBONEBEMRAET BE -
BE - BRELIFEREEIE
SR BREK ARG
BER BERF - ZTRIPRIRA
T AR R o B - AR — AR AR
V)RS TR LR W R - R IE R m K
BHA-

TREIRATFEEBLEE

by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BEANEFNIRE
Change 2019 2018
B —E-NF —E-)N\F
Domestic wastes (kg) HERIR (A T) +22.7% 2,943,221 2,399,050
Domestic wastes per gross floor TS E & A £ E B R
area (kg/gross floor area) (RfT/EEER) +16.6% 6.328 5.427

The Group is conscientious about the environment and is committed
to the recycling of domestic wastes where feasible. This primarily
includes the recycling of paper, plastic, metal and glass. The Group
mandates its staff to segregate the domestic wastes into appropriate
categories for proper handling by the service provider. The Group also
promotes “paper-less” office, including double-sided or secondary
paper printing except for official documents, multimedia form of
presentation in meetings and increasing the use of office automation
system to reduce administrative paperwork. The hospitals have an
engineering department to salvage any usable parts or components
from decommissioned equipment and furniture, such as televisions,
computers and hospital beds, before they are disposed of. The Group
may also donate obsolete but functional items, such as computers, to
various charitable organisations. The Group will continue to explore
feasible initiatives to reduce domestic waste production and enhance
its recycling efforts. The increase in domestic wastes was primarily
attributable to the full year consolidation impact of the operations of
Anhui Hualin Group and Kangxin Hospital, which were acquired by
the Group during year 2018.
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RIR - HERERBRSE
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2.4 Energy consumption 24 BERBM
Healthcare systems are among a community’s largest consumers BEERAREHERANERER
of energy. Hospitals are generally open 24 hours a day and have gz — - Bl —MREBR24/ N
sophisticated energy needs, such as particular air flow controls F¥  BAGAEHNERER
and specialized heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems. B TE WY SRR I R P AR
The Group’s hospitals’ and operating facilities” energy consumption BRARZERRG REERR K
primarily includes electricity and water. EERBHNEERBREEZBREK
The table below sets forth the consumption of the Relevant TEREIRFAIRFERBLE X
Operations for the years indicated: BEREE -
Change 2019 2018
23 —E-NF —T-N\F
Electricity (kilowatt-hours) BN (TRE) +15.3% 39,291,865 34,069,473
Electricity consumption intensity BERE
(kilowatt-hours per gross floor (BREEBET L)
areal) +9.7% 84.5 77.0
Water consumption (fon) JKFE (WB) +5.8% 774,110 731,808
Water consumption intensity IKFERE
{ton per gross floor area) (GREmEBEN) +0.6% 1.66 1.65

Electricity consumption is primarily attributable to air-conditioning,
water heating, lighting and energy demanding medical equipment
such as MRI and X-ray. The Group’s initiatives aimed at reducing
electricity consumption include:

o explore the feasibility of using air heat pump water heater and
gas-fired boiler;

o installation of inverter-type air-conditioning systems that are
more energy-efficient;

J installation of high efficiency LED light sources;
o promote staff awareness and control measures ensure lights

are off when no one is using;

J an energy saving task force is set up to perform regular
inspections of air-conditioning systems and other electrical
systems to ensure no unintended or unusual usage;

o installation of motion-triggered lightning systems in escalators
and elevators;

° maximize the use of natural sunlight via roof windows;
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o implement a system of inspecting office buildings; every
administrative department is responsible for the inspection of
power consumption and timely turning off related electrical
appliances, including lighting, air conditioning and so on.

o installation of automatic door closers in wards with a view
to increasing energy efficiency by limiting the amount of air
movement required, as well as the space that needs to be
cooled; and

o gradually replace obsolete equipment with new equipment
that are certified for energy efficiency.

Water consumption is primarily attributable to cooling equipment,
plumbing fixtures, landscaping, medical process rinses, pure water
systems and domestic uses (sinks, showers, toilets). The Group’s
initiatives aimed at reducing water consumption include:

o leak detection and repair;
o use of high-efficiency showerheads;
o use of low-flow plumbing fixtures;

o use of motion sensor-activated faucets and flow control;

o use of waterless medical vacuum pumps;

o use of reject water produced in the reverse-osmosis process;

o use full loads in sanitizers, sterilizers and laundry washing
machines, consistent with infection control requirements; and

o minimize water use for irrigation with rain/soil moisture
controllers and only during times when wind and evaporation
are lowest.

In 2018, the Group also achieved remarkable water saving on
account of, among other water-saving initiatives, the installation of
more than 1,500 high-efficiency waterheads at Kanghua Hospital.

In 2019, based on the previous in-depth understanding of Kanghua
Hospital by the Dongguan Water Authority under the Dongguan
Municipal People’s Government, the Dongguan Water Authority
awarded “Water-Saving Unit of Dongguan” to Kanghua Hospital
upon passing evaluations on various aspects, including water-saving
rules and regulations, water-saving containers and infrastructure,
water usage planning and management and water-saving
mechanism implementation.
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The Group will continue to oversee the effectiveness of the above
initiatives and explore new and innovative ways to achieve water
saving, which will in turn contribute to electricity saving.

The increase in the consumption of both electricity and water in
the year ended 31 December 2019 was primarily attributable to the
increase in business operations (including expansion of floor space
occupied by in our administrative centre at Kanghua Hospital and
the inclusion of Kangxin Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group) and
higher number of hotter days in 2019 resulting in higher utilisation of
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air conditioning. EHRERAE AR
2.5 Antibiotics prescription 25 MEERA
Antimicrobial resistance is a global public health challenge, which NEEMEMR2RAXEEN
is aggravated by the overuse of antibiotics. Increased antimicrobial —IEkE - REERNERSE
resistance is the cause of severe infections, complications, longer T 22 15 N8I o $7 B8 2R B0 0
hospital stays and increased mortality. Antibiotics over-prescription is BIREMBmERE  HEE &
also potentially associated with an increased risk of adverse effects, PSR RIL TR EAMRE -
more frequent re-atfendance and increased medicalization of self- MERRTREINAIEFEE T
limiting conditions. M2 rEIg i - 18 B IE T
kg RMEERERCIG N
Inevitably, doctors at the Group’s hospitals prescribe antibiofics to 7 £ (B B8 e B8 AE T B T AT 3 et
patients from time to time. The Group is committed to the judicious MEERENERRT - A5E
prescription of anfibiotics by eliminating unnecessary or sub-optimal BAORBEBER TN ES R ER
prescriptions. The Group’s continuous efforts has led to a stable FEERENERRER - KB
rate of antibiotics prescription of the relevant operations in 2019 as WMEH AREER_ZT—IFH
compared with 2018. =T - N\FREBEES KR
BENMERGHERE -
The Group’s clinical governance tracks a number of parameters to AEENBERAEEREENE
gauge the prescription of antibiotics as set forth in the table below: ERATNET28  FB&EIT
=
Change 2019 2018 Standard
Kanghua Hospital REER 28 —Z2-NEF —ZT-N\F FA
Rate of antibiotics prescription for FI2 B & MAEZER H X
Outpatients +0.9 b.p. 10.8% 9.9% 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription for T4 =R 5 AR EE
emergency treatment R L X +1.1b.p. 25.8% 24.7% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription for £t B & AL ZE H X
inpatients -0.1b.p. 47.2% 47.3% = 60%

—_—

86 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
—_—



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HER

/\-h-\\ =+
E/ﬁ#&%

Change 2019 2018 Standard
Renkang Hospital R 2y —ET-NEF —T-N\F 1=
Rate of antibiotics prescription  PI B EHIMERRH X
for Outpatients 0b.p. 15.1% 15.1% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription A ZRFARES
for emergency freatment SRR X +11b.p. 31.7% 30.6% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription  {EFt BH I EZE X
for inpatients +6.4b.p. 62.8% 56.4% = 60%
Change 2019 2018 Standard
Kangxin Hospital BB 28 —F-—NEF —T-N\F FAE
Rate of anfibiotics prescription  PIZ B EMAE KR H X
for Outpatients O0b.p. 2.0% 2.0% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription  HAEZRHT AR EE
for emergency treatment SRR R % +4b.p. 4.0% 0% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription  {EFt B EH M EEZR H X
for inpatients -15b.p. 25.0% 40.0% = 60%
Change 2019 2018 Standard
Huawei Clinic EHMP 28y —ZE-NEF —T-N\F T oAE
Rate of antibiotics prescription  PIZBREMAEZRH R
for Outpatients -0.3b.p. 17.3% 17.6% = 20%
Rate of anfibiotics prescription ~ AEZERH AR B A
for emergency freatment B ® +2.2 b.p. 19.8% 17.6% = 40%
Change 2019 2018 Standard
Anhui Hualin Group ZHERER 28y —ZE-NEF —T-N\F EA
Rate of antibiotics prescription ~ FIZ2BEMEREF X
for Outpatients Ob.p. 13.4% 13.4% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription  HTAEZERF AR ESE
for emergency freatment JRE L & 0b.p. 0% 0% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription (R B EHEMEZR R
for inpatients Ob.p. 17.7% 17.7% = 60%
J—
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The Group’s initiatives to the judicious prescription of antibiotics KAEEE ﬁ% BREMERES
include: R Y
e providing education and clinical decision support to doctors e REBEANBEHEREHBER
and patients regarding the long-term and community-wide AmEznRBAEREHES
consequences of overusing anfibiofics; ﬁ ROHEBE RBRRAKSE
S
e patients should be educated of the importance of following the e HEBEBREAFFERAN
use of antibiotics according fo prescription; EEMNEZEMN
e doctors should always follow the principle of rational, safe and e BARKBKERAE %
effective antibiotics prescription; %J BB ERRE SR
Al
e antibiotics should be prescribed only for bacterial infections e MAEXRFIENMARRL
whenever possible and in the proper dose for the correct 5 77 A %2 IE A B2 25y ] A9
duration; BEBERLER
e narrow spectrum antibiotics should be chosen whenever . R R EEEN A X
possible to avoid destroying populations of beneficial bacteria VA 3 4 3% [A] B0 AR i — R
along with the disease-causing bacteria; WiEE AR
e publish internal clinical guidelines for doctors to follow, o  BMEABEMNANIDER
especially for common infections, with a view to improving Bal - FHREHEERH
antibiotics use; R UERERER
e rotfating use of different classes of antibiotics where possible; e BURXRBERTRER
B AEE
e accountability systems to prompt responsible prescription of e HIEMASIE REELE
antibiotics by doctors; BEMFMALNAERR
e strictly prohibit any form of advantages or rebates provided by e BRZEIFRENFREHEMT
pharmaceutical companies to incentivize doctors to prescribe A 72 =0 &9 4F Bz =% [0 41 % &
more antibiotics; and BEROEZNNERRE
VA4
e regular communications with regulators and healthcare o HBIEPEEKREDZE
organizations, including the Chinese Center for Disease Control POE R EE AR B
and Prevention, to understand the latest community threats BHEBTHER  TH&
and outbreaks with a view to modifying antibiotics prescription O AL [ KR BB N g 3
strategy as appropriate. B AHA BB & i &
Eal
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EMPLOYMENT

The success of the Group depends critically on its ability to attract, develop
and retain its staff. The Group adheres to fair and open recruitment
practices, and provides its staff with adequate protection of rights. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group continued to strive for
improvements and innovations in staff support, development and training
to create a safe and comfortable working environment and provide a
fair and collegial learning and development platform. The Group prides
itself on maintaining harmonious relationships with its staff in the spirit of
“Kanghua People”. As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 3,838
(2018: 3,469) full-time staff.

3.1

Recruitment

Recruitment is an important component to the continuous growth
of the Group. The Group’s recruitment process is merit based and
is open to all qualified personnel. In addition to internal recruitment
by job promotion and rotation, the Group also carries out external
recruitment activities. Healthcare professionals are highly sought after
in Guangdong Province. Therefore, the Group strategically extends
its recruitment efforts to other provinces in the PRC. The Group
implements a series of internet recruitment campaigns to reach a
wide base of potential candidates and on campus recruitment drives
in key medical schools and nursing schools in multiple provinces to
attract talent out of Guangdong Province. Teaching dffiliations with
academic institutions enable the Group to identify potential young
healthcare professionals and recruit them early on. The Group also
has in place various referral schemes to identify potential candidates
from its existing staff's social networks. Referred staff generally has
higher retention rates and increased engagement. The Group audits
and verifies staff identify and background as part of the recruitment
process to ensure no child labor or forced labour is employed.
Depending on the position being hired, the Group also conducts
background checks to ensure the veracity of information provided
by the potential candidate. The Group has adopted a Recruitment
Process Management Policy to standardize its recruitment practice.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations such
as the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC,
and enters into labor contracts with its staff. Each of the Group’s
hospitals and operating facilities has adopted a labor union to protect
the rights and interests of its staff and encourage them fo participate
in the management of the Group’s operations.
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3.2 Equal opportunities employer 32 TEMEHE
The Group is an equal opportunities employer. The Group provides TEBRVTERERTE - K&
equal opportunities to all staff in a fair, transparent and non- RABEIRERY FHH - B
discriminatory environment. Female staff has equal opportunities BRIEBREPRHTSERE - LHEE
as male staff, and would not prejudiced because of pregnancy. No THBEHEBHETFEKE T
religious or racial discrimination is tolerated in recruitment and career EEAEEMIEMR - ERER
development. BEZRPNTEREMREK
18 R AR o
As at 31 December 2019
BE-_Z—NAF+=-A=+—H
Kangxin Anhui Hualin
Kanghua Hospital Renkang Hospital Hospital Huawei Clinic Group Total Staff
BEER LEER BEOER EAMY  RHEREE LN |

Male Female  Mole Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Femole  Male Female
Age Group/Gender ERER/ MR 8 b4 28 z B b4 2 z B b4 8 b4
Age 51 or above SImEE 89 61 30 15 13 6 6 4 42 32 180 118
Agebetween 311050  31Z505% 321 543 93 141 65 84 7 il 64 194 550 973
Age below 30 0FAAT 165 840 32 198 26 148 8 50 87 437 313 1,673

575 1444 155 354 104 238 16 65 193 663 1043 2764
As at 31 December 2018
HE-Z—-)\F+-_HA=+—H
Kangxin Anhui Hualin
Kanghua Hospital Renkang Hospital Hospital Huawei Clinic Group Total Staff
BEER LEER BEOER EAMY  RHEREE BAY

Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female
Age Group/Gender EgaR/H5l g2 z B z & z B &z B & B 1z
Age 51 or above SImEE 79 63 3] 18 14 5 4 4 38 3 166 121
Age between 3110 50 NE505 317 513 94 138 53 63 8 9 44 13 516 836
Age below 30 MIE 189 820 32 219 26 120 ] 36 57 2% 305 149

585 1,396 157 375 93 188 13 49 139 440 987 2,448
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3.3 Staff remuneration and retention

The Group's comprehensive staff remuneration and retention policy
is designed with a view to rewarding staff performance and long
term staff retention. It primarily includes: (i) economic components
comprising basic salary determined with reference to the individual's
position, seniority and length of service, performance bonus
determined with reference to the metrics specific to the individual's
job function and other benefits; and (i) non-economic components
comprising personal development, job challenge and satisfaction,
recognition, work environment, work safety and career advancement.
The Group regularly benchmarks against available market data
and adjusts its remuneration structure with a view to remaining
competitive. While financial incentives are an important factor in
staff retention, the Group recognizes that they alone are not enough
to improve recruitment and retention in a sustainable manner.
Therefore, the Group places equal emphasis on non-economic
factors, in particular personal development, work environment and
collegiality. The Group’s career advancement track is transparent and
achievable. The Group provides a platform and support for its staff to
undertake medical education and research in their field of choice.

With a view to retaining and developing talent, the Group actively
identifies high potential staff and provide them with additional
training opportunities, industry exposure and an accelerated career
track. By providing training for new skills and tuition reimbursement
for external courses, the Group’s staff will feel valued, important and
invested in the Group. The Group regularly carries out staff appraisals
to discuss achievements, strengths, and areas for development, and
to set personal objectives with a view to ensuring they feel motivated
and appreciated for their contribution. The Group maintains open
channels of communication with its staff to keep them informed
of the latest developments and provide them with opportunities to
voice their opinions. The Group also recognises that its healthcare
professionals, in particular doctors and nurses, may be subject to
a high pressure and demanding work environment from time to
time due to their job nature, which may result in attrition. The Group
actively monitors the emotional wellbeing of its staff and provide
counselling and supporting arrangements where appropriate. The
Group regularly gauges the working hours of its staff to identify
any staff with excessive workloads and makes alternative staffing
arrangements if necessary. The Group aims to build a strong
organisational culture to cultivate a sense of belonging among its
staff through various staff functions and events. The Group believes
that the creation of a healthy and harmonious working environment
will improve staff morale and productivity in the long term.

3.3
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3.4

In 2019, the Group began the year with 3,469 (2018: 2,476) full-time
staff, added 794 (2018: 1,564 (included 750 full-time staff of Kangxin
Hospital and Anhui Hualin Group acquired in 2018) full-time staff and
lost 425 (2018: 593) full-time staff during the year. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had a total of 3,838 (2018: 3,469) full-time staff. The
attrition rate of full-time staff (including doctors, nurses, administrative
and other support staff) of the Group for 2019 was 11.7% (2018: 5.0%).
The attrition rate of doctors of the Group for 2019 was 13.9% (2018:
19.8%). The improvement in attrition rate was primarily atfributable
to the offering of more competitive remuneration packages and the
enhanced profile of the “Kanghua” brand.

Training and development

The Group provides structured training and education programmes
to enable its staff to consistently deliver high quality services. These
programmes aim to equip the staff with a sound foundation of the
medical principles and knowledge as well as practical skills in their
respective practice area and foster a high standard of practice,
organisation capability and vigilant attitude. Regular internal and
external mandatory trainings are organised for medical staff to
keep them abreast of the latest development in healthcare. From
time to time, the Group identifies and sponsors its staff with high
development potential to undertake further studies and professional
training in prestigious academic institutions and participate in
industry conventions. Medical teams also benefit from the experience
and knowledge exchange during seminars and sharing sessions
regularly held. The Group encourages medical staff to apply for
professional and technical qualifications and enroll in specialised
training programmes and assessments from time to time, including
induction training for new employees, development training for young
and middle-aged core talent, medical service quality training and
management training for young core talent, with a view to ensuring
that their relevant professional competencies meet the required
standards. Through various training and education programmes, the
Group also aims to foster a proactive risk reporting culture among
staff, which is important in the early detection of clinical failure and
damage control.
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The Group has adopted a Continuing Education and Training
Management Policy (# 48 2 & 15 51 %E 12§l [ ). The training system
is supported by three major components:

o the science and education department is primarily responsible
for training on clinical skills;

o the nursing department is primarily responsible for training on
nursing and patient caretaking skills; and

o the human resources department is primarily responsible
for comprehensive training on staff management capability,
cultural values and technical skills.

The table below sets forth the number of training hours provided to
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the Group’s staff of the Relevant Operations for the years indicated: EBHAREE S TIRHAEIIN
g

Change 2019 2018

)% —E-hEF ZT—N\F
Number of participants X YN +7.9% 30,360 28,145
Training man-hours (Hours) B TEF (/) +9.3% 388,120 355,162
The increase in the number of participants and training man- 2B ANRREIFEEMm - =2
hours was primarily aftributable to the inclusion of the operations of AR ZZ—NFEINED BB
Kangxin Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group in 2019. REHEREEREETE -
Workplace health and safety 35 IESGFRERZZE

The Group highly values occupational safety and strives to eliminate
potential workplace health and safety hazards. The Group maintains
an internal audit and inspection program to ensure the safety of
the hospital premises for patients, the public and staff. The aim of
the audit process is to ensure that the workplace is continuously
monitored and that deficiencies in relation to set standards are
remedied. The Group ensures that each of its hospital departments is
periodically inspected and audited for safety issues, such as medical
treatment safety, environment safety and occupational safety.
The Group actively encourages staff to report health and safety
incidents and risks on a no repercussion basis, and the learning
from proactive monitoring and findings from incident reviews is
used to improve further and refine training programmes, policies
and working practices. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group had, in all material respects, complied with applicable laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
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The Group is committed to improving the construction of infection
prevention and control systems at both the hospital level and
discipline level, further clarifying the functions of infection prevention
and control teams, revising the infection prevention and control
policies, processes and contfingency plans, and strengthening
the relevant training and education with a view to consistently
standardizing infection prevention and control management.
The Group conducts regular sanitisation to contain the potential
spread of infectious diseases at its hospitals. The Group has
established surveillance systems to closely monitor the prevalence of
nosocomial infections at its hospitals and ensure that such incidents
are maintained at a very low level in compliance with applicable
standards. The Group also provides periodical occupational safety
education and training to augment its staff's awareness of safety
issues. The Group provides its staff with regular health assessment
to monitor their overall health. In particular, the Group adopts
stringent assessment protocols for its staff that are regularly exposed
to high-risk environments such as radiation and clinical wastes to
ensure their exposure is within acceptable safety limits. Such staff
are provided with adequate protective gears and are regularly
required to take days off to minimize the long term health effects of
radiation. Each relevant staff is required to follow specific procedures
and guidelines laid down by the hospital, including Medical Staff
Occupational Exposure Protection and Reporting Policy. From
time to time, the Group engages third party experts to assess the
effectiveness of the hospitals’ safety and protective measures.

The Group recognizes that medical violence has in recent years
become a workplace safety hazard faced by many medical
professionals in the PRC. In light of this, the Group has established
internal guidelines and provided trainings to better prepare its staff
in handling such situations, including setting a risk assessment of
patient violence, implementing an on-line direct reporting system
for adverse events of hospitals and adhering to the Regulations on
Prevention and Treatment of Medical Disputes (8 % 4l #3 FB B €2 52
12 & 15]) recently issued by the government and taking into account
the actual circumstances of the hospitals to establish an early
warning management system for patient safety. The department of
security is able to dispatch security officers experienced in handling
incidents of medical violence. The Group also works closely with the
police bureaus and law enforcement agencies who will be able to
dispatch officers in short notice to the hospitals if necessary.

The table below sets forth key health and safety information of the
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Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BOETERERLEER
2019 2018
—ZT-NF —T—)\%F
Number of staff contracting infections i EEEBRAETAH
due fo occupation 19 23
Number of staff deaths due to occupation BT ETAZ - -
Number of staff disabilities due to HiEREAE T AR
occupation - -
Number of man-days lost due to BEAMSRIERATHRE
occupation related injuries or illness - 27.0
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SERVICE QUALITY

As embodied in the Groups motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice”
(BEA B e E/EHE), the Group adopts a patient-centric approach in
treating all patients, the well-being of whom form the core of its values. The
Group places a high priority on providing patients with consistently high
quality service and support, which is crucial to its long-term success. The
Group provides patient care in an ethical manner, and at the best possible
quality, taking into consideration patient safety, patients’ satisfaction and
service efficiency.

4.1

Patient satisfaction and complaints

The Group’s hospitals have a dedicated customer service department
to collect and gauge patient feedbacks. The customer service
department is an important component in ensuring that patient
experience is positive through proactive outreach and responsive
communication. The table below sets forth key operating data of the
Group's customer service for the years indicated:

RIR - B RERHRE

RFEE

HIMARERE [BERT « BEIEHE
PrEERE  ANEBERMARERER
BRBUAZE ST LHTA %%ﬁ
BEREABEZL AEESEERR
BERK-ENEERBESS &
HERMRWERER - ZRIIBE
e BEMRBRERBRE KK
BUASFBEONTA - AFRRELHH
HERBERMHER -

41 BEBREBENKFR

AEENBRREEAERTFP RS
MAWERFTERERE - BB
TEE MRS MBI EEER -
B P RSB HER B E BRER
MEEMAMRE D - TREHINAT
TNEEAEEEPREHNEERL
LI

Chonge 2019 2018
""""" 2B —E-hE  —T-\%&
Number of patients served i3 3= NN +18.1% 116,742 98,837
Customer service man hours ZR A LR £ +0.9% 2,022,338 2,003,961

The rate of increase in number of patients served is significantly
higher than the rate of increase in customer service man hours was
primarily aftributable to (i) the increase in operational capacity and
business of the Group in 2019; and (i) further improved efficiency
and automation of certain aspects of outpatient customer service
at Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital in 2019 including the
delivery of customer service through online platforms.

The hospitals continuously review and streamline patient registration
process and provide regular staff customer-service training. The
hospitals also conduct patient satisfaction surveys. Such results serve
to establish a baseline to monitor changes in patient experience and
satisfaction in specific area of service delivery. These surveys primarily
include:

o call back interviews with inpatients, outpatients and physical
examination patients;

o surveys delivered through short messaging services;

° on-site questionnaires; and

. comments collection boxes.
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The Group also cooperates with third parties to conduct
comprehensive surveys and analytical studies from time to time.

The subjective nature of the healthcare industry means that the
Group occasionally receives patient complaints in the ordinary
course of business. The Group has implemented a standardised
customer complaint management at each of its hospitals with
a view fo promptly, accurately and comprehensively collecting
feedback from patients, addressing patients’ concerns, continuously
improving clinical processes and ultimately delivering service of
the highest standard to patients. The Group generally classifies
patient complaints in three major categories of importance: (i) critical
complaints, which may involve deficiencies in clinical quality resulting
in adverse effects to patients, medical disputes attracting media
attention and intervention from regulatory authorities, extremely
poor service attitude, verbal abuses or assaults on patients, or any
complaints regarding medical ethics; (i) regular complaints, which
may involve general service atfitude, environment, accommodation,
hospital or inter-departmental processes resulting in inconvenience
to patients, billing error, repeated assessment, pricing or lack of
communication or language skills; and (iii) immaterial complaints,
which may involve mere service recommendations or trivial
comments, or complaints that are frivolous, vexatious or are primarily
attributable to the patients’ individual condition.

The table below sets forth the number of each category of complaints
received by the Group for the years indicated:

AEBTENREE =S EFE
TEEAERIITHE

BRETENIBUEEREARAEH
FERHEEBBET S IFREE
ERF - AEBECEEERER
BERiEE(EREPRFEIE - AR
®EELRPHMBERERE
RORBERY  HARZERKR
BRERAEBERIRSKEN
R - REE—REGBERFD
R-ZKREERH B REF -

AZERFAIRE S N EH B BEE
AN ENERKRE ERE - 5l
LRBAINEEMHATENE
Billsy MGEEEEES Y
BELETFEERREASLER
EAE AR ¢ i) — ARIREF -
BEARAIBES R —MRBREE - IR
BERE - BREISAMERR
REBEHFRNIE FHEHER
EERE  EEINMRZBERE
I R FEERF - %F
RERA RS MRS E R ST
Afam o SRBEY - EIREURE E
ZREARBEEAMRRE IR -

TREFP PR F AN B E
BB EA -

Change 2019 2018
BEyxK —ZE-NF —ZT-N\F
Number of critical complaints BRI E R -51.5% 16 33
Number of regular complaints EHIR R R -64.4% 67 188
Number of immaterial complaints ~ JFE&E %57 & B +7.0% 337 315
Total Bt -21.6% 420 536
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Patients may lodge a complaint by mail, telephone, touch-screen
terminals or in person. The Group has dedicated facilities to record
the complaint process on a confidential basis to safeguard the
interests of all parties involved and ensure that the complaint
processes are conducted fairly with proper records. The hospitals
have a complaint office, a unit led by a highly experienced hospital
manager and dedicated to the management of patient complainants.
The complaint office acts as the complainant point of contact,
explains the complaint process to the complainants, directs patient
complaints to appropriate departments and governance committees
for detailed investigation and root-cause analysis, conducts in-
depth fact-finding, proactively oversees and manages the complaint
processes, coordinates and communicates with the parties involved,
accurately records all relevant findings on a confidential basis and
formulates the appropriate replies to the complainants. All initial
complaints and views will be handled and responded to directly by
the complaint office. The Group is committed to resolving all patient
complaints in the shortest period of time, or on the spof, if possible,
though resolution of critical complaints generally requires a longer
period of time. For critical complaints involving clinical safety or
possible health implications, the Group proactively takes immediate
actions to prevent and minimise adverse effects on patients. The
hospital policy mandates every complaint to be properly lodged and
processed through the system and prohibits staff from reaching a
private seftlement with the complainants, which may potentially place
the hospital in a disadvantaged situation if such complaints were to
escalate further.

The Group regards patient complaint management as an important
component for the continuous improvement of clinical safety and
quality. The Group treats each of the patients’ complaints seriously
and regards them as the best source for improvement. Complaint
reports are regularly reported to senior management for review. For
every patient complaint, the Group is committed to understanding its
fact pattern and root cause, ascertaining the responsible parties and
areas of improvement. The hospitals organise a monthly complaints
analysis meeting to identify improvement areas in clinical processes,
make recommendations and ensure the relevant administrative
and clinical departments implement the necessary improvements
promptly. In addition, the hospitals organise a quarterly complaints
sharing session on the root cause of the complaints, improvement
processes implemented and lessons learnt with a view to cultivating
a sense of vigilance among staff.

For critical complaints that may escalate into medical disputes, the
complaint office will notify the medical dispute contingency task force,
headed by the director and senior management of the hospital, to
initiate the medical dispute process involving a highly coordinated
effort of various units of the hospital. In 2019, most of the complaints
were resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes. In 2019, 6 medical disputes cases (2018: 21) were
materialised during the year.
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4.2 Service quality management 42 BRGEEER
The Group adopts a comprehensive service quality management AEERDRTERBEEEIRE
system consisting of the following key components: R BENTEEZEKHS
e structure — the availability of clinical resources, including . %E%—E’Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ—fﬁﬁ&f
medical equipment, hospital governance structure, human BIEBESRE B
resources, bed to staff ratio, clinical objectives, practice EHEANEIR - RAH
guidelines and standards; BEItE BAEE E
B 5 5| RARAE
e process — the clinical processes, including whether clinical s RE-BAKREF BEHR
procedures are conducted according fo the relevant RFMEDIRBEBRE
specifications, work flow and nosocomial infections; and HETT T’F A2 I B B Rk
Rk
e outcome - patient’s well-being after receiving service, including e BR-BEEXERBEE
efficacy of treatment, recovery progress, health conditions, B8 /R BERENN
satisfaction and complications arising from treatments. VR E fEREAR D W
BE ARSI AT EIE o
The service quality management system has a wide scope. In RS EEERERBEREZ - K
addition to monitoring the quality of diagnosis (whether it is accurate, B2 M é% DR T R
comprehensive and prompt), the quality of treatment (whether HEE&HUE) EE (/ﬁfxe
it is effective, prompt, thorough and of a reasonable duration), Tﬁxﬁ( SRR F&E&E@F’?AE)
nosocomial infections control and clinical deficiency (whether @ e Bk 2 4% ) 2 B R R BE (G2
resulting injuries, harm or pain to patients that could otherwise be T%%F$$XTLAEWJFT5&
avoided), the system also monitors clinical efficiency, reasonableness ﬁ WEE 18 Eiff) G Z
of medical fees, the input-output relationship of applied medical /%JTQW FRIREN - BEER
techniques, systematic services and continuum and community /\EE M PR EERNIRAE
feedback. Under this system, each hospital department is given HER R EREREENER
quantifiable service quality targets to achieve and parameters HERE EZBRET BE&
to monitor. Service quality management and improvement is a BlEERMHAENNA SR
continuous process. Any deficiency, once identified, will be handled ?éfi BEREZE28 - RKEE
promptly with appropriate level of supervision. ERRUGER —ERFENRE -
EIAPE — 4% - G UEE
EEBARRIAREE o
High standard of clinical governance maintains the Group’s inpatient REERKEEFERAEENTR
fatality rate consistent with the risks inherent in hospital operations AT KRBT iE & RITEW
and industry. As the Group increases its intake of patients with critical EERBRF B -BEAE
conditions and/or require specialized and complex emergency ENEKEEEER UFEEHE
procedures that carry higher risks of unfavourable clinical outcome, FIEEMESZFNEFTE RS
its inpatient fatality rate may increase. The table below sets forth the FIER IR 4 %J—L SR ERE  HAR
Group’'s inpatient fatality rate for the years indicated: MAFRT RS EEE - TRHT
RFTRFE R AN EBE S ER B AL
T
Change 2019 2018
BEIR —E-hnEF —E-N\F
Total number of inpatient deaths  1EFEH AL T EE +9.8% 324 295
% of total inpatients H1ER R ABEN
Bok -0.02 b.p. 0.28% 0.30%

—_—

98

EEE——

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

4.3 Patient privacy protection

The Group’s hospitals have a dedicated medical records
management department to handle patients’” medical records. The
hospitals strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations in relation
to patient privacy, including Guangdong Province Medical Records
Writing and Management Specifications and Healthcare Institutions
Medical Records Management Rules. The hospitals have stringent
protocols on the creation, maintenance, reviewing and copying,
sealing or unsealing and preservation of patient medical records.
These protocols are also design to ensure that the records are not
accidentally accessed, processed, erased, lost or used without
authorization. Patient medical records are generally kept for 15 years.
Before access to the relevant medical records is granted, patients or
their families will need to produce the original of the patient's identity
documents and a signed consent lefter. The medical administration

43

RIE - HEREBRSE

BERLKRE

AEENBRREEREREE
RIREEBENERLI - Bl
BRETREERLEENER
ERER BR(ERERES
HMEERE) M (EREIERE
EEMRE)  BRUBEBERT
SRHVRIE - il EHIEER
BT RRF - 7] B BARR
R ERENE ERREMD
BTEBRIMEER BRIE B
ERSAAREREER - BEEE
RBBERTISF HEEESH
HE B ELkA - BEXEKE
AN R EE & OB R R

department is responsible for overseeing and auditing medical ZRABE BERHEEEERSE
records management. RBRRER -

The Group also promotes patient privacy awareness among staff REE T ERETEREN RS
by conducting regular training and sharing sessions. Hospital staff ZE ReEEINBERLEH -
are sensitive to patient privacy and place additional emphasis BB THEERLRTHZ

on protecting patient privacy during every aspect of the clinical
processes. Save as required by applicable laws and regulations,
patient information can only be released with consent.

Each of the Group’s hospitals has an information technology
department responsible for reviewing and implementing data
protection measures in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. The hospitals’ resources that store and manage patient
data are physically disconnected from internet access points to
prevent external leakage and tempering activities. The hospitals strictly
adhere to grade three security requirements under the Administrative
Measures for the Graded Protection of Information Security. The
hospitals’ network security, system security and database security are
reviewed from time fo time and are comprehensively audited at least
once every year fo ensure the required standards are met.

The hospitals have formulated policies for privacy data administration
which sets out the overall responsibilities and procedures to ensure
that all users adhere to defined standards. The hospitals have
promulgated internal instructions setting out specific procedures
regarding the handling of documents containing patient data. Staff
are also required to observe the hospitals’ internal instructions on
the security of computer systems (including storage, processing,
transmission and management of classified information, data
encryption and physical security of computer systems). Violation of the
above requirements will result in disciplinary actions. The hospitals
provide regular updates and trainings to staff on data protection to
cultivate their data protection awareness. Staff who need to have
access to sensitive data are also required to enter into a confidential
undertaking with respect to any patient data, operational, financial
and other sensitive information that they may come across.
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The hospitals implement strong access controls to information. The
degree of access and control the staff has to sensitive information
is determined by reference to the relevance to their role, their post
and/or seniority and is reviewed from time to time. Any unnecessary
or obsolete access rights will be revoked immediately. All network
actions are recorded on the systems and continuously monitored for
any irregularity. In the event of an information security breach, such
records will enable the hospitals to carry out detailed investigations
and damage control.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had, in all material
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating o patient privacy.

Suppliers

The Group’s suppliers primarily consist of agents and distributors of
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables and medical equipment.
The Group seeks fo manage inventory risks by maintaining adequate
inventories and building strong relationships directly with suppliers.
Suppliers are cautiously selected for quality, reputation, price, product
and service offerings and delivery capability. The Group routinely
assesses its suppliers’ performance, credit-worthiness, re-confirm
their qualifications (such as GMP and/or GSP Certificates, where
appropriate) and ensure the compliance status and quality of the
supplies. The Group undertakes reasonable due diligence of its
suppliers’ qualifications, including:

o suppliers are required to provide all relevant qualification
documents and licenses for inspection;

o the procurement department is responsible for verifying the
genuineness, validity and scope of the qualification documents
and licenses;

o the qualification documents and licenses will be provided
to the relevant departments, including warehouse, medical
equipment department and pharmacy department for the
relevant staff to take note of the source of the supplies and their
qualifications; and

o the suppliers shall promptly produce any updates or changes
to the qualification documents and licenses.

The Group has adopted a stringent policy that prohibits suppliers
from contacting and offering rebates to doctors to solicit business. If
any supplier is found to be in violation, the Group will immediately
terminate the business relationship. The Group believes that such
practice minimizes the risk of corrupt practices, thereby safeguarding
the quality of the supplies.
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The Group has an internal rating system for its suppliers, which can REBERHEERRE NPT AT

broadly be classified into: B ARBOER:

) excellent suppliers: the Group should increase purchase i TSR AR E G
volume, and maintain stable relationship with, these suppliers; MRAZEHERNIRES

W ERERFRERR

(i)  mediocre suppliers: the Group should gradually reduce i ETBHEHER: AEEBFZE
purchase volume with, and pay closer scrutiny on, these B D 1R 3% S H R R A IR
suppliers; and BEEVTHHETERT S

s N

il poor suppliers: these suppliers are blacklisted and the Group i) TIBABHEER  ZFHE
should no longer purchase from them. These suppliers AEHEIAREE K&
typically include those who do not comply with the purchase A BmERE 2%
agreement, have questionable reputation, always misrepresent HEHBEBRETETR
the product price, do not deliver the required quantity at the Bihe BEAME K
required time, deliver supplies with inferior quality, or show no BEMERES RITEH
improvement despite repeated warnings. ERBEXINHEHE X

NEEMEEERSLKZ R
EEMRBERNHIER -

The Group recognizes that purchasing products with reduced REESHINEBERERAR

environmental and human health impacts is vital to sustainable BEVEREMHNEREAJFE

healthcare. The Group is exploring various ways to achieve BEREREMEZ - AEETE

“environmentally preferable purchasing” (“‘EPP*), an act of purchasing REREBGE  UAERNRRE

products whose environmental impacts have been considered and f]([EPP]) - —TEFTEEE MTEIR

found to be less damaging to the environment and human health REB2TAEGEAEEEEERY
when compared to competing products. EPP may be feasible to RE R ABRRENEEERER

achieve overall cost saving and waste reduction while meeting WFEmA BT R o EPPIE W

the needs of patients. The Group has begun its EPP efforts with a BRABKAREREENAELS

few carefully targeted purchasing changes, and if feasible, will AR DB RFENKBAITLZ

expand the scope of environmental purchasing fo select as many KoAEEREPPE NN E B

environmentally sound, healthy and safe products as a hospital can EHIRRBED LT HE - A

use. The Group believes that EPP may become an important part of T HEERNRREKESE T

the process foward sustainable operations. Downstream corrections ENETEERANETREEN

of environmental or occupational health issues are generally more RBR BEARLZZER A&E

costly — in terms of money, labor, technical complexity, and adverse RBEPPE K R B M Al 5 B

publicity — than prevention through EPP. By carefully selecting ZHEHEZEKILS o RIRIHB

products, a hospital may achieve: ¥EEMAEN SR -T2

BT FifEMEERTAINRA
BREETE- 2R BIAPPHE
TEMEEAMNHE NS ENR
B-EHhERERTPEETE B

Bra]

e a significant reduction in overall impact on the environment, s AAREHREMNEEY
cost reduction with lower purchase prices or changes that 2 - DUBE A 2R B B 45 oK
reduce or eliminate waste disposal, hazardous waste, and/or BN (B A8 R B ARORL D X
the need for worker safety measures; A 55 AR D SORBR )

REEVMENRER,/ X
BOBEILRRHEBRE

e a healthier environment for patients and staff through reduced e BBARLEEVENEX

exposure to hazardous substance; and RAARETEEE N
BREERIT &
e opporfunities for positive publicity and promotion. o BlIETFHEERERNKS -
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Any implementation of EPP is expected to be gradual, and may
require substantial changes to purchasing and clinical configuration
of the hospital. The Group will comprehensively assess the long-term
benefits of EPP, clinical feasibility and business considerations when
making any purchasing changes.

In addition to the purchase of pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment, the Group also relies on various vendors
for engineering and renovation services at the hospital premises
from time to time. The Group uses its best efforts to ensure that these
vendors are properly qualified and will take all appropriate measures
to protect the environment both inside and outside the work site
and limit harmful effects to the public and property due to wastes,
pollution, noise and other nuisances caused by the engineering work.
These vendors are expected to satisfy the applicable requirements
under the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC and provide the workers with adequate social security and
benefits under the relevant laws. The Group pays close attention
on the engineering work and may from time to time engage third-
party supervision to ensure that the engineering work meets the
applicable national engineering specifications and standards and
environmental protection.

Anti-bribery and corruption risks

The PRC government has recently enhanced its anti-bribery efforts to
prevent improper payments and other benefits received by doctors,
staff and hospital administrators in connection with the procurement
of pharmaceutical and medical supplies and the provision of
healthcare services. In addition, Grade A Class lIl hospitals in the PRC,
such as the Group’s Kanghua Hospital, are subject to particularly
stringent requirements, including as part of the criteria for such
ratings, requiring all such hospitals to (i) implement internal controls
and risk management measures addressing bribery and corruption
risks; and (ii) undergo annual inspections from relevant regulatory
authorities as to their anti-bribery and corruption status. The Group
has implemented the following policies and procedures to address
potential bribery and corruption incidents:

o an anti-bribery function at the Group level led by the chief
financial officer of the Company. This function is in charge
of developing the overall framework of anti-bribery and
corruption policies and procedures and providing guidance
and supervision towards implementing them across every
aspect of the Group’s operations. Each of the Group’s hospitals
will immediately report any suspected incidents of bribery and
corruption to the chief financial officer of the Company, who
will then carry out any further investigations if necessary and
determine the appropriate course of action. From time to time,
the Group provides training to its staff and updates on recent
anti-bribery and corruption issues and practices as they arise;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

the Group has in place a robust whistle blower programme
accessible by staff and business partners, including a
dedicated hotline and an email address, to receive reports of
alleged corruption on a no repercussion basis, with the option
of anonymity. The Group has established a zero-tolerance
policy towards staff accepting any form of bribes. Such policy is
included in the staff handbook and code of conduct. Any of the
staff found in breach of anti-bribery and corruption policy will
be dismissed. The Group also takes appropriate measures to
discourage patients from offering any form of payment or gift
to staff for better or priority services, including displaying the
relevant policies and laws in prominent places in the hospital
premises;

the Group has close oversight over every aspect of the
procurement processes. The Group has established a
systematic multi-tier approval process involving various
departments, dedicated governance committees and
management for different categories of procurement. The
procurement processes are segregated and no particular
individual or department has excessive authority, control
or influence, thereby minimising the risk of corruption or
abuse. Before engaging in any business relationship with
a new supplier, the Group conducts due diligence to obtain
reasonable understanding of its background and its connection
with the Group, including how such supplier was referred to
the Group in the first place. The Group requires its suppliers to
agree to anti-bribery and corruption provisions in the supply
agreements. In particular, suppliers are prohibited from
soliciting business with the hospital staff directly. Any violation
will result in the Group’s immediate business termination with
such suppliers; and

as part of the Group’s key clinical governance, the
Pharmaceutical Administration and Therapeutics Committee at
each of the Group’s hospitals regularly reviews drug prescription
patterns. Any unreasonable or inexplicable irregularities or red
flags indicative of a deliberate attempt to substantially increase
the prescription of certain drugs will be promptly reported and
investigated.
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RIB - HERERRE

—_—

In line with requirements under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Group has established a strict “no red packet policy” for medical
professionals not to personally accept any form of payment or
advantages from patients in return for more favourable treatments.
The Group requires all healthcare professionals to report to
management of all instances of red packets offered by patients.
The table below sets forth the number and monetary amount of
red packets rejected by the healthcare professionals for the years

RIBE R BUAR SRR HRE
AEEE BERMOEHAEBITE
BB ERABER] - TFM
TWEBE RBRRERANEE
MR E R R RIAR AT ©

AEBREMBEBHARERE
BEREBEREARZH B
Mo NREIIFIRFEREEME

indicated: AEBBNABRHE RS
Change 2019 2018
& —ZE-hF — N\
Number of red packets rejected ERATBHE +53.8% 263 171
Total monetary amount involved Pt & 88
(RMB) (AR%T) +55.7% 216,478 138,993
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had, in all material BHE-T-hE+-HA=+—H
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a EFE - AEEERESHEEL
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery and corruption. WFFBERAE e kEKERE
FSEAER
COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMMES 5. #HEEAE

As encompassed in the motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice”

BEAEAS o EEE E), the Group regards social contribution as one
of its core volues. The Group prides itself on being a socially responsible
private hospital operator. The Group demonstrates its commitment to
community service through organized and sustainable community benefit
programmes primarily providing: (i) free and discounted care to those
unable to afford healthcare; and (i) services or education designed to
improve community health and increase access to healthcare. These
programmes are purposely designed to create meaningful impact by
responding to identified community needs, as opposed to being random
acts of kindness.

The Group has implemented a comprehensive framework for planning,
delivering and reporting its community benefit efforts, including the
following elements:

o sustainable infrastructure — the Groups has fostered a culture that
supports its community benefit initiatives and has in place operational
elements that sustain the community benefit programmes, such
as clinical resources, staff, budget and supporting policies and
procedures;

o plan for community benefit — through regular communication
with public health organizations and the community, the Group
continuously assesses and prioritizes community health needs and
develops community benefit programmes accordingly;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

. account for community benefit — the Group has established effective
administrative and accounting processes to account for and report
community benefit fo its stakeholders; and

. evaluate community benefit programmes — the Group assesses the
quality, effectiveness and impact of the relevant programmes and
activities.

In 2019, the Group organized numerous volunteer programmes and free
clinics, with a focus primarily on children and elderly people with limited
health awareness and/or access to affordable and adequate healthcare.
The free clinics also penetfrated remote areas where basic healthcare
resources are scarce. The table below sets forth certain data of the Relevant

B

e HEBNEE-AKECH
MWEELEERFF  WH

HERkERRE

EH

i

ERBEYMEREHERNER:

&

o HERAGFEFE-NEBFE
HEAFE R EHHNEE  ARR
%2;&0
—nF ZIKEIZH%KEMJ?E%

IEE&%EEV BRHUREREREE

BERER/KBAZZZNE %LE’J

BRBAHEHBEREIENRERK

Operations community benefit efforts for the years indicated:

F-REELNMAAEABRERE

z

FRELE -

TREINFAREE

EHREEBLREN ITENE TR

17
Change 2019 2018
BE) —Z-NF — N\
Volunteer activities SHETLIHY
Number of volunteer activities = LESRE +61.1% 340 21
Number of staff participants 28BT AKX -54.8% 739 1,635
Total number of volunteer man-hours SEE TIEE) A BRFE +30.7% 3,814 2,919
Free clinics REBED
Number of free clinics RBELINE +0.3% 308 307
Number of staff participants S2HET AR +14.4% 787 688
Estimated number of patients served FFr Az 7 & BIHETAR +28.8% 23,492 18,245
Total number of free clinic man-hours RESDRIR +16.9% 2,454 2,099
Total amount of compensation provided MZEEEESLHE T
to staff for parficipating in free Rt R eEE
clinics (RMB) (AR%T) +11.6% 25,000 22,400
The general increase in all aspects of volunteer activities and free clinics ﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁ WEREISHRREE FEJ B

was primarily attributable to the inclusion of the Kangxin Hospital and the
Anhui Hualin Group and the Group’s ongoing efforts in the promotion of the
“Kanghua” brand through these channels.
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R - HERERTRE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE'S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND G CIRE B RERREESD
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX A=
A.  Environmental A IRIR
KPI
BRENIES
Aspect Al: Emissions
BEA : BER
Types of emissions and respective The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of Al
emissions data greenhouse gas emission Al.2
HERU) & 28 I AR B BERUER BRAKEEBWIERERBH A EARRIR
Greenhouse gas emission in total
mERBATEME
Total hazardous and non-hazardous Wastewaters produced: 318,692 tons (2018: 293,463 tons) Al3
waste produced and intensity FTEE A BEK + 318,692M8 (== — )\ 4 : 293,463 W) Al4
MEARERBEEREMBEENEE
Hazardous solid wastes produced: 588,721kg (2018:
540,103kg)
FEABEEREREEY - 588721 AT
ZZ—\4F : 540,103 A fT)
Domestic wastes produced: 2,943,221kg (2018: 2,399,950kg)
PREEAEAIRRERY) - 2,943 21 AT
ZZF—)\F 12,399,950 A T)
Measures to mitigate emissions and The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of Al5
results achieved greenhouse gas emission
AR HE N8 BV i M PSR BRASE EBIIERE R BN E R

—_—

106 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
SEEEE——



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - HERERRSE

KPI
BRERERS
Description of how hazardous and Handling Al6
non-hazardous wastes are handled, o FE

reduction initiatives and results
achieved

LRI A E M EERREYN A

BARE L EBNIEE LSRR

Wasterwaters and hazardous solid wastes: handled by
qualified contractors licensed by environmental authorities
KR BEERERY - AERFEHPIFANSER
AR R TR

Domestic wastes: handled by eligible contractors through
tendering

EEEREY BT RN BEREHEE

Reduction initiatives

B 1 E A B Y1 B

Domestic wastes: segregation and recycling; promoting
staff awareness and paper-less office initiatives; reuse of
components in decommissioned equipment and furniture
EEEEY ABEEW  REEIEHREENRA
Hit  BEENARERBELEENANT

Wastewaters and hazardous wastes: production of these
wastes is integral to clinical activities and maintaining a high
clinical standard and environment sanitation. The Group
currently considers it is not feasible to excessively reduce the
production of these wastes without compromising clinical
standards, which are of overriding importance

KRB EERY ET2EIIEVESELERY
BARFEERRERRBHERE - AEEB AR
RBERIZERENEES T AIE RSO BEEETH -
MZBEFEEREE  BURBI L TN IE AT 1T

—
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RIR - HERERBRSE

KPI
BRERES
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: EREA
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption  Electricity: 39,291,865 kw/hr (2018: 34,069,473 kw/hr) A2
by type B : 39,291,865 F ELEF (ZF — /\4F : 34,069,473 F FLEF)
REAE D MERE R KEEERE
=3
Water consumption in total Water consumption: 774,110 tons (2018: 731,808 tons) A2.2
mREKE FEKE © 77411008 (ZF — J\4F : 731,808 IiF)
Energy use efficiency initiatives and results  Efficiency improving initiatives A2.3
achieved M e te 512 A2.4
BEREE AR EI RFTBK R Use of energy efficient light source, water heating, air-

conditioning and equipment; staff awareness; regular audit
of energy usage and inspection of energy demanding
processes

FRESRORIR KE - EAREE RREIER:
EHEZEIRER MR EERE KIZF

Results achieved

VREI S

Energy consumption per gross floor area was increased by
7.4% primarily because of the full consolidation of the Anhui
Hualin Group and Kangxin Hospital
DREmMBNRREEEMNT A%  FETEZBER
SERELBRNZFEHAEME

The Group will continue to monitor the effectiveness of the
initiatives on a long term basis
75 | G A R R BRER R ST B AR

—_—
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RIR - HERERRSE

KPI
BREMIER

Water efficiency improving initiatives and  Efficiency improving initiatives
results achieved W te &t &l

RARKBRE B RFAEAR Leak detection and repair; use of efficient and low flow
plumbing fixtures; motion sensor-activated faucets and flow
control, waterless medical vacuum pumps; use full loads in
sanitizers, sterilisers and laundry washing machines
BRBARGEE  FRASN BERETBEE PR
JEKBEER R m 8L S - BREIKEZER  TEm s L
FHEES - BB LR

Results achieved

VR PES

The increase in water consumption was primarily
attributable to the inclusion of the operations of Kangxin
Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group in 2019. The Group will
continue to monitor the effectiveness of the initiatives on a
long term basis

IKEHEFEEN  FEDA_ZT—NFEEMELER &
THEREENKEEBIYN - AREBEBERAE
PR EI B

Total packaging material used for finished  The Relevant Operations do not involve significant use of
products packaging materials
HXmPAABEMHNES AEEHNEBASEEBU TP RREERLEMH

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3: RIERRAAER

The significant impacts of activities on the  The Relevant Operations had no significant impact on the
environment and natural resources environment and natural resources during 2019
and the actions taken to managethem BHAKEEBR T - FHRBLARAAERITEE
EBEBHRBELRARERNERY ATE
EREENEEBEEZENT

A2.5

A3.1

—
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RIR - HERERBRSE

—_—

Social

Employment and Labour Practices
EBERETIER

(os]
o
i3S

KPI
BAREMIER

Aspect Bl: Employment
BB : EfE

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region

IR - EREAL - Fh
ZIDHEE R

RAE I e [

Employee attrition rate
EERKLE

As of 31 December 2019: B1.1
HE-_ZT-NF+=-A=+—8":

Total of number of staff of the Group: 3,838 (2018: 3,469
including 750 staff of Kangxin Hospital and the Anhui Hualin
Group acquired in 2018)
Zﬁﬁlma\ﬂ@%ﬁz 3838A(=F
(BERZZE-N\FRENELE
BTI750A))

—J\EF : 3,469 A
S R L REREE A

— by nature of work
—RIELES D

Doctors: 904 (2018 791)
BA 904 A (ZE—NF 79TA)

Other medical, administrative and support staff: 2,934

(2018: 2,678)

H g &  THRXIENETL 2934 A
ZZ—\F :2,678A)

— by gender
—RMRIE 5

Male: 1,060 (2018:1,001)
S 1,060 A (ZE— /4 : 1,001 A)
Female: 2,778 (2018: 2,468)

Z 2778 A(ZZF— N\ : 2,468 A)

-by age group
— R FHRAERE D

Age 51 or above: 298 (2018: 287)
51508 A E - 298 A(ZZF—/\5 : 287 A)

Age between 3110 50: 1,538 (2018: 1,369)
3NES505% 1 1,538 A (ZF—)\E : 1,369 A)

Age below 30: 2,002 (2018: 1,813)
30BREIAT 2,002 A (ZZ—/\F 1 1,813 A)

Attrition rate: 11.7% (2018: 5.0%) B1.2
AR R NT%(ZF— )\F : 5.0%)
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RIR - HERERRSE

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
BRERETIER BRENIER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EmHB2: REHEZE

Relating fo providing a safe working In 2019: B2
environment and protecting employees —F — .4 :
from occupational hazards
BRIRELZ 2 TERBENMREEER  Number of staff contracting infections due to occupation: 19
RBEERE (2018: 23)
RREZBRANETIHE - YA(ZE—/\F:23A)

Number of staff deaths: 0 (2018: 0)
BTIWTHE :0A(ZE—NAF:0A)

Number of staff disabilities due to occupation: 0 (2018: 0)
FBERANBEIHE - OA(ZE-N\F:0A)

Number of man-days lost due to occupation related injuries

or illness: 0 (2018: 27)

ARERFECEIEREBNMIEBRIRE : 0K
—E-)N\F:27K)

Health and safety measures adopted:
BRI RER 2

Regular audit and inspection of operating premises;
EHRERLIRERE R

proactive risk reporting culture among staff;
EETIREKRFBREAE

continuous learning from health and safety incidents and
improvement of processes;
FETRFERZE2ENPEBFLRINERRF
regular staff health and exposure assessment;
TEHRETTE TR R K AR

provision of adequate protective gears;
RETHNER

third party inspection and assessment; and
F=mERE &

adequate support to handle incidents of medical violence
BTRAXFHARERBERNEMH

—
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RIR - HERERBRSE

—_—

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
EBRERREZIER BRENIER
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : #ERIEII
Policies on improving employees’ In 2019: B3
knowledge and skills for discharging —E-NF:
duties at work
BRIRFEEET TIEBEMA#H Y Number of parficipants in fraining and development
REERBR programmes: 30,360 (2018: 28,145)
2MmE RERBEEHE T AR : 30,360 A
(ZZ—N\F:28145A)
Total number of training man-hours: 388,120 (2018: 355,162)
4R TR - 388,120 /MR (—F — J\4F © 355,162/ N )
Description of training activities The Group has a comprehensive Continuing Education and
L FES) Training Management Policy
AEBRBL2EMNEERS ZIBTEGE
Training activities include fraining on clinical skills; nursing
and patient caretaking skills; and comprehensive training on
staff management capability, cultural values and technical
skills
BIEEBIEERIR AL - EIR R AR ERAEHIE
UERHETIEREN  MEEBERRMEENZEE
Bl
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
FEMEBA : &5 TR
Employment practices to avoid child and  The Group stringently complies with all national and local B4.1
forced labour laws, including the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor
By 1EE T K ag 45 Ty B HsE fl Contract Law of the PRC;
REBBBET BRI TER  BHE(PEAR
HANBE B EE) KR EARKNMBELEBERIE)
The Group conducts background checks and reasonable
due diligence on job applicants; and
REBHBURBAETERAELAEETRES
K
labour unions are established to protect the rights and
interests of staff
& TELAMRE S TR &A=
Steps taken to eliminate such practices During 2019, the Group had no non-compliance in this B4.2

when discovered
EBIRERIFRE ER A BIEAATR
BXH) 27 B%

respect

RZF—NF  AEELEUTEOTERER
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RIR - HERERRSE

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
BRERETIER BRENIER
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : HEEEE
Policies on managing environmental and  The Relevant Operations do not have a supply chain business  B5
social risks of the supply chain FRREEBI BB EHERER
EIRH A IR AL g AR BUR
It has a stringent criteria in selecting suppliers and conducts
reasonable due diligence to ensure that its suppliers are
appropriately qualified and licensed
HEME AR L BRABRERELE TSR ERE
EURRMHERREABEENERMER
The Group will continuously assess the feasibility of
“environmentally preferable purchasing” (EPP)
N5 G AR fh [IRAREREE | (EPP) Y AT AT 1E
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BHEB6 : EmEE
Percentage of fotal products sold or Not applicable to the Relevant Operations B6.1
shipped subiject to recalls for safety and 38 I A B [ 48 4 ¥ 765
health reasons
EERCEXERBETRR S ERE
RIEESHMARKKNE DL
Number of products and service related  In 2019: B6.2
complaints received and how they are —Z— A4 :
dealt with
EEBNEDERGHIZFHE ALK Number of crifical complains: 16 (2018: 33)
FES 7% BB B (16 R (ZF—/\F : 33)K)
Number of regular complaints: 67 (2018: 188)
TEHREFEA : 67 R (ZF—/\F : 188)K)
Number of immaterial complaints: 337 (2018: 315)
FEBERFHE - 3B7R(ZZ—/\F : 315%)
The Group’s hospitals have a comprehensive complaint
management system. In 2019, most of the complaints were
resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes.
AEENBRRAZTHNRFERRS - —T—hF -
RBORFEEME - EHLBARSBEYLS -
Practices relating fo observing and The Relevant Operations do not involve a significant degree B6.3

protecting intellectual property rights
BN RENBEEEGENED

of infellectual property rights
BERREEBL B REREENBMERE

—
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B HEREARS

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
ERRE TR BIRAN ISR
Quality assurance process and recall The Group has a comprehensive service quality B6.4
procedures management system consisting of structure, process and
EE2RTiREREmBKRET outcome. It has a wide scope covering every aspect of
operations. Dedicated customer service department collects
and gauges patient feedback and ensures that patient
experience is positive through proactive outreach and
responsive communication
AEBRBEBRIERE BFAEREANZERBE
EEERG HEERER RELENTESIE -FE&
BEFREHFABENFAERERE  TEBTHHRRE
REmBBRBREES RIFER
Consumer data protection and privacy Patient medical records are kept in strict compliance with B6.5

policies, how they are implemented
and monitored

HEBEERMRE RFLBBER - A KR8
BEIT R B R TR

—_—

applicable laws and regulations. The Group has stringent
protocols on accessing these records. The medical
administration department is responsible for overseeing
and auditing medical records management
BEBELHEDBRBETERERERRRE - K&
EREERZECHENBRBRIE BEBEHEEERER
ERBELSRER

The Group’s hospitals maintain a certain level of information
security infrastructure and implement strong access controls
to information. Regular audits on the infrastructure are
carried out to ensure relevant standards are met
REBBREF -—TRENERRLEARRENEH
HEDEROBRES - HeHARREETERE
RARRTT A MR E

Staff are trained to be vigilant and sensitive about patient
privacy. Policies and guidelines are implemented to create
working processes that safeguard patient privacy
BTEEIANBERLRIFILE G RGUR - D EHER
B RIESI AR REBERILHO TIERE
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RIE - HERERHRE
Employment and Labour Practices KPI
BRERETIER BRENIER
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EHEB7 : RES
Policies and compliance with relevant Policies and procedures include: B7
laws and regulations that have a . anti-bribery function at Group level;
significant impact on the issuer relating whistle blower programmes;
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money e close oversight over procurement processes;
laundering o drug prescription patterns; and
BREADIEFEER - Bh3 - BREFREREE e nored packet policy
EﬁEﬁZﬁﬁ&L—riﬂ’*ﬂ/\ﬁijﬁ@’ Eﬁz%&&ﬁ@%
B AR R AR MR B 7N 5% [ B H B S B B A
o B{HIE
U B ERRERIE
o EYWEAIRA K
o  BRABERE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEmBS : it BIRE
Focus areas of contribution In 2019, the Group organised numerous volunteer B8.1
EIERBRE programmes and free clinics, with a focus primarily on
children and elderly people with limited health awareness
and/or access to affordable and adequate healthcare.
The free clinics also penetrated remote areas where basic
heolthcore resources are scarce
—NF AEBEBAEERERERNEESD
SPRREEEE /)\/EE}&/‘JZ%’ELM% SARENRRE
e F{%KMEE&%A REGDIARASNERE
B & R IR 6 R = b [
Resources contributed In 2019: B8.2
FEREIR TN

Number of volunteer man-hours: 3,814 (2018: 2,919)
28K TIES A ERFH : 3,814/ 8F
(ZZ—)\F : 2,919/7EF)

Number of free clinic man-hours: 2,454 (2018: 2,099)
RESDTREE 2,454/ \F (ZZT— )\4F : 2,099 /\#F)

Total amount of compensation provided to staff for
participating in free clinics: RMB25,000 (2018: RMB22,400)
m2EeEEDMNE TRHMBMARE : AR 25000
T(ZE—N\F: AR¥22,4007T)

BERFE

BERMOABRAR 3§ 2019

—
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

B EEkeREEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Junyang, aged 37, is an executive Director and chairman of the
Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operation and
strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wang was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wang has approximately 13 years of industry and
management experience, and is familiar with modern enterprise management,
capital operations and marketing. Mr. Wang joined Kanghua Hospital in August
2007 and has held various positions since then, including assistant to general
manager responsible for hospital operations from August 2007 to July 2009,
manager of the business department responsible for business development
from August 2009 to November 2012 and vice general manager of the business
department responsible for business management and overall strategic
development of the hospital since December 2012. Mr. Wang has also served as
director and general manager responsible for business management and overall
strategic development of Kanghua Group since August 2007 and Xingye Group
since December 2008. Mr. Wang has served on the fourth council of Dongguan
City Houjie Chamber of Commerce (REEMEHHEFMUEEEFEE E) since
December 2009. In 2012, Mr. Wang served as the president of the fifth council of
Dongguan Young Entrepreneurs Association (RS F XX B e L AHIE

22 &) InJune 2014, Mr. Wang was awarded Outstanding Young Dongguan
Businessman (1875 & 5575 ) by the World Dongguan Entrepreneurs Convention
Organising Committee (R EEfE A E 44 Z 5 €). Mr. Wang is a member of
the Wang Family and is the cousin of Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon and nephew of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin.

Mr. CHEN Wangzhi, aged 49, is an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Chen is primarily responsible for the overall hospital
operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chen was appointed as the
executive Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a
joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Chen has over 13 years of experience
in the healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the chairman responsible for hospital operations and development.
Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established
as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served as the chairman
and general manager responsible for hospital operations and development. He
was principally responsible for supervising the construction and development of
Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital from which he had gained extensive
experience in hospital management and development. Under the leadership
of Mr. Chen, Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital have developed a
management style reflective of the values and characteristics of the “Kanghua”
brand and obtained many prestigious accreditations and recognitions. Mr. Chen
obtained an executive master's degree in business administration (5 2% & 12
A B T &) from Sun Yat-sen University (F7 1Ll K 22) in December 2014. Mr.
Chen is a member of the Wang Family and is uncle-in-law of Mr. Wang Junyang
and spouse of Ms. Wang Aigin.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Hung Simon, aged 31, is an executive Director and vice chairman
of the Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operations
and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wong was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wong has approximately 9 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wong joined Kanghua Hospital in July 2010 and
has since served various roles, including assistant to chairman responsible for
implementing and executing chairman’s decisions from July 2010 to April 2012,
manager of the finance department responsible for the overall supervision of
the financial affairs of the hospital from May 2012 to June 2013, and vice general
manager of the business department responsible for hospital administration
management since July 2013. Mr. Wong actively participates in the business
communities in Dongguan. He has served as the vice chairman of the Hong Kong
Houjie Clansmen Association (& & [Z 5 [& #8 &) since January 2016. Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor's degree in management from the California State University,
Northridge in December 2010. Mr. Wong is a member of the Wang Family and
is the cousin of Mr. Wang Junyang and nephew of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms.
Wang Aigin.

Ms. WANG Aigin, aged 49, is an executive Director. Ms. Wang is primarily
responsible for the overall financial management and capital investment of
the Group. Ms. Wang has approximately 22 years of group management
experience, in particular group financial management. Ms. Wang joined Renkang
Hospital in August 2005 when it was established as a limited liability company
in the PRC and has since served as a supervisor and a vice general manager
of the finance department responsible for financial management. Ms. Wang
joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established as a limited
liability company in the PRC and has since served as a vice general manager
of the finance department responsible for financial management. She was also
substantially involved in the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital
and Renkang Hospital. Ms. Wang has also served as a director and vice general
manager of Kanghua Group since June 2002 and Xingye Group since June 1997,
and has obtained significant experience in implementing and executing group
control systems in financial management, human resources management, risk
management, audit management and cultural management. Ms. Wang is a
member of the Wang Family and is the aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Wong
Wai Hung Simon, and spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. LV Yubo, aged 69, is a non-executive Director. He is primarily responsible
for overseeing the corporate development and strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Lv joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as non-executive
Director in June 2016. Mr. Lv has more than 43 years of extensive experience in
hospital management. Since October 1974, Mr. Lv has played an instrumental
role in the development of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (/& H & # Bz ), which has now become one of the largest hospitals
of traditional Chinese medicine in the PRC. Mr. Lv is currently a lifetime honorary
director (4% & % 2% &) of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese
Medicine. Before such appointment, Mr. Lv had served numerous managerial
roles at Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese Medicine, including
vice director (&l fz & and director (% & ). Mr. Lv has served in a number of
healthcare associations in the PRC, including deputy chairman (&] € &) of the
China Hospital Association (9 B &5 7% ) since February 2006, chairman (& E)
of the Guangdong Provincial Association of Chinese Medicine (/& 5 & 1 &

B2 @) since August 2010 and chairman (= T & &) of the Chinese I\/\edicine
Hospital Division of the China Hospital Association (7 B 2 B3 15 & /b 28 &2
&) since August 2015. Mr. Lv is well regarded in the medical profession in Ihe
PRC and has received numerous awards, including Outstanding Contribution
to Chinese Hospitals (7 B & B 28 ! & k) from the China Hospital Association
(BB BT 12 ) in 2006, National Outstanding Director of the Chinese Medicine
Hospital (& Bl 2 &= Ef’a?ﬂ%ﬁ) from the China Association of Chinese
Medicine (H %£ /R 2 22 22 &) in September 2007, Outstanding Management
Personnel Mﬁ?%E A Z“) from the China Association of Chinese Medicine
(7 %= R B 822 =) in 2014 and the First Class Sci-Tech Advancement Award of
GuongdongF%ownce(E%Ei%ﬁ*#ﬁfﬁﬁiﬁ——égﬁilﬂon11he People’s Government
of Guangdong Province (& R & A R BUAT) in 2015. Mr. Lv graduated from
Guangdong Provincial University of Continuing Technology Education (& 5
E # BHE K E) in July 1981 majoring in English, and Guangdong Economics
Management Cadre College (& 5 & 47 & 2 2 Z8 2 F5x ) in July 1988 majoring
in organisation management (48 45 E ¥ ). Mr. Lv obtained an executive master’s
degree in business administration (= 4% & I A 8 T 7 & ) from Lingnan
(University) College of Sun Yat-sen University (/|1 K?%ﬁﬁfjﬁm) in December
2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Ming Lai, aged 71, is an independent non-executive Director. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. Yeung has approximately
35 years of hospital operation experience, particularly in financial management,
personnel management, human relations and marketing. He dedicated much
of his career fo the Adventist Hospitals in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung started as an
assistant accountant at Hong Kong Adventist Hospital (& /& 7% %2 28 B3 ) in July
1968. He became the vice president for finance of Hong Kong Adventist Hospital
in April 1977. He left Hong Kong in October 1979 to pursue advanced training
in hospital administration under sponsorship from the Hong Kong Adventist
Hospital. Mr. Yeung had also served as an administrative residency at hospital
administration at the Kettering Medical Center in Kettering, Ohio, the United States
from March 1981 to March 1982. He returned to Hong Kong and became senior
vice president of both Hong Kong Adventist Hospital and Tsuen Wan Adventist
Hospital (2578 22 & Bt ) in April 1982. Shortly after, Mr. Yeung was appointed
as president of Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital in July 1983. Under the leadership
of Mr. Yeung, Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital developed into a modern healthcare
institution providing advanced multi-disciplinary healthcare services. He left the
hospital in April 1992 and later emigrated to Canada to pursue other interests. Mr.
Yeung returned to Hong Kong and had served as president and chief executive
officer of both Adventist Hospitals from January 2006 to December 2015. Mr.
Yeung left his positions at both Adventist Hospitals in December 2015.

Mr. Yeung obtained a diploma in business administration from the South China
Union College in Hong Kong in June 1979 and a master’s degree in hospital
administration from Loma Linda University in California, the United States in March
1982. In recognition of his remarkable contributions to the Adventist Hospitals in
Hong Kong, the Adventist University of Philippines bestowed a doctorate degree
in humanities upon Mr. Yeung in March 2009.
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Dr. CHEN Keji, aged 89, is an independent non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.
Dr. Chen joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in June 2016. Dr. Chen is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC
with over 63 years of experience in the medical industry. Dr. Chen has played
a pivotal role in the development of the Xiyuan Hospital of China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences (5 B /1 & %} 2 f% 75 4 % F ), where he currently
serves as chief researcher (& & #ff %t 8 ) and the lifetime researcher (£% &
#1958 of the China Academy of Traditional Chinese Medicine (B8 F1 & #f 95
B ). Dr. Chen has worked af the Chinese Medical Science Xiyuan Hospital (#
Tl 22 5% 74 58 28 B2 ) since April 1956, and has served various roles, including
resident doctor ({¥ P B2 £l), attending doctor (334 B2 i), associate chief doctor
(S| ZE{F B8 AN, associate researcher (&I 5T & ), department head (%= E 1F),
chief doctor (= £ i), researcher (% 7E &), tutor for doctor of philosophy
students (18 == 4 & A1) and vice director (&IFT & ). Dr. Chen has made significant
contributions to the medical profession in the PRC. He was elected as the fellow
of Chinese Academy of Sciences (47 B 2} 2[5 Bt 1) in 1991. He received the First
Lifu Academic Award (88 — Ji& 37 2K A %8 %% 22 i 4%) for Chinese Medicine from
the Lifu Medical Research Foundation (37 3K & Z2F 58 X E £ &) in Taiwan in
1994. He was awarded the Wu Jieping Medicine Prize (12 f& - & £2 #%) by the
Wujieping Medicine Prize Committee (= [ - & B2 8257 & Z& 8 &) in 2009. He
received a First Class National Science and Technology Progress Award (B 5 &}
B 45 88— & 48) from the State Council (B75B57%) in 2004. He also received an
honorary doctorate of science from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2004, and an
honorary doctorate of medicine (28 2 1% 1) from the Macau University of Science
and Technology in 2010. He received a Lifetime Achievement Award (4% & 5k 5t 22)
from the China Association of Chinese Medicine (7 £/ 88 ZZ £2 & ) in 2014 for
his contribution to the academic development of TCM. He became the honorary
president (% 2 & &) of the Hong Kong Association for Integration of Chinese-
Western Medicine (& /4 9 78 % 45 & & B0 = ) in 2009, the honorary academic
advisor (48 £ E4i7 B ) of the Hong Kong Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (& /& # & £ &) in 2011, and the director of the academic committee
(B4l % 8 € = T) of the State Key Laboratories of Quality Research in Chinese
Medicines (R 28 EFIFTR R B E T Z) of the University of Macau (BP9 KZ2)
and the Macau University of Science and Technology (38 F9 &} 2 X 2 ) in 2011
and the honorary president (& & K of the Chinese Association of Integrative
Medicine (7 B/ 73 88 &5 & £ &) in 2015. Dr. Chen graduated from Fujian
Medical University (1&@32 25 %L KX 2 ) (formerly Fujian Medical College ({222 E2057 )
in July 1954, majoring in medicine (& & X ).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Sing Nun, aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Chan was appointed as a Director in December 2015; his
appointment as independent non-executive Director was officially confirmed
in June 2016. Mr. Chan has approximately 21 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. From 1998 to 2002, Mr. Chan was a
senior audit associate at K.L. Wong & Co., an audit firm. From January 2003 to
January 2019, Mr. Chan has been the financial manager of Brandwell Limited, a
consulting services company. Since March 2019, Mr. Chan has been the Financial
controller of Muse Group Holdings Limited. Since September 2009, Mr. Chan has
been the audit principal of Qing Lan C.P.A. Limited, mainly responsible for audit
planning and supervision, internal control assessment, tax advisory, corporate
secretarial services and business development. Mr. Chan has served as an
independent non-executive director of Differ Group Holding Company Limited (a
company formerly listed on the GEM board with stock code 8056 and currently
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 6878)
since November 2013, and Fameglow Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8603) as an
independent non-executive director since September 2018. Mr. Chan also is the
director of A2Z Hotel Equipment Limited, a company that is principally engaged
in tableware trading. Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of
Hong Kong in 1998, and obtained a higher diploma in professional accounting.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Shaoming, aged 41, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. He
is primarily responsible for supervising the daily operations and management of
the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in September 2005 and was appointed as
our Supervisor and the chairman of the supervisory committee in December 2015.
Mr. Chen has more than 13 years of financial management experience in the
healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when
it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served
various roles, including manager of the finance department from September
2005 to April 2007, financial controller of the finance department from May 2007
to December 2013 and supervisor since March 2013. Mr. Chen participated in
the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital from which he gained
valuable hospital management experience. Mr. Chen has also served as a
supervisor of Dongguan Houjie Huaye Village Bank (3R 32 £ #7 # 2 7 $8 4R 17)
since March 2012 and a financial controller of the finance department of Kanghua
Group since November 2012. Mr. Chen graduated from Guangdong Economic
Management College (/& 5 & 4% & 12 # 30 22 F7 ) and obtained a diploma in
accounting in July 2003.
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Mr. Yue Chunyang, aged 45, is a supervisor and is currently the general
manager of Kanghua Hospital primarily responsible for managing its overall
information technology system, administrative and ancillary functions. Mr. Yue
Chunyang has approximately 16 years of hospital management experience. Mr.
Yue joined the Group in February 2003 and participated in the establishment of
Kanghua Hospital. Since the commencement of operations of Kanghua Hospital
in November 2006, he has assumed various managerial roles at Kanghua
Hospital primarily to develop and manage its information technology system,
administrative and ancillary functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yue had
gained his industry experience from Qintai General Labour Union Computer
School (2 & # T &z B # £ 4%) in Lushan County of Henan Province (/7] &
& B L) as a teacher from August 1997 to October 1999, and Lushan County
Communication Administration (& I £ % {5 &) as a staff member from July
1999 to January 2003. Mr. Yue graduated from Zhengzhou University (Z5 1| X £2)
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer science and technology in August
1997.

Mr. WANG Shaofeng, aged 36, is a Supervisor. He is primarily responsible for
supervising the daily operations and management of the Group. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in October 2006 and was appointed as our Supervisor and employee
representative of the Supervisory Committee in December 2015. Mr. Wang
has approximately 12 years of human resources experience in the healthcare
industry. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in October 2006. From October
2006 to February 2007, Mr. Wang worked at Renkang Hospital as a network
engineer in the information department. From March 2007 to August 2007, Mr.
Wang was seconded to Kanghua Hospital fo receive on-the-job training in the
procurement department and the human resources department. In September
2007, Mr. Wang became formally employed by Kanghua Hospital and has since
served as head of the human resources department responsible for recruitment,
payroll, performance, training and employee relations. Mr. Wang graduated
from Dongguan University of Technology (5 52 32 T & B ) with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science and technology in June 2006. In August 2018, Mr.
Wong acquired the occupational qualification of Enterprises Human Resource
Management (Second Level), awarded by the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC.

—_—

122

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——

E%Eﬁﬁ'ﬁi C455%  RESE N B A B FEE
Bt T2 8B ARRERRIN
R THREERE ERGEEREYN

mi S ERLR FEAER_TE=F=
HJJD)\KEII/,\&_LE??'?E Efr o B
BN _ZEERNF+— AHBREER EL

EEB?%@%E%%E%EEEEHMX TEME
REBHEEERMAS  ITREEERE -
MAREER  BEEER—NNAEFENAE
—MNANF+AEATBEEBUEERTS
AAEREREEE B ER-ANNF
TtAE—ZTZE_F—AHBLUSKEERER -
ERER—NANEF/N\AREREM KRS -
RS AN P RIS B -

FLOBEE b REF -HEIZBERE
RAKBEMNEHELERER -TEAER-T
7/\£|5+)EUJ|])\ZK$. WHR—ZZE—RHF
T REZEAREMNEERESEHRT
(R E?ﬁift SEREITERENIZFN
Aﬁﬁﬁ%% TEER-ZZRFE+AM
ACEER R-ZEERE+AE_ZTZE+
FH - I%Eﬁﬂﬂ FRERE R
IR - R-ZEZELF=ZRAE_FTZTLFN
A E%E?ﬁi:ﬂﬁ}i% S X REDRA
NERIBOEBEFI - RZZTEZLFNA -
TAREEAZEREEER  WEIEEA
NERMBFAEE  -ABEHE TES &
BiIlNREEBR EXER_ZTZEF A

EXNREET S0 WEGHEHRNEZNE
B'ZTTI T8 —T-N\FNA TELHE

BTHPREAREMEAHDERMT R
|§ BERFHOCEANEREEEEM(ZHK)
ZEREEIE o



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. TIAN Kege, aged 65, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. She is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations
of the Group’s hospitals. Dr. Tian has more than 28 years of experience in the
medical industry. Dr. Tian joined Kanghua Hospital in January 2008 and headed
the development of its O&G practice, in particular endoscopic techniques,
minimally invasive procedures, standardised treatment of malignant tumours,
management of high-risk pregnancies and newborn deliveries and reproductive
medicine. Dr. Tian currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua Hospital and the
head of the O&G Medical Center of Kanghua Hospital. Before joining the Group,
from May 1991 to January 2008, Dr. Tian had worked at the 301 Military Hospital
(301 %8 ) as an attending doctor ( F 8 B8R ), associate chief doctor (& EEZAM)
and chief doctor (= 1£ & Al ) with a focus on O&G practice. Dr. Tian has made
significant contributions to the development of O&G practice in the PRC. She was
awarded two Third Class Prizes for outstanding contributions in medical care
(B2 T IR 48 1 B 8k = 55 28) by the 301 Military Hospital in 1993 for successfully
rescuing a patient from HELLP syndrome with multiple organ failure (HELLP's
FEEMEZETN =B — HIE KA Y and resuscitating 37 newborns
with asphyxia (¥7 & 52 & S 18 # X 21 37 1l ), respectively. She was also
appointed as an expert in health science (f# 5z %l & % <) by the Guangdong
Provincial Health Education Centre (/&3 44 i B2 205 # L+ ) in May 2015. She was
awarded as “Heroic and Excellent Doctor in Southern Guangdong” (& 2 1 1§
428 ) by the Guangdong Provincial Female Doctors Association (& 5 & % B8
Bl 1% ) in 2015. Dr. Tian graduated from the Second Military Medical University
(%8 —E % K2 ) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in medicine in August 1983,
and a master's degree in medicine in July 1998. She obtained the chief doctor
qualification in O&G in September 2005.
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Dr. JIA Guoliang, aged 76, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company
since June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations
of the Group’s hospitals. Dr. Jia is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC with more
than 50 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua Hospital
in March 2008 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua Hospital and
the head of the Cardiovascular Center. Before joining the Group, from August
1968 to December 1974, Dr. Jia had worked at the Xinjiang Military Region Sixth
Division Hospital (¥ 98 & [@ 7S Al &P ) as a military surgeon. From January 1975
to October 2005, Dr. Jia had worked at the First Affiliated Hospital of the Fourth
Military Medical University (25 /1 % 58 X 22 [ff & —F%) as an attending physician
in cardiology (/0 A &L= 54 % 4 ), associate director (& = 1E) and director (=
£), where he undertook clinical, teaching and operational responsibilities.
From October 2005 to February 2008, Dr. Jia had worked at the Cardiovascular
Hospital of Xi An No. 1 Hospital as a director (it £ ). Dr. Jia has made substantial
contributions to cardiovascular healthcare, particularly in military medicine,
in the PRC. He has served as a committee member of numerous medical
associations and editorial board of medical journals. In addition to a Third Class
Prize in Technology Improvement (= %5 % £ it 2% #2) awarded by the National
Commission for Scientific and Technological Research (B X Bl &2 K fi1 & 8 &)
in December 1996, Dr. Jia had received more than 18 awards from the General
Logistics Department of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army (7 Bl A R 2 iR &
4 1% 2)28) for the contribution of his research projects in military medicine (Z Bx
% 2 Dr. Jia received a Life-fime Award in Interventional Cardiology in the PRC
(R B A0 B B2 48 A BBk 2%) and a Distinctive Contribution Award (45 5l
& Bt #2) from the Chinese Medical Association (# £ & 22 &), respectively, in
March 2005. Dr. Jia continues to actively pursue his endeavours in cardiovascular
healthcare. His recent appointments include consultant for the interventional
cardiovascular diseases branch of the Chinese Medical Association (7 # % £2
2L IMERESD ) in 2013, committee member for the cardiologist branch of
the Chinese Medical Doctor Association (B %8 Bl 75 & /00 B A B E B 5 &

in 2014 and consultant for the editorial board of Chinese Journal of Geriatric
Heart Brain and Vessel Diseases (71 2 2 £ ) i [l & /% #E 5% ) in 2016. Dr. Jia
possesses the chief doctor qualification.

Dr. LI Zhiwei, aged 52, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations of the
Group’s hospitals. Dr. Li is an industry leading general surgeon in the PRC with
more than 28 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua
Hospital in February 2006 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua
Hospital and the head of the Department of Hepatobiliary and Pancreatic Surgery.
Dr. Li also participated in managing the development and operation of Kanghua
Hospital from which he gained valuable hospital management experience.
Before joining the Group, from August 1990 to December 2005, Dr. Li had focused
his practice on hepatobiliary surgery at the 301 Military Hospital (301 25 F ), where
he had served various roles, including resident doctor (13 Bz & fifl), chief resident
doctor (#2{% P B A ), attending doctor (= & & £l ), ward inspection chief
attending doctor (E% #8 % )8 &AM ) and associate chief doctor (&l 2= F & &l).
Dr. Liis substantially involved in the development of general surgery and medical
associations in the PRC. He was complimented to be an advanced teaching
individual (4t TYE{E A ) twice by the PLA Postgraduate Medical School (&
# & 283 ) in 1997 and 2001, respectively, for his outstanding performance in
teaching and Teoching management. Dr. Li graduated from First Military Medical
University (55 — B % K ) with a medical bachelor's degree in July 1990. He
obtained a master's degree in general surgery and doctorol degree in clinical
medicine from the postgraduate medical school (F & #{& £z ) of 301 Military
Hospital (301 F ) in July 1995 and July 2003, respectively. Dr. Li obtained the
chief doctor qualification in hepatobiliary surgery in January 2009.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Ms. LIN Yan, aged 57, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall management of the nursing
work of the Group’s hospitals. Ms. Lin is a highly experienced nurse with more
than 35 years of experience in the medical industry. Ms. Lin joined Kanghua
Hospital in September 2010 and has since served as the head of the Nursing
Department. Before joining the Group, from July 1983 to October 2010, Ms. Lin had
served various roles at Second Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University (H 1L
K E KB 5 = BB, including nurse, head nurse of operating theatre, head
of nursing deportmem and deputy head of outpatient office. Ms. Lin has made
distinguished contributions in the nursing profession in the PRC, with far-reaching
influence in the field of operating room nursing within the PRC, in particular
Guangdong Province. She participated in the publication of many professional
practice guides in nursing, including main editor (== 4% ) for Practical Surgical
Nursing (& F 5 fi7 3% 32 £ ) published by the Sun Yat-sen University Press [
Il K & i f #£), which received a First Class Prize in Outstanding Teaching
Materials (18 75 # 8 — £ #2) in Southern China universities from the China
University Presses Association (9 B K 22 1) bz 1% &), participating editor (£ 4% )
for Guide on Improving the Core Competence of Professional Nurse (5 3 & +
%0 B8 1 B2 3% 5 @) published by the Guongdong Provincial Publishing Group
(& 3R & H iR &£ B), and participating editor (£ 47 for Clinical Care Document
Specifications (B R 7 32 3 & #7 #) published by the Guangdong Provincial
Publishing Group. Ms. Lin obtained a diploma in advanced nursing from the
Evening School of Sun Yat-sen University Zhongshan School of Medicine (9
Rl KE7R A2 ) in June 1989. Ms. Lin graduated from the Hunan University of
Chinese Medicine (4] £ 7 %& ZZ X 2) in January 2010. She obtained the chief
nurse qualification (& fE £ ¥ 8 ) in December 2007.

Mr. WANG Baizhi, aged 44, is an operation vice general manager of the
Company since June 2016. He is responsible for the overall administrative and
ancillary operations of the Group’s hospitals as well as overseeing the Group’s
hospital management business. Mr. Wang has approximately 14 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the vice general manager of Renkang Hospital, and as the general
manager of Renkang Hospital since November 2015, primarily responsible for the
hospital's administrative and ancillary operations. Mr. Wang also participated in
the construction and development of Renkang Hospital. Before joining the Group,
from March 1998 to July 2003, Mr. Wang had worked at China Construction Bank
responsible for auditing and loan management. Mr. Wang obtained a diploma
in mechanical manufacturing engineering and design from the Dongguan
University of Technology (5 5222 T 257 ) in June 1998.
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Ms. WANG Yingda, aged 45, is the secretary to the Board since June 2016. She
is primarily responsible for overseeing public affairs, administrative and daily
operations of the Group. Ms. Wang has 15 years of management experience
in the medical industry, particularly in financial management, hospital
administration, support and assurances, service excellence, brand promotion
and corporate culture. Ms. Wang joined Kanghua Hospital in June 2006, served
as a senior manager of the finance department and currently serves as an
assistant to chairman responsible for operation control, external and internal
liaisons, implementation of action plans, monitoring key performance indicators,
assessing patient satisfaction levels and organising hospital branding events. Ms.
Wang had worked as a manager of the finance department of Kanghua Group
primarily responsible for financial and audit matters from February 2004 to May
2006, during which she had been involved in the construction and development
of Kanghua Hospital from which she gained valuable hospital management
experience. Ms. Wang currently serves as a standing committee member (& 75
Z 8 of the Guangdong Provincial Health Economics Association (& 3 & &1 4
&L eEe % 82) and the depuly chairman (&€ &) of the Dongguan Hospital
Association (5 52 T 2 B3 13 = ). Ms. Wang graduated from Xi'an Technological
University (78 % T % X 2 ) and obtained a diploma in financial accounting in July
1995. Ms. Wang obtained the qualification of accountant in the PRC in May 2002.
Ms. Wang obtained a master's degree in business administration from Northwest
University (G4t X &) in the PRC in December 2013.

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, aged 41, is a chief financial officer and a joint
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong has more than 17 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He is primarily responsible for the overall
financial management, capital investment, investor relations and corporate
finance of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Company as chief financial officer in
December 2015. Before joining the Group, from December 2002 to November
2015, Mr. Wong had worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, where he was
responsible for leading, managing and supervising audits for listed and multi-
national companies. Mr. Wong has also cultivated transactional experience in his
previous roles, including acquisitions, debt offerings and initial public offerings.
Mr. Wong was a senior manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu before he joined
the Group. Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor's
degree of commerce majoring in accounting and finance with merit from the
University of New South Wales in April 2000, and a master’s degree of commerce
maijoring in advanced information systems and management from the University
of New South Wales in May 2003.

Ms. CHEN Li, aged 48, is a financial controller of the Company since June
2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group’s hospitals. Ms. Chen has more than 26 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it
was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and is currently serving
as financial controller in the finance department. Ms. Chen also participated in
managing the financial operations of Kanghua Hospital during its construction
and development phase from which she gained valuable hospital financial
management experience. Before joining the Group, from September 1992 to
March 2004, she had served various roles at Dongguan City Guangcai Hotel
(5™ E R BB JE), a subsidiary of Guangdong Fortune Colour Picture
Tube Co., Ud. ([EREHF @B E& E 2 7)), including accountant, accounting
supervisor, cost supervisor and project manager. She has also served as the
vice chairman (2] & &) of the Dongguan Social Insurance Associatfion (R 2= T
=& (R B2 #% &) since January 2016. Ms. Chen obtained a diploma in financial
accounting from Changsha University of Workers (& B T K2 ) in June 1992.

=

She graduated from Dongguan Party School ( 5= # % ) in December 1998.

—

126

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——

FTRBELLT S BT —~FH

AEEEWNE FXIZAEEELAEENR
HEK THEEAEBEELE - TRIRNE
BIIEBRELFEELR  LEREVKE
2 BRERE  TEMMRE - BEERE - @
FRARCEXFE TLTR_EEN
FRAMAREEIETI S MLIE
HREREFEYE  a5LBEH - RIS
B4k - BEre7TE)RT S - ESRIRARANIEE
FEEEREERABERMEHEREE -
T+ EENF_AZ2_ZEEXFH
ARETREEENMBKILE  FE8F
MR ETEE AMTS2HREERY
BERNERE O KPESEENBRERER -
THLTERARRABAREESEZE T
BEEZERRETERBERIERE - T2
R—NANAFEAEENALTEKRE &
BHEert xR R-EFE-_FHA FTL&
THEREEGHMER TR _F—=
F+_AEFBEALLRERS IHEERE

T84 -

BREERE 45 BARENERYBE
LBERARWE " EEEGH YT E
ZRAVELR REIBASASENER
MBEE - BEARE REEWEREER
Bo-mAER T —RAF+_ANMARRF
TERVBE - MAXEER R_FT—
FT_AE_T-AF+—F BEECER
RIS e ERT G167 AU BEERE -
ERENEE LT RBEARNEGTE-&
EEMRERNBEHERRZER - 21
Wi EFBTRERAAEE FEER
MAREER B ERE « BAERT STAITT
IR c HELRBBGIMAGAE
GEtEIRMNAX G - EAER —TT
TEP A B R B FE BT AS2E
SR2ELS2 N (XEeA RYHK) IR
—EE-FRABNEERBALTARIEHE
BELBU(FESRELRRETRE) -

MLt 485 BT NEFRNAERK
NEMB AR - REEABEAEEERH
BRMGER RALIPXUBEER S EESR
B26FERR -MEEIMN _FTTRFNA (B
EREATERLSARQAE) INABFE
Bbt BAIEMBEHMEMGRE ERER
PreiEse M BRER  RLZ LT M2 HRERE
FERNWKEZETE P RBETEE
MBS E AR o IMAARKER - HR
—NWN—FNAZ-_FTTNF= AHBEE
EREHMYERGEATBTITREMEY
WOBREEZ AR - BEest g5t EE -
RAETENBRZE -B-—F—"F— A
EAEERETHERRIPEIER - RE
ITR—ANZFANABRDPBITRENE
B G - MR —ANNEFEFTZARE

EERER-



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, one of the joint company secretaries of the Company,
is also a senior management member of the Company. Please refer to “Senior
Management” in this section for his biography.

Ms. CHAU Hing Ling was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 27 June 2016. She joined Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited
since June 2013 and currently serves as a director of Corporate Services of Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited), where she leads a team of professional staff to
provide a full range of company secretary services. Ms. Chau has over 17 years of
experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Chau is currently the company secretary of several companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. Chau received a master of laws majoring in
corporate and finance law from the University of Hong Kong in November 2007.
She has been a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since May 2013.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B S

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUANGDONG KANGHUA HEALTHCARE CO., LTD.
BEREZEEFRRDERDLF

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guangdong Kanghua
Healthcare Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 135 to 237, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

—
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter

BARENSEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

BARESTEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AT ES R A R IR BA R B T B IR

Impairment assessment of gooadwill

B EA B ERF IS

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill arising
from acquisitions of %2 I 75 %8 & #% & A PR A 7] (Anhui Hualin
Medical Investment Co., Ltd.) ("Anhui Hualin”) and its subsidiaries
(collechvely referred to as “Anhui Hualin Group”) and E & £
SRSk 0 I B 978 25 e 8 IR 2 &) (Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd.) (‘Kangxin Hospital’) as a key
audit matter due to significant level of management judgement
involved in determining the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit ("CGU") of Anhui Hualin Group (“Anhui Hualin
CGU") and CGU of Kangxin Hospital (“Kangxin Hospital CGU")
to which goodwill is allocated for the impairment assessment
on the goodwill in relation to acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group
("Hualin’s Goodwill”) and in relation to acquisition of Kangxin
Hospital ("Kangxin's Goodwill’) respectively.

As set out in Notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment of Hualin’s Goodwill and Kangxin’s
Goodwill is assessed by comparing the recoverable amount
of the Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU to their
respective carrying value at the end of the reporting period.
The recoverable amount of their respective CGU is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value
in use of their respective CGU is determined by the directors of
the Company based on the present value of estimated future
cash flows to be generated from their respective CGU and with
reference to the valuation reports prepared by an independent
professional valuer, which was approved by the directors of
the Company. Significant judgements and assumptions are
adopted by the management in the value in use calculation for
estimation of recoverable amount of their respective CGU, the
key assumptions including growth rates and pre-tax discount
rates.
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

o Obtaining an understanding of the impairment assessment
process used by the management and involvement of
the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Company to estimate the recoverable amounts based on
a value in use calculation;

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer;

o Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation
methodology and key assumptions adopted by the
management in determining the recoverable amount
of the Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU
respectively, including growth rates and pre-tax discount
rates, with the involvement of our internal valuation
specialist;

o Evaluating the historical accuracy and reasonableness of
the value in use calculation by comparing the historical
cash flow forecasts with the actual performance of the
Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU respectively;
and

o Evaluating the sensitivity analysis of the forecasts for
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions.

AiTH BREPMBENREFENREFERE:
e WHRMEEEN EQRZENBUREXMGHERMMRE

f;"i)ﬂ%@?r%ﬁé#T%l@é%ﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁ HIRERH IR T
AHABY EXGEMORE N REEE

o  EARTTASMHERRLSHET AEEREDRIETE R
BEFRSCEABNULEOBERRSEAEMATRED
THEAMRPNHEETERETERENSEN  BEEE
T&%Rﬁ ?ﬁua‘i—v— ;

o DHEBLRELHSREVIRLBERASES
BUukRLERRSELBEMERRR  FEELE
BUEREREFENGEN &

o FHARERMRRTAEA IR DA o

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019

N————

129



Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter
B EEE

BRESSIE W)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
TR ET N EERREETSE

Impairment assessment of gooawill (Cont'd)

B2y 5 B S ()

Kangxin's Goodwill was impaired by RMB60,000,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2019 and its net carrying amount was
RMB65,412,000 as at 31 December 2019. The carrying amount
of Hualin’s Goodwill is RMB56,601,000 as at 31 December 2019.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no impairment
loss was identified on Hualin’s Goodwill as at 31 December
2019.

HE-_T-NAF+-_A=+-—"BLHEE BELEERE
AR #60,000,0007t MA—_E—hAE+_A=+—8H
HEREEEEAARB65412000T N-_E—hHhE+=A
=+t—H EZFRENERAEEAARS56,601,0007T &
NABEERAE R E—NF+_A=+—BHEERS
EBREEESZ®R -

Contingent liabilities arising from medical disputes
BERAMDSIENAAE B

We have identified the contingent liabilities arising from medical
disputes as a key audit matter because there are inherent
risks of medical disputes in the healthcare business, and the
estimation of their financial impact involves significant degree
of management judgment as disclosed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There are inherent risks associated with the Group’s clinical
activities which may result in unfavourable medical outcomes
not caused by clinical decisions. The Group may be subject to
legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course
of business, which primarily include medical dispute claims
brought by the former patients.
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s contingent liabilities
arising from medical disputes included:

o Understanding management's process in developing the
estimation on the outflow of economic benefit;

o Obtaining the list of medical disputes from the
management;

o Arranging litigation search to check for the status of the

medical disputes and the completeness for the list of
medical disputes;

A7 BEREPMBREMDEXNIAABERRNEF
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Key audit matter
B ESEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

BARESTEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
TR BTN EERREETSE

Contingent liabilities arising from medical disputes (Cont'd)
ERADSIERHAE E (B)

Provision for medical dispute claims is made based on the
status of potential and active claims outstanding at the end
of each year, and taking info consideration the assessment
and analysis of external experts and the total claim exposure.
However, where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Except for those disputes with provision of RMB375,000 made
as disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group believes that the final result of
other medical disputes with total claims of RMB5,789,000 as
at 31 December 2019 will not have a material impact on the
financial position or operations of the Group and the amount of
outflow, if any, cannot be determined with sufficient reliability
prior fo judicial appraisals. Accordingly, no provision is made in
this regard and disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BEAUNDZEREERESFFRECNARTHREFEL
WEBIIIBERNTEMOTARREERE - ER - 1A
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EmTEEE(mE) - Bt - R ARIE T EFELBEmIE
RIRBBEESE VB RRMEI2HKE -

o Obtaining and reading legal proceeding letters, judicial
appraisal reports, expert opinion letters, judgment letters
and medical records, if any, relevant to the medical
disputes;

o Discussing with the management of the Group and
the Group’s legal counsel on the estimated outcome of
the pending medical disputes, with reference to legal
precedents of any similar cases; and

o Evaluating the adequacy of provision and the disclosure
under contingent liabilities.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or fo cease
operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

—_—

132

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——

RIS %fﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ Hi &R B
&Fﬁ%é{ﬂ BREREEEPBERER L
ZIZBEN RS

ﬁ%ﬂ EMBHREE R I T REH A
£ LKTTJTTQEMQ#HX%EHRKE’]

s
fmiighn}

g

2
ﬁ

%13
4',

T A VSRR $??E’9§{£2%Fﬁi%i
ER RULBRES  BEERAEMERZ
Aﬁ?ﬁrmt&%&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁrﬂ&ﬂfﬂﬁﬁ?
ﬁqcsﬁ EMBEXKE BT AEEAER
ﬁuo%#$ﬁaﬂﬁm1¢ h$f%
HmEREERERBRM - A7/ a?%
o AL miiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ#&i °

EOmBE BRIy B+ P ohmk

3@% B

\]
d /|

EECAEEHRSMBRRER
NS

BEARESBERMRIRERS LGRS 2EA
REBRAMEDIE I E SR ERmREL BT R
NI 2 MR E MBI - IEE%EM
AREHRE BRI N FEONRFFRE
R 1 28 2 B K g AR R A P R 4 %Uiég °

fﬁ%zi*é}ﬁﬂ%i&?ﬁﬁ% CEZRARME BR
BB S AL ) SWAEBAIE R T K 5E R

SEREEH m%lﬁ AR ERITERER

EJ%W BRIEEFTEEN BERESHEN
FILEE  SREEBERNERTER -
&EEETT§*” BEREMBEREBENE



Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
aftention in our auditor’s report o the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contd)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and fo
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Del Rosario, Faith Corazon.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEaRkEMRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12 ANHIEFE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBT T ARBT T
Revenue & 5 1,955,525 1,639,287
Cost of revenue W Z5 A AR (1,566,106) (1,280,383)
Gross profit EA 389,419 358,904
Other income Ho g A 7 38,292 46,765
Other expenses, gains and losses Hitnfxx ~ Was REE 8 (703) 2,199
Impairment loss on goodwiill HEREEE 19 (60,000) -
Administrative expenses THHAX (232,282) (185,178)
Finance costs A KA 9 (17,241) (936)
Profit before taxation B 5% A1 g A 10 117,485 221,754
Income tax expenses FriSfif = 13 (68,797) (60,482)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year R FI| & 2 EUR A 42 %8 48,688 161,272
Profit loss) and total comprehensive income T 5 & I8 FE 15 F N s T
(expense) for the year attributable to: (BE) R2EBA
(Fx)#5
— owners of the Company —ARRBHEB A 74,264 167,943
— non-controlling interests — IR R A (25,576) (6,671)
48,688 161,272
Earnings per share, basic (RMB cents) BRERAF(ARESD) 15 22.2 50.2
S
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

At 31 December 2019
M2019F12 A31H

2019 2018
—E-hnE ZE-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mo ARETT ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 16 917,670 814,390
Right-of-use assets FRESE 17 323,102 -
Prepaid lease payment TETHE & FRIE 18 - 150,398
Goodwill Bk 19 122,013 182,013
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, Wis % - BB ks
plant and equipment EfES 109,645 81,133
Fixed bank deposits EHRITER 20 37,000 16,000
1,509,430 1,243,934
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 69,768 45,358
Accounts and other receivables JFE Uk BR 0 e E A i W 3R 08 22 300,588 207,016
Prepaid lease payment TEfTHE & FRIE 18 - 3,248
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss & A F{EF AEZER
TREE 23 477,150 479,142
Restricted bank balances ZBR B SRIT BB 20 2,345 21,098
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 20 223,880 203,256
1,073,731 959,118
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts and other payables JRE 1T BR 30 B HL i JE A< RRIB 24 488,534 481,839
Amount due to a shareholder JE — R R FRIB 25 = 682
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder JE 1~ — R FT A A1 HY
of a subsidiary — B IR R RIE 25 138,854 152,204
Tax payables FEfIH1 18 34,401 38,368
Bank loans — due within one year RITER——F NI 26 7,468 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 26,294 -
695,551 673,093
Net current assets REBEEFHE 378,180 286,025
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBERE 1,887,610 1,529,959
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans — due after one year RITER——F12EHf 26 208,785 -
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 28 21,383 20,485
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 199,884 -
430,052 20,485
Net assets BEEFE 1,457,558 1,509,474
-\

]36 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
SEEEE——



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R 3R

At 31 December 2019
72019412 A 318

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000

B 5E ARET T ARETT

Capital and reserves BEARKRFE

Share capital [N 29 334,394 334,394
Reserves i 1,022,031 1,044,543
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NATHER AEGERS 1,356,425 1,378,937
Non-controlling interests IR IR A 101,133 130,537
Total equity R 1,457,558 1,509,474

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 237 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 April 2020 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Wang Junyang
TES

Director

EF

FBSEWBTEMNRAETBRERER =

= —

=

ZENA-—tRESE S ERRETE -

THRATEFRKREE

Wong Wai Hung Simon
TEHE

Directfor

EF

—
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nVT

SRS ER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve earmings Sub-total interests Total
RAx  RHEE EXEE  AERE  RERA Pt ERRESR Hit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%TR
(note {i) note (i)
Lik) (PZEG)
At1January 2018 RZZE-\¥—A—H 334,394 698,214 53,394 28,464 150,758 1,265,224 24175 1,289,399
Profit (loss| and tota EREN (5E)

comprehensive income REAKA (FR)

[expense] for the year k] - - - - 167,943 167,943 6,671) 161,272
Dividend (Nofe 14) iR & (RizE14) - - - - (54,2301 (54,2301 - (54,230]
Transers 253 - - - 34,20 (34,120 - - -
Acquisifions of subsidiaries ~ YEEHB A &

Note 30) (M7E30) - - - - - - 113,033 113,033
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\fF

+-A=1+-H 334,394 698,214 53,394 62,584 230,351 1,378,937 130,537 1,509,474
Adjusiment [Note 2) R (M3E2) - - - - (43,413) (43,413) 13,878) (47,291)
AtlJanuary 2019 frestated)  R=Z—NF—A—H

(mE75) 334,394 698,214 53,394 62,584 186,938 1,335,524 126,659 1,462,183
Profitloss) and fofa ERER (BE)

comprehensive income REEYRA (BX)

[expense) for the year ek - - - - 74,264 74,264 (25,576) 48,688
Dividend (Nofe 14) iR & (H5E14) = = = - (53,363) (53,363) = (53,363
Transfers 23 - - - 26,343 26,343) - - -
Capital contribufion bynon-~ — M B 7

controlling inferests of a IR E’] &

subsidiary - - - - - - 50 50
At 31 December 2019 RZE-n%

+-A=t+-H 334,394 698,214 53,394 88,927 181,496 1,356,425 101,133 1,457,558
Notes: B2k

(i)

(ii)

—_—
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According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the
Company and its subsidiaries which were established in the PRC are required to
transfer at least 10% of their net profit after taxation, as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations, to a non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before the distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve fund can be used
to offset the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation.

Included in the retained earnings, an amount of RMB4,035,000 (2018: RMB3,713,000)
belongs to restricted retained earnings from Anhui Hualin Group (defined in Note 4)
which is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ll‘mAiﬁnﬁl)ﬂlE%
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 ANHILFE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T AREF T
Operating activities mEEE
Profit before taxation [ﬁ%m % A 117,485 221,754
Adjustments for: MATIEBFR{ERE :
Allowance for credit loss EEEBERE 596 3,503
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TE R & R - 1,354
Bank and other inferest income RITRE ’rtﬁﬂ SA (2,789) (7,243)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BERREBTE 91,200 70,259
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREENE 31,404 -
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through 3% A F1{& ;#]\?El SH)E Rl E B
profit or loss B AT E R (8,701) (6,447)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEWE  HERZENEE 246 231
Impairment loss on goodwill R EEE 60,000 -
Investment income from financial assets at fairvalue A FE ABZH SR EE
through profit or loss IR E WA (14,508) (18,344)
Interest expenses MEFX 17,241 936
Unrealised exchange gain REBE H W (1,307) (5,544)
Operating cash flows before movements in working LEETEPILERERE
capital 290,867 260,459
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEGEm s (24,410) 4,072
Increase in accounts and other receivables JFEE MK B R B R A i M R TR 3 0 (94,221) (17,592)
Decrease in accounts and other payables JE AT B R B B A FE S R IER (2,192) (16,670)
Cash generated from operations REMBSRE 170,044 230,269
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid Eﬁ B ERTSR (71,866) (53,306)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHABREFE 98,178 176,963
Investing activities RETH
Placement of restricted bank balances T WU R I R 1T 45 81 (1,690,944) (1,991,920)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BERATES ABR
profit or loss B &R A E (1,639,855) (1,840,200
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEDE  BEE&RE (142,425) (36,997)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and eI - RE R&E
equipment [RENEFE (76,568) (53,331)
Placement of fixed bank deposits FRUE BRI TIF R (37,000 (16,000)
Net cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries WEM B AR MRS
R ER (21,000) (294,492)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances IR HIRIT4E 1,709,697 1,985,522
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value &% A F &z Jr)\%él =)
through profit or loss TREEMSG TJKIE 1,651,632 1,930,040
Withdrawal of fixed bank deposit REUE BASRIT 17 3R 16,000 -
Investment income received from financial assets at fair A FEFABZN S REE
value through profit or loss WA #5228 A 14,508 18,344
Interests received 2 & 2,842 12,261
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HE %% B B K 3% 4k S sk 18
equipment 181 1,385
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests of a —fEIf B AR FEEREERHE
subsidiary 50 -
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFAREFEE (212,882) (285,388)
P
EEEBEEROERAR F52010 139
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A L=
,é.:‘fT = Iﬁﬁ/)lbi%
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREET T ARETTT
Financing activities REEE
New bank loans raised FTEEFIRITER 235,350 -
Advances from a non-controlling shareholder of a —EM B A F 8 — % IEER
subsidiary IR B 228,000 44,500
Repayments to a non-controlling shareholder of a BRT—RHMBAR
subsidiary — A FEER AR R (220,350) (3,515)
Dividend paid ERHLE (53,363) (54,230)
Repayments of lease liabilities EHEHEAE (21,973) -
Interest paid EARTALE (17,217) (936)
Payment of bank loans arrangement fee XHRITERLHER (12,598) -
Repayment of bank loan BRTRITER (2,062) (60,000)
Repayment to a shareholder BRT—RBKRE (682) (243)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities RIESEB S (FTA) REFE 135,105 (74,424)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents R & R IR &S EYWIE 0 G 2)
FEE 20,401 (182,849)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HWEREERBEESZEY 203,256 383,796
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fERFe) 2 223 2,309
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, Rt+t-—A=+—HWEER
representing bank balances and cash ReZEY -
BRTHEBRRAE 223,880 203,256

—_—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

FE R = B E R AR A A (Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co.,
Ltd.) (the “Company”) was established as a limited liability company in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its overseas listed foreign
invested ordinary shares ("H Shares’) are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
The Company’'s immediate and ultimate holding company is % 5¢ 1 5
# 17 B £ B AR A 7 (Dongguan Kanghua Group Co., Ltd.) ("Kanghua
Group”), a limited liability company established in the PRC. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business in Hong Kong of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in provision of hospital services, provision
of rehabilitation and other healthcare services, provision of hospital
management services, sale of pharmaceutical products and provision of
other services (represents elderly healthcare services) in the PRC. Details of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board for the first time in the
current year:

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

—REHR

BERFEBEROHARAR ((ARE])
EREARKMBE ((HE]) KR —
MAREEARREZIN ETIHINEE
BR(THED)  EEBMAERSME
RAA (BB ERET - &
DRAMEEMRERERAB/REM
BREREASBEARLR ([REEE]) -
—ERPERINBEREERAF - K
REEMMRERENEETZEEXWE
WU R BRFRI AR ER | —80

ARBRIREWB AR (FEIAER])
FTEAPENYERBEERRS  RBHE
FEEREMEERY REERERE
PR7S - SHE SR RIBRH E b AR (BN
FEIERE) - KARFIHEBRARFEH
AMIFES ©

RERMBHRERAARBE(TARK] 2
5 ARBETARRRNNEES -

FE P AT B PR R s ¥ e 22 B ([ B
BREFFS RS R ) R E BT A

Q7R 4R [ 58 11| A 20 RO 8 R T B8 B B
B s R R EER] A

RAREE  NEBEBXERATERER
SEERIZ B 2 PTRM AT B A
BHELENREEFTA

IFRS 16 Leases
B i B 75 ¥ 5 AR RSB 16 55% HE
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

BRI ERERELZESREF 235
Amendments to IAS 19
REERIE 195 (BF] )
Amendments to IAS 28
R&ETAERIZE 28 9% (15T A)
Amendments to IFRSs

B B B 7 R 2 R R (18 BT A))

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

P15 % R 12 6) I e E 1

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

FHEIERT - BRI AEE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
REERNAIREEBRENREERS

Annual Improvements fo IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

BB REEN - AFE T+ FEANFESE

B TP E SN - RAFE A A]
BB B s S B R R BAS AT AR - K
SEARFEE MBEFEOT BRI R
KBRS ZEEEWBERRARAE
BEFATBENEATE -

—

EEFEEERHARAR £152019 4]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

2.

—_—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Contd)

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 16”)

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current year. IFRS 16
superseded IAS 17 Leases ("IAS 17°) and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply IFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to confracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January 2019, the Group
applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the requirements set
outin IFRS 16 in assesses whether a contract contains a lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Contd)

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 16”) (Contd))

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
recognised at the date of initial application, 1January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease liabilities
and measured right-of-use assets at the carrying amounts as if IFRS 16
had been applied since commencement dates, but discounted using the
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of
initial application by applying IFRS 16.C8(bl(i) transition. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the opening retained earnings
and non-controlling interests, and comparative information has not been
restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under IFRS 16 at
transition, the Group applied the following practical expedients to leases
previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17, on lease-by-lease
basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application;

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application;

ii.  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with a similar
remaining terms for similar class of underlying assets in similar
economic environment. Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties in the PRC was determined on a portfolio basis; and

iv.  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease term for the Group’s leases with
extension and termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously classified as
operating leases, the Group has applied incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities at the date of initial application. The incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities range from 5.1% to
5.9%.

e SRR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

B 8 36 1 20 2 0 7 5T BB B
B85 AR R B T A (80

BB s s RIS 165k [ E | ([ E
BRI E LRI 165 ) ()

E3 AN

REE T B W E R B B 7% s 2 A
6 MRFAFERBEXEMAB B
—FT-NF-A—HER-

R-Z-NF—A—B AEEER
BOMMEEBYUNREASEAERR
BEE WNBERM GRS ERNE6
SEARBHEDREM - MfEERER
B 75 ¥l & AR B 5816 5% 55 CB(blli) BUEE -
REXERBHERAEEEERY
IBEERAN KRR - NERER A
HAEfA] 2 RS HR V) OR B8 28 A I SR #E
REFER - MABBIHLBEFR -

R 38 % 50 PR AR 5 B R B %5 3R o5 2 HI 58
165 E MG ERIER  AEBY
ERRBER S ERFRLER
REHEMHERBERES D HME
A EESSNEAUATIITEERE:

i I AEEXER 2 BRI
BERRERNEE  BRIETER
FRAEEELRHEARE:

i. MREXEMAMAEEREEE
R HFRR IR E AR

il HRAEEERR P AR R
MEENHEERNSBRNEEA
AEAE-URE - LAR R
FENETYERENMBERT)
NHAEEREETF « &

v. RERBEXEABHNEERIE
MERZEIN  RAEEASR
EHREIDEEENEEETHE
Hj

RERBENESKEHENHER
B AEBRBEXEMABHCER
ERSEERNEERRNE - HH
SEEREANIEERTFENF51%

2£59%°

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Contd)

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 16”) (Cont'd))

Q7R 4R [ o 1) 4 2 RO ¥ w T B8 B B
BamEE R EERT A (8)

BIFR B s s RIS 165k [ E | ([ E
BRI E LRI 165 ) (F)

As a lessee (Contd) tERRTNA (&)
At 1January
2019
R-Z-hF
—B—H
RMB’000
AREETF T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 RZEBE-N\F+ZA=+—HHEE
December 2018 IS E R ERE 259,570
Add: Lease liabilities resulting from lease modifications  fn : I EMENHEETELENTHEEE
of existing leases (note) (M5E) 39,686
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases B ERRE—EHEE (103)
299,153
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental REESEERNEURENR T —NF
borrowing rates relating to operating leases —A— BERBERMGREERE165E
recognised upon application of IFRS 16 as at BRZKEHEBM2HERRE
1January 2019 239,724
Analysed as: DA
Current R E 21,512
Non-current FERB 218,212
239,724

Note: The Group renewed the leases of certain leasehold land and buildings
by entering intfo new lease contracts which commence after date of initial
application, these new contracts are accounted as lease modifications of the
existing contracts upon application of IFRS 16.

—_—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2. & F3 =T B B A 3 o5 2 B ([ R
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont) MR R E R ) R EERT A
(#&)
New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the P 7R B [ o il AR XA 7 5 T B R B
current year (Contd) BWEEAREEFTRE)
IFRS 16 Leases ('IFRS 16") (Contd) PREF SRS LRI 165% [ E | ([E
R mEERIE65]) ()
As a lessee (Contd) 1EREMNA (&)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 comprises RZZE-NEF-—A—HBNEAEEE
the following: FHEEFENATEIE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Right-of-use asses relating to operating leases FE AR B R B 7 ¥R 2 AR R 8816 51 18 T sR B AT &
recognised upon application of IFRS 16 HERBANEREEE 192,433
Reclassified from prepaid lease payment (note (i) BIENHEERIBEE R FEEM) 153,646
346,079
By class: RERIE S
Leasehold lands HE LT 153,646
Leasehold land and buildings HELtHHRET 192,433
346,079
S

BEREEREROERAR F5209 145
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Contd)

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 16”) (Cont'd)

As a lessee (Cont'd)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the

2 ERFAABMBREE (@
B I ) R ELE R A
(#)

A 8 A 0 A T B R
¥ 49 55 £ B R SLE T A (80)

Bl s 2RI E 165 [ & | ([E
BREF MR R E165% ) (42)
tERRTNA (&)
HRZZE—NF—A—A0NEEVB

consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2019. Line items AR FRANERE S HEELD T uﬂ o
that were not affected by the changes have not been included. RE “Eb%% BWIEE TEFEEN -
Carrying
amounts
Carrying under
amounts IFRS 16 at
previously 1January
reported at 2019
31 December R-ZE—hI&F
2018 —HA—H
RZE—N\F R A5 B PR
+-A=+—8H B 3R H 2 A
BAEZ2®RN Adjustments SE165R M
BREE R BREE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
B AREFTT AREFT AREFTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Prepaid lease payment B AERE (i 150,398 (150,398 -
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE (i, (i) - 346,079 346,079
Current asset RBEE
Prepaid lease payment B HEERIE (i 3,248 (3,248) -
Current liability RBAE
Lease liabilities HeEaE (i) - (21,512) (21,512)
Non-current liability FRBAE
Lease liabilities HEAR (il - (218,212) (218,212)
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Reserves fé 55 (1,044,543) 43,413 (1,001,130)
Non-controlling interests eV E = (130,537) 3,878 (126,659)

—_—
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Notes to the Consolidated

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Contd)

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 16”) (Contd))

As a lessee (Contd)

The following table summarises the impact of transition to IFRS 16 on
retained earnings at 1January 2019.

Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

S 3 1 A R A BT 2T BB B
T8 R Al B 5] A ()

BB s s RIS 165k [ E | ([ E
BRI E LRI 165 ) ()

TERATN (&)
T RSB = BB 7% RS Q5
= &

|
6HEHEN _—_FE—NF—-—A—BRE
MR -

RMB’000
ARBFT
Lease liabilities relating fo operating leases recognised & F3 B B B 7% 3 &5 2RI S5 16 SR 14 FE SR B 48 &
upon application of IFRS 16 (note (i) HERMBEBE (M) 239,724
Right-of-use assets relating o operating leases FE PR BB B 7 3R 5 AR R 816 SR 148 T s B AL
recognised upon application of IFRS 16 (note (iii)) MEBBHERZEERE (i) (192,433)
47,291
Non-controlling interests eI (3,878)
Impact af 1January 2019 RZE—NF—A—HNTE 43,413
Notes: Bt

(i) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC for own used properties
were classified as prepaid lease payment as at 31 December 2018. Upon
application of IFRS 16, the current and non-current portion of prepaid lease
payment amounting fo approximately RMB3,248,000 and RMB150,398,000
respectively were reclassified fo right-of-use assets.

(ii) In relation fo the leases of properties that the Group acts as lessee, upon
application of IFRS 16, the right-of-use assets in relation to the rented premises
of approximately RMB192,433,000, and the corresponding current and non-
current portion of lease liabilities amounting to approximately RMB21,512,000
and RMB218,212,000 respectively, are recognised.

(il For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under
indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019, movements have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of financial position as
at 1January 2019 as disclosed above.

(i FREEBAYEMNEE LN EN
HERZZE—NF+ZA=+—H
DIERENHENE - EARERTIE
MEEAE6HR%E BANBEERE
MBI RIEREDID D AIHOARE
3,248,000 7T & A K 150,398,000 7T
EEFOBEFEREEE -

il MAEEEAERBANMEREM
= RERBIR SRS ERIE 1658
% HREHEMERHENEHAEE
E# ANR1192,433,0007T * BA K i
REEAENHEERD LIRS B
25 BIH AR 21,512,000 7T kAR
218,212,000 7T °

i) WMBE—ZFE—HhF+=-_A=+—H
IFFEUEEFEA2REEFTDH
EEMBESREMs  #HCREL
XHHER_Z—NF—A—HBH
AT BERARTE -

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BA TR AR B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

2.

—_—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Contd)

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 16”) (Cont'd)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 16, the Group is not
required to make any adjustment on fransition for leases in which the
Group is a lessor but account for these leases in accordance with IFRS 16
from the date of initial application and comparative information has not
been restated.

(a)

(b)

Upon application of IFRS 16, new lease contracts entered into but
commence after the date of initial application relating to the same
underlying assets under existing lease contracts are accounted as if
the existing leases are modified as at 1 January 2019. The application
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. However, effective 1 January 2019, lease
payments relating to the revised lease term after modification are
recognised as income on straight line basis over the extended lease
term.

Before application of IFRS 16, refundable rental deposits received
were considered as rights and obligations under leases to which IAS
17 applied under other payables and rental deposits received. Based
on the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to
reflect the discounting effect at transition.

The application of IFRS 16 has had no significant impact on the amounts
reported and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2. FER#FH =] BB #R &2 8| ([

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Contd) PREFFGERE 2R ) REMBET R
(#&)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective B AR M08 18 R A RUHY T AT B RS B
s ER R EBRT A

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to AEBEAREZEATIE EMGER

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: RAEBMW TR G mEEL R E
(ERIRNE

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts!

B B B s i s 2R RN 2817 5% REAE#

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

B PR B 75 5 22 RI 58 39 (18 BT A) EBHER?

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture?
B R B 5 s & 22 BI 510 5% R B PR & w22 A WEEHEHREBERNRNEELE L HAMNEELESEAS
F 285 (BRI AN)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®

BIRR g et 2RI 5% (BT AR) BEESEARSHIERES

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material*

BB St ERIE 15 MBI S5 £RIZE 857 BEAMTEE!

CCHES)
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?*

BERM A REEFE N - BIRSFHEREI9H MEELERF
Ko BIBR Bt %5 i 5 RS 7 5% (B RTAC)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. ! R —F—HA—Hz2&RE
L ES v

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the 2 REBE O REEWRENDYE B &

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period RIE_EF-HA B zERAE
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. B EEFE AR B ER -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be defermined. 8 REEREN BB BHRBENFE
qu fA A e

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2020. 4 RZZE_ZEF-—HA—Hzx 2K
SRS L E v

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2022. 5 RZZE__F—HA—Hzz&RAE
SRS L E v

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs, a revised PR st 37 5T B R B 7 e i 2 Bl J HAB

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its ARG BER T — NFFIBELIER]

consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the R E M SIES - HARIER] 4

Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual BUX BT 75 48 2 SE R B 2 E 2R B 15 5T

periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2020. MR _ZE_FEF—-F—Hskz &M%

B E B A o

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the BR T XAt 2 %7 ET B BR B 7 R 22 B

directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all new and REASEI AR ARG EERHAEA

amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated Fir 8 5T B B B 7% sl 5 22 Al le A8 ET

financial statements in the foreseeable future. RRA R RE T HiERE W EmE

EREATE -

—

EEFEEERHARAT 52019 |49

N————



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Contd)
New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd)
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments:

° add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The election on whether to apply the optional
concentration test is available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

o clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs; and

. narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on
goods and services provided to customers and by removing the
reference to an ability to reduce costs.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business combinations
and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early
application permitted.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the
assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o specify that a liability should be classified as non-current if an
entity has the right, the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to seftle the liability within 12
months;

° clarify that if the right is conditional on the compliance with covenants,
the right exists if the conditions are met at the end of the reporting
period, even if the lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its seftlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying I1AS 32 financial
Insfruments: Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2019, the
application of the amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s liabilities.

—_—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2.  FERFE]EIPRR B # 3R &2E8| ([E

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont %Et,ﬁ)ﬁ%i&%zﬁ_ A R EAERTA

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd) E MM {E I R A28 R T BB B
B EER R EEFTAN (E)

Amendments to I1AS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material PRE& et 2RI 5% R EIFR & 5t RIS
85% (BRI ) EARYEHE

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by CHEN SN G- pN ] S0k

including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality OMESI KRR HERNERETE

judgments. In particular, the amendments: Al o MERIBEIA -

e include the concept of “obscuring” material information in which the e PERREIERARNMGSH
effect is similar fo omitting or misstating the information; BB RS ME R A EURER

e replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could e  TIREFH %E%’IEE’J%EIM [A]
influence” to “could reasonably be expected fo influence”; and EEREEHEE I RRIAZE]:

P53

e include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than simply e DBEFERAAMAIXEFERAE] M
referring to “users” which was considered too broad when deciding FEEERE]  RRERH
what information to disclose in the financial statements. WERBREMF BRI ZAER

RPN EE

The amendments also align the definition across all IFRSs and will be R 2 75 52 4% B % B 75 o o 2RI O 38

mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 BB UYHEAEER_T_T4F

January 2020. The application of the amendments is not expected to — A —BRARFE HARE S AW o

have significant impact on the financial positions and performance of the BEHEAZSEIATEHAREN

Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated B R RIEKERNTE WA

financial statements. B ENGEVBRERT N2 LR -

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “New Framework’) - N\EPBmEMSAELRE (FE

and the Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 28 ]) ) K 32 it B B 765 o o R R B S

Standards RZAEET AR

The New Framework: FTHESR

e reinfroduces the ferms stewardship and prudence; o  EHMSIABTRBRRFELEME

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new o SIAEZEBAHHEETENR
liability definition that is likely to be broader than the definition it &3 [E] °] BE LL AT AR TE 3% BB RO %1
replaces, but does not change the distinction between a liability and BETE EISNEaEEE
an equity instrument; m T AZRH®REG

e discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides o WMmELKARBREE  WH
additional guidance on how fo select a measurement basis for a i ﬂ?%% BESAREES
particular asset or liability; R EEINES]

e states that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or e HBHMBRBHXIZNSRERA
loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances other comprehensive @ BRERBATAgERAA
income will be used and only for income or expenses that arise from femksE - BEAR éf?‘ﬁzﬁ
a change in the current value of an asset or liability; and BREEEZHHPANFEL

&

e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the reporting e WmTHERNZ KRILER &

entity and combined financial statements. iﬁfﬁ CHEBERRS A ER

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

2.

—_—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “New Framework”)
and the Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards (Contd)

Consequential amendments have been made so that references in certain
IFRSs have been updated to the New Framework, whilst some IFRSs are
still referred to the previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with
earlier application permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the New
Framework on its effective date in determining the accounting policies
especially for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt
with under the accounting standards.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values atf the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics info account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements are determined on such a basis, except for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or
IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assefs.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes info account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with 1AS 12 /ncome Taxes and 1AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered info to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-
of-use assets are recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Basis of consolidation (Contd)
Business combinations (Contd)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units ("CGUs") (or group of CGUs) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash generating unit ("CGU") (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Revenue from confracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in fransferring control of goods or services.

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

BAREHBE ()
BE &K%

AEBRTRBENEER (BIEREZ
FBRIEAE T 2 A8 & dn sk AR [ H2 14 )
BREEFTPR) (Sptit) R -

JEHE T4 — AR E 5 N iR (3L
—HE K RTS) 3k — R HKEARR M
B B RE A B A kAR 7S o

5 & A NEMA — B IGMF  EHIER
Yo & 1% 0 Bl — BB B I 2 R ST A AR
RO R THERE MBS LR

o ERFHNAREEE O REERE
S A S B 40 T 4R 2 35

s ARBECZENBIZREBREFPR
AEBROFESZEE %

s AKEZBHOWKREIZHAEE
EBERARZEE MAKH
Bt TREIMES B EOS
D ZFRIA °

B REFPEFHABRE R REE
TH1) HEE B R BRI o

R MR 7R T i A R [ MR B (B RO B R 1
BRI - B S R(E 2 B A 2 B BE B 1
AL ©

BB R | BB B RAOEE
mst &

B M E

STRRERFEEHEERE L ESE
RBEERABLECSERERPND
mn RIS EEEE R A KR T AED
IR E an sk RIS RAER U A - & B
FAREE LB S S R B
FTHEHRER

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019

N————

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
provision of services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the buildings are in the course of development for provision of
services or for administrative purposes, the leasehold land component is
classified as right-of-use assets (upon application of IFRS 16) or prepaid
lease payment (before application of IFRS 16) and amortised over a
straight line basis over the lease term. During the construction period, the
amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is included as part
of costs of construction in progress. Construction in progress is carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are ready for their intended use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets, other than
construction in progress, less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each year, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Prepaid lease payment (prior to 1January 2019)

Prepaid lease payment represent prepaid lease rentals under operating
leases and are initially stated at cost. The cost of prepaid lease payment is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

A confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with
fransitions in Note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of leasehold land and buildings that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Contd)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments ("IFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Contd)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are
unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, and are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Contd)

Lease modlifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate af the effective date of the modification.

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

]62 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——

BREHBE#)
ME (&)

AEBERAEA RBHMT 2808
fife > e R B B 765 o e R B 316 57%)
(#)

HEEET

i IRATIER  AEBEHEEER
R HEFNHEHEAR:

o  ZHEBFIEBEIER—AXE
TR E EREFIRATH SR E
&

e MHEREMZNSBEENEE
BARE RN EBER LSRR
ERKBRMHEBERETH
TEERE -

RARER—BEEBHEEARNESRE
RIS ANEEBEBERETERA
M EERT IR R IREETHEN
P REEFTHENHENENTE
HERE-

AEBERAEA(CE-NF—A—
B A1)

EHERFSREERNEBAI D ER
REREZETAEAR HESER
MEHE -FARMHESBR/EE
HE -

REHENRANERE - REHER
RFEX -

AEBERHEA
HEZDBERETE

AEBEREHEAZEEDIDELSBE
RELEHE - EHERFSHBEE
HERENSNEAMD AR KO ®RE
BEABRAR ZEHODIBERBME
HE FEEMEE IS EAKEEE -

REEEMSHES KA REEEIN
BHAREERER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Leases (Contd)

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ("IFRS 15”) to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements as a sale, the Group as
a seller-lessee accounts for the transfer proceeds as bank loans within the
scope of IFRS 9.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for accounts receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at the date of initial application of IFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

Afinancial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Contd)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that is
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other income” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
("ECL") on financial assets (including accounts and other receivables, fixed
bank deposits, restricted bank balances and bank balances). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12
months ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts receivables. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually for accounts receivables
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal o
12m ECL under general approach. Unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detfrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(¢} the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

(e}  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

]68 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——

ERETHER#E)

SR TH &)

EREE (&)

EHMEERE (&)

(ii)

(iii)

EHNTERE

RAMEERREEMS @ A
B AR S SIS R E IS ) B Y
BREBATKABEREBEREA
(BREAKE) 2BERX(TEE
AEEFANTMAERR) - A
AEBMARBEEDSMN -

B LA mE, AERERR M
THEAMEIBIR - BIEAERY
= BRIEAKEEEEREE
MR IE R SEE R RAELD
=2 BlER -

HREERENEREE

ERLE-HEAZHEEMHME A
BEMNGARRRSREEED
NMEER ZeREEN/LR
SERE - cMEELBREER
ENEEERUATEHORER
2z

(@ BEITAIKERABAERX
AT IR 2

b BREL PlINELHE
HEMF

0 ERAHNERALRERE

RN B TS R B B A AR
HAEHNRE mRAERA
BTERARETEERE
FER

d  ERAEA B EE
THMMBEE =X

AV REE ZeE
ERERMISHX -

(e)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
info bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a defaul)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

] nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s accounts and
other receivables except for accounts receivables from the
PRC government's social insurance schemes and certain
credit-impaired debtors, fixed bank deposits, restricted bank
balances and bank balances are each assessed as a separate
group. Accounts receivables from the PRC government's social
insurance schemes and certain credit impaired debtors are
assessed for ECL on an individual basis);

] past-due status;

° nature, size and industry of receivables; and

o external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of accounts receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it fransfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivables is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity insfruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the group entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

Financial liabilities, including accounts and other payables, amount due
to a shareholder and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, and bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilifies

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to seftle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. In addition, the Group
assesses whether there is indication that corporate assets may be
impaired.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that corporate
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets other than goodwill (Contd)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the
recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributed to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are accrued.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions atftaching to them and that
the subsidies will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the subsidies are infended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retfirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme®) in Hong Kong
and government-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC, are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seftled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

3.

—_—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Taxation (Contd)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable fo the
lease liabilities, the Group applies I1AS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting
from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are
not subject to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Where current tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will accept
the uncertain fax freatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using
either the most likely amount or the expected value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Impairment of goodwill in relation to the acquisitions of %z &4 7x & & 1%
& A R A 7] (Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co. Ltd.) ("Anhui Hualin”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Anhui Hualin Group®) and &
BE B 2E FEE L I E 7R B B A R A 7 (Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital Co. Ltd.) (the “Kangxin Hospital’) is assessed by
comparing the recoverable amount of the CGU of Anhui Hualin Group
(“Anhui Hualin CGU”) and CGU of Kangxin Hospital (“Kangxin Hospital
CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated in relation to acquisition of
Anhui Hualin Group (“Hualin’s Goodwill’) and in relation to acquisition of
Kangxin Hospital (“Kangxin's Goodwill*), which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal, to their respective carrying value at
the end of the reporting period.
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BE2019F12A3NHILFE

—_—

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)
Estimated impairment of goodwill (Cont‘d)

The value in use of their respective CGU is determined by the directors of
the Company based on the present value of estimated future cash flows to
be generated from their respective CGU and with reference to the valuation
reports prepared by an independent professional valuer, which was
approved by the directors of the Company. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss may arise. Significant judgements and assumptions are adopted
by the management in the value in use calculation for estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs, the key assumptions including growth
rates and pre-tax discount rates. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Kangxin's Goodwill was impaired RMB60,000,000 (2018: nil) in view
of the recoverable amount of the CGU s less than its carrying amount. The
directors of the Company are of the view that no provision for impairment
has to be recognised for the Hualin’s Goodwill for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019. The situation will be closely monitored, and
adjustments will be made in future periods, should future market activity
indicate that such adjustments are required.

As at 31 December 2019, the net carrying amount of Kangxin's Goodwill is
RMB65,412,000 (2018: RMB125,412,000) (net of accumulated impairment
loss of RMB60,000,000 (2018: nil). As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amount of Hualin’s Goodwill is RMB56,601,000 (2018: RMB56,601,000)
with no impairment loss recognised. Details of their respective recoverable
amount calculation is disclosed in Note 19.

Provision for medical dispute claims

The Group may be subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in
the ordinary course of business, which primarily include medical dispute
claims brought by the former patients. Provision for medical dispute claims
is made based on the status of potential and active claims outstanding
at the end of each year, and taking into consideration the assessment
and analysis of external experts and the total claim exposure. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)
Provision for medical dispute claims (Contd)

Based on the assessment, the provision for certain medical dispute claims
existed of approximately RMB375,000 (2018: RMB1,280,000) has been
provided and included in accounts and other payables by the Group as
at 31 December 2019. The situation is closely monitored by the directors of
the Company and provision will be made as appropriate. Where the final
actual claims are greater than expected, a material dispute claims expense
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a claim takes place.

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a net realisable value that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the net realisable value of inventories of the Group becomes
lower than its carrying amount subsequently, additional allowance may
be required. The carrying amount of inventories was approximately
RMB69,768,000 (2018: RMB45,358,000) as at 31 December 2019. No
impairment loss on the above amount was recognised during the year.
Details of the Group’s inventories are set out in Note 21.

Provision of ECL for accounts receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the accounts
receivables, except for accounts receivables from the PRC government's
social insurance scheme and certain credit-impaired debtors which are
assessed for ECL individually. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various receivables that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
accounts receivables from the PRC government's social insurance scheme
and certain credit-impaired debtors are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s accounts receivables is disclosed in Note
37(biii).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE
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REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

5 W
AEERYEEHTIT -

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETTT
Recognised over fime: B s A AR -
Hospital services: BB R -
~ Inpatient healthcare services —1{E B B &R 1,135,867 919,814
— Outpatient healthcare services —FIZ BERE 609,740 552,507
— Physical examination services — AR 102,561 98,791
Rehabilitation and other healthcare services: FREREMEERE
— Rehabilitation hospital services —REERRE 53,345 32,672
— Rehabilitation centre services and other —ER1E 0 AR5 B HAth B8 AR 7
healthcare services 33,770 16,998
Hospital management services B E R RS - 2,258
Others HAh 1,665 204
1,936,948 1,623,244
Recognised at a point in time: RE R R
Sale of pharmaceutical products BEhiHE 18,577 16,043
1,955,525 1,639,287
Performance obligations for contracts with customers BPAXBITET

Provision of hospital services, provision of rehabilitation and other
healthcare services and provision of other services

The Group provides hospital services, rehabilitation and other healthcare
services and others (represents elderly healthcare services to patients).
The directors of the Company considered the performance obligation
represents provision of these services, which are satisfied when these
services are rendered. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to receive its service
income according to the relevant operating performance from the patients
and the patients simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

All hospital services, rehabilitation and other healthcare services, and
others are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE (Contd)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers (Contd)
Provision of hospital management services

The Group provides hospital management services to Kangxin Hospital, a
hospital operator in Chongging, under service arrangements for hospital
management services. The directors of the Company considered the
performance obligation represents provision of the hospital management
services, of which are satisfied when the services are rendered. Such
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the Group is entitled to receive its service income according to the relevant
operating performance from Kangxin Hospital and Kangxin Hospital
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs.

On 22 June 2018, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement to
acquired 60% equity interest in Kangxin Hospital and had then become a
non wholly-owned subsidiary to the Group. Revenue of the year ended 31
December 2018 was generated from provision of hospital management
services prior to the acquisition.

Sale of pharmaceutical products

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to customers and includes
single element as delivery of pharmaceutical products. The directors
of the Company considered no other separate performance obligation
is identified except for delivery of goods. The revenue on sale of
pharmaceutical products is recognised as sales of goods when the goods
are delivered and titles have been passed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

—_—

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
service provided.

The Group's operating segments are classified as (i) hospital services; (i)
rehabilitation and other healthcare services; (iii) hospital management
services; (iv) sale of pharmaceutical products; and (v) others. The details of
the Group’s operating segments are as follows:

Provision of hospital services includes (i)
inpatient healthcare services generally
refer to the treatment of patients who
are hospitalised overnight or for an
indeterminate period of time; (i) outpatient
healthcare services generally refer to the
treatment of patients who are hospitalised
for less than 24 hours; (iii) physical
examinations services generally refer to the
clinical examination of individuals for signs
of diseases and health advisory services.

()l Hospital services:

ARBHTEST (MEBRERKE
TE2REREE]) RENEHAUE
RPTIR AR TS EV AR EL o

REBHEED T D A0 EEHIR (i)
BRE N H b BB AR ¢ (iil) B8 B B FE AR
B BEmHE  RVEAM - AEH

REDBOFBNT

0 BRERE: RERENBERREE
T () 3 B B8 5 AR 15
—RIE /BRI
E B A BT B A R
a2 8

BRSE—RIEAEA
B > 1 24 /)N B Y R
ABRHRE ¢ (i) 58
WR— g AE
AR B R R =
JKH & R % B & R

(ii)

(iii)

Rehabilitation and
other healthcare
services:

Hospital management
services:

Provision of rehabilitation services generally
refer to the provision of special care
services to patients with permanent or
long-term physical or mental disabilities.
Other healthcare services include elderly
health care services and training services
for the disabled.

Provision of management services to
Kangxin Hospital prior to acquisition.

(ivi  Sale of pharmaceutical ~ Sale of pharmaceutical products to patients
products: of the Group’s hospitals and outside
customers.
(v} Others: Provision of elderly healthcare services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. DEHERE)
These operating segments also represent the Group’s reportable segments. ZELEDHTREARENT 25
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in DEB o RETE RN EE KA 23 2Bk
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group. BEAHEIELERARERENLEE
SEB o
Segment revenues and results o EP s K S AR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating T ARKEEDEE 5 e A S B e
segments: REBEDHT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLHF
E
Rehabilitation
and other
healthcare Sale of
Hospital services  pharmaceutical
sevices  EBEERHM products Others Total
B R BRR% EmiE it @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETr AR%ETR  ARETrn  ARET:
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Bt (o)) (HHaE b))
SEGMENT REVENUE 7 B
External revenue INER MR ER 1,848,168 87,115 18,577 1,665 1,955,525
Segment profit 7 304,688 19,549 4,164 1,018 329,419
Other income Hib A 38,292
Other expenses, gains and losses ~ EAfIY « WzE R &8 (703)
Administraive expenses THHAY (232,282)
Finance cosfs MEKK (17,241)
Profit before taxation R 25t B 7 117,485
J—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. DEBEFRIE)
Segment revenues and results (Contd) D EBU R N AR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2018 # —NFE+ZA=+—HL*F
E
Rehabilitation
and other Hospital
healthcare  management Sale of
Hospital services services  pharmaceufical
senices  RERAM 2 products Others Total
Bt RS ZERB ERR% BoiE it Feh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT AR
(note (all (note (b)) [note (c)l
(M5 (o)) (P& (o)) (PzE()
SEGMENT REVENUE GEIL 6
External revenue e 157112 49,670 2,258 16,043 204 1,639,287
Segment profi DR 339,027 15,983 512 3,365 7 358,904
Other income EfiA 46,765
Other gains and losses AliaRkEE 2199
Administrative expenses TBRAX (185,178)
Finance costs BERKR (936)
Profit before faxation BR AR A 221,754
Notes: Bt 5
{a)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment loss on goodwill of @ HBHEZZE-AFTZAZ=T+—HILF
RMB60,000,000 is allocated to the hospital services segment. f“ Fﬁ %%,sz B E1E A K ¥ 60,000,000
K Eg |§'*' H& f%f\ =T o
(o) Operation in rehabilitation and other healthcare services was acquired in April b BENEMWEERBEZEGELERN
2018. ZE-NFEMFAUE -
¢ The Group acquired 60% equity interest in Kangxin Hospital in August c) ZISE BR=ZZF-N\FENAKEREDL
2018. Segment revenue and profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 BEfroowm ki -BHE_F —)\E
represented segment results prior fo the acquisition. TZA=T—HLEFENS BRE

Koa M3E BB AT A 0 BB R4 o

—_—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Segment revenues and results (Contd)
There were no infer-segment sales during both years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of other income, other
expenses, gains and losses, administrative expenses and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Except as disclosed above, no other amounts are regularly provided to the
CODM and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

Segment assets and liabilities

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of each
segment. No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is
presented as the CODM does not regularly review such information for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment. Therefore,
only segment revenue and segment results are presented.

Geographical information and information about major customers

All revenue are generated in the PRC where almost all of the non-current
assets of the Group are also located in the PRC. The Group has a highly
diversified patient portfolio. No single patient contributed over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue during both years.

e Rk M EE
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HZE2019F12 A8 LFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

7.

—_—

186

EEE——

OTHER INCOME 7. Hfmlg A

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T

Investment income from financial assets at BAFEFABSNESHEE
FVTPL (note) KRB WA (B E) 14,508 18,344

Fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABENSREE
KA E R 8,701 6,447
Fixed operating lease income B E AL HEWA 6,235 4,728
Bank and other interest income RIT R E A F) B2 U A 2,789 7,243
Clinical trial and related income oK =4 B8 & 4B R U A 848 2,862
Government subsidies BURT # B 739 1,483
Others HAh 4,472 5,658
38,292 46,765

Note: The amount represents investment income mainly in the form of dividend
income or interest income from financial assets at FVTPL.

et ZeBEETR2UARAFEFAABRR
B B A A A BB M AR SR A

TR AR EIRA
OTHER EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HfpX  WEKEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBETF T
Allowance for credif loss EEEIERE (596) (3,503)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE  BERRENERE
equipment (246) (231)
Net exchange gain P H a5 8 2,152 5,933
Donations B (2,013) -
(703) 2,199
FINANCE COSTS 9. BMERAK
2019 2018
—ET-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBFT
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 5,387 936
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 13,343 -
18,730 936
Less: Amount capitalised in property, B RE - BE REREERE
plant and equipment okt (1,489) -
17,241 936
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BR#EAEF
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBFT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after  BRF{BT& R4S HIBR T 51 7E B 18
charging: EC
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) EE=ME (HFEN) 3,910 4132
Other staff costs: HEMETHRA:
Supervisors’ emoluments (Note 11) EEMe (fsEm) 861 448
Other salaries and allowances B fth ¥ & MORRL 527,599 426,723
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIREFIFT B 3K 26,511 20,214
Total staff costs 8 TR 558,881 451,517
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - /= MR EITE 91,200 70,259
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEENE 31,404 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TE 0 & SR IE 8 - 1,354
Research and development expenditure M 1,030 620
Short-term lease rentals in respect of BEEFORETIEEEW
rehabilitation centres and staff quarters WEREEES 813 -
Variable lease rentals in respect of hospitals HERARENATZEERS 6,078 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of hospitals ~ E2E&F & BE1E /0 E B RO AE &
and rehabilitation centres HEMRS = 31,422
Auditor's remuneration 2 BRAM BN 5 2,694 3,148
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR X NFERAR
[representing pharmaceutical products, (FERTAZER - B R
consumables and others used, included in Hpth - F AW AA)
cost of revenue) 919,463 753,776
S
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A3NHILFE

11.  DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS’ N EFE THARKREEZMHNE
EMOLUMENTS
Mr. Wang Junyang, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon, Ms. RREFEETEB L E  RIEREE -
Wang Aigin and Mr. Lv Yubo are the directors of the Company for both TEEEE TEHLLIRBERE
years. Mr. Chen Wangzhi is also the chief executive of the Group and his EREARAESR -BREREETBA
emoluments disclosed below include those for services rendered by him as SERITBUBH - T XPTH R 5 A B
the chief executive. CEERIERITHBHFTREREH
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai, Dr. Chen Keji and Mr. Chan Sing Nun are the REEFEGHRELEE RAUEE
independent non-executive directors of the Company for both years. NIRERESE R RRBUIENITES ©
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors, chief executive ENKENARARIES  THAHK
and supervisors of the Company during the year are as follows: EEOMeFEOT
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and schemes
allowances contributions
Fees ek BARIER Total
we EE HELEEN st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET AREBT T ARBT T ARBT T
For the year ended BE-ZE-NE
31 December 2019 tZRA=1t—-RLHEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Wang Junyang TEHEE 360 - - 360
Mr. Chen Wangzhi PREER T4 360 1,587 25 1,972
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon TRESE 360 - - 360
Ms. Wang Aigin TEHLL 360 120 18 498
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Lv Yubo BEREE - - - -
Independent non-executive B IEITES
directors:
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai ERB LA 240 - - 240
Dr. Chen Keji PRATEEE 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan Sing Nun PREgTE 240 - - 240
Directors’ emoluments [Note 10) ~ Z E i (F§5£10) 2,160 1,707 43 3,910
Supenvisors: BEE:
Mr. Chen Shaoming PR E - - - =
Mr. Wang Shaofeng EoREE - 210 14 224
Mr. Yue Chunyang EEBEE - 618 19 637
Supervisors’ emoluments (Note 10)  E= S #{ 4 (Ff5£10) - 828 33 861
2,160 2,535 76 4,771
-\
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS’ N EF THAZREEMS @)
EMOLUMENTS (Contad)
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and schemes
allowances confributions
Fees HFek RRAER Total
we Ak FHEIfR fst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT ARBTT ARBTT
For the year ended BE-Z-N\&
31 December 2018 TZRA=t—HLEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Wang Junyang TEGLRE 360 - - 360
Mr. Chen Wangzhi PRAE AR 52 & 360 1,809 25 2,194
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon TERERE 360 - - 360
Ms. Wang Aigin TEHrt 360 120 18 498
Non-executive director: FHITES
Mr. Lv Yubo BEREE - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFNTESE:
directors:
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B EE 240 - - 240
Dr. Chen Keji PR EEE 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan Sing Nun RE/ELE 240 - - 240
Directors’ emoluments [Note 10)  Z E i< (F§5£10) 2,160 1,929 43 4132
Supervisors: BEE:
Mr. Chen Shaoming BRABEE - - - -
Mr. Wang Shaofeng ToHBEE - 187 14 201
Mr. Wang Bingzhi ITRREE(R=ZZ—N\F
[resigned on 2 Ocfober 2018)  + A = BEHT) - - - -
Mr. Yue Chunyang EEGEE(RZZ-N\F
(appointed on 2 October 2018)  + A =B Z1E) - 242 5 247
Supervisors’ emoluments (Note 10)  E= £ B & (HT£10) - 429 19 448
2,160 2,358 62 4,580

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above are for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The non-executive director's and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above are for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive director
of the Company. No other director of the Company has waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during both years.

EXFIRBTEROME A EE
AR AL ESEHREARG M SAT -

EXFARERITESE RBILIFNTE
ENME IR EERARTESREM
F BR 75 T S A o

BERELECREER/RTRAFNT
E=mMe - "MEAFEALRER
W EENEXFABRET ML

—
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

12.

—_—

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included one
(2018: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 11
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2018:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

hEREHFMES

FA-AEELEESFHNEE SR
—H(ZE-N\F:—R)EF HFH
R IBE N EXEN - FR - 8T
MEHE(ZE-NF:mR5)RBFRAR
AEENFRSTHRABNRSHE
EMHMAFROT

2019 2018
—E-NE —TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Salaries and allowances Fre KoERL 2,904 5,550
Performance related incentive payments IR A SR 1 3K 2,891 2,672
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RRAE FET B 5R 9 23

5,804 8,245

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BENHENFATHE :

Number of employees

BEAH
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T 2 1,500,000 8 7T 2 1
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T Z 2,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T Z 4,500,000 8 7T - 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or
the five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. FiEBiFAx

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBTIT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PR EMET ((REMER])
Current tax BVHAR 18 67,795 62,936

Underlover)provision of EIT in prior years BAEFELEMSHEETR
(EBFR ) 32 (745
67,827 62,191
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBMER 72 -
67,899 62,191
Deferred tax charge (credit) (Note 28) FERIBZ (%) (H5E28) 898 (1,709)
68,797 60,482

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the statutory income tax rate of the Company and
its PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which infroduces the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2,000,000.

RIBPBECEMESIOE ([REMFHR
ED REEMEGRABRGD Ao
AIRERENEARRNMESEARD
ETEFTISIRE 525%

RZE—NFE=ZA=-+—B FHBL
FERB(CCE—HEFHS (B (B
750 I EZR) ([ZIEFEZR] 35
AFBEHMRES - ZIEFHERR-T
—N\FEZAZ+NHERBEXEEE
WA E R FIE o B IKF 15 B AR S
A EREBEEREE 2,000,000/ 7T % F
B K A&8.25% 1 iE8 48 2,000,000 7%
TR R BT R 516.5% ° TR AR5/
MAFEERNER TR 2 nfEER
16.5% S — T KT H -

It & EREEEE S 2000000
JeAh AT FE SR Bt A K2 2,000,000 78 7T A
EE A E R T A T3 0 542 8.25%
K 16.5% R HEEMEH -

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

13.

14.

—_—
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Contd)

13.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

FRGHR X (&)

FANMEHRAX AT RGEAED R
b2 E s R BRI AR N H BRI -

2019 2018
—E-NF Z—\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Profit before taxation B % AT S A 17,485 221,754
Tax at EIT rate of 25% 12 25% KR Bl R AT ST R B 29,371 55,439
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RTH0H A 2 N A B o2 28
fax purposes 19,100 2,262
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRBANHREZE
fax purposes (2,597) (1,959)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REROBRIBBENR G E 21,572 7,079
Utilisation of tax losses previously HABTRERANNIEEE
not recognised = (1,594)
Under{overlprovision of EIT in prior years BEFELEMESREEBTE
(RREEE) 32 (745)
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary FHMEDEER LS E’J iy
operating in other jurisdiction TRABE 2 R 2 (146) -
Others HAith 1,465 -
Income tax expenses FrigBiF X 68,797 60,482
DIVIDENDS 4. BRE
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMB16 cents (2018: REZEZ jl S+ H= Jr EI
RMB16 cents for the year ended 31 December 2017) per share amounting to IEEE - $ Tk RRNEE Z
approximately RMB53,363,000 (2018: RMB54,230,000) in aggregate was —N\F+=A E T—HIEFEMR ,Hﬂ
declared and paid by the Company during the year ended 31 December KREGRARKI6D (ZZE—\F:
2019. BE_Z—tF¥+-_A=+—HI

There is no dividend proposed by the directors of the Company since the

end of the reporting period.
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

BRAF

ARAEEARIGEEREABNER
TSRS

2019 2018
—2-nE T N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBEFT ARBTT

Earnings: BRI -

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of ~ R T EF R AT B AR A 7

the Company for the purpose of calculating B NG T A& T

earnings per share 74,264 167,943
2019 2018
—B-NF  —F\AF

Number of shares: R EE -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares B EFRERBFI K
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings 38 M MNAE F 19 &
per share

334,394,000 334,394,000

No diluted earnings per share has been presented since there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

HRNEMBEFERRBEETELELR
B MU EZINGREERN -

—
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. M- - WERXE
Leasehold Medical Office Motor Construction in
Buildings  improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles progress Total
BT RERE EERE WORE E EEIR h

RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RWMBOO0  RMBO0O  RWMBOOD  RMBO00  RMBO000
ARBTL ARBTL ARETR ARETRL ARETL ARETRL ARET:R

cost e
At1January 2018 R=Z-\§-A—H - 25467 384,535 95,237 11,007 66,321 811,267
Acquisitions of subsidiaries Yt EE M B2 A 205,100 5,667 75,150 10,13 1422 25,000 322,452
Additions NE - 3,748 78,607 13,059 1,348 32,942 129,704
Disposals e - - 12,445) (2,342) (55) - 14,842)
Transfer gz - 799 - - - (799) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

+-A=1+-H 205,100 264,381 525,847 116,067 13,722 123,464 1,248,581
Additions NE - 384 56,461 15,791 3,926 118,345 194,907
Disposals e - - (16,065) 1,929) (826) - (18,820)
Transfer g3 - 7,634 - - - (7,634) -
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF

+-A=t-H 205,100 272,399 566,243 129,929 16,822 234175 1,424,668
DEPRECIATION ne
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\&—A—H - 67,227 249,204 52,760 7,967 - 377,158
Provided for the year EREE 2,215 14,309 42,495 9,856 1384 - 70,259
Eiminated on disposals & 85 %1 4 - - 10,953) (2,218 (55) - (13,226)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-)\F

+-A=1+-H 2,215 81,536 280,746 60,398 9,296 - 434791
Provided for the year FREE 5,316 1532 56,515 12,678 1559 - 91,200
Eiminated on disposals (&R 48 - - (15,724) [1,845) (824) - 18,393)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF

+-A=1+-H 7,531 96,668 321,537 7,231 10,031 - 506,998
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NF

+-A=1+-H 197,569 175,731 244,706 58,698 6,791 234,175 917,670
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\%

+-A=+-8 202,885 182,845 245,101 55,669 4426 123,464 814,390
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction i BE R RE (EREIERIN)
in progress, are depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates BERAERAE T FEARITE
per annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or BF TAEAS 50 F M & P&

50 years ySRisAn

Leasehold improvement 10 — 20 years HEEE 10E20F
Medical equipment 5-10 years BEXRE 5810F
Office equipment 5-10 years PN 58104
Motor vehicles 5 years A 5%

—_—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 7. FRAEEE
Leasehold
land and
Leasehold buildings
lands HE T Total
HELH kEgF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AR®TR AR®TR

COST BN
At 1January 2019 (Note 2) RZZE-NAF—HA—B(H:T2) 153,646 192,433 346,079
Additions nE - 8,427 8,427
At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—-NAF+-_A=+—H 153,646 200,860 354,506
DEPRECIATION e
Provided for the year and at FA &E@:g L

31 December 2019 ZA=T—HE®E 3,248 28,156 31,404
CARRYING VALUES BRTHEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=ZA=+—H 150,398 172,704 323,102
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ_-_ZF—AF+=HA=+—H

LtFE

Total cash outflow for leases HER &ML AR 42,207
The Group leases leasehold lands, and leasehold land and buildings for REBEHEHELHUAREE LR
its operations. Lease contracts are entered info for fixed term of one to ten BFRAREZ - B lmfﬁﬁm E0)
years, but may have variable lease payments as described below. R BRIREE MR AT EAE R -
The Group regularly entered into shori-term leases for rehabilitation centres REBEHAREFLEEBEIRS
and staff quarters. As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of short-term FIVEHHEE RZE-—NEF+=A
leases is similar to the portfolio of shori-term leases to which the short-term —+—H8 RHEEAEEUNKE
lease expense disclosed in Note 10. VHEENEHEERINEHAE

HE o

—

EEFEEERHARAT 52019 195

N————
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Contd) 7. EREEE#®)
Variable lease payments AE#AEMNR
Leases of leasehold land and buildings are either with only fixed payments HETHEREFNHEEEEEER
or contain variable lease payments that are based on the gross floor area ENFEBEERNMERBREERRE
occupied and minimum annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease WA EHEHENRARERERANETE
term. The amounts of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable to WEREFEHENK - BHEZEZZT—N
relevant lessors for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: F+ZA=+—BLEFEEREH
TEBEBEANEE &I EHEENK
LU
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
EE AR EIE-S0E RE7EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR AR®BT
Leasehold land and buildings HAEtHRET
— without variable lease payments —E] FHE K 2,510 = 2,510
— with variable lease payments — BRI #BEENK 32,806 6,078 38,884
35,316 6,078 41,394

—_—
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The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that higher
rental costs are incurred by increasing occupation of gross floor area of
relevant properties. Variable rental expenses are expected fo continue to
represent a similar proportion of gross floor area of relevant properties
occupied in future years.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB226,178,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RMB172,704,000 as at 31 December 2019. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

As at 31 December 2019, the amounts are secured by rental deposits with
carrying values of RMB170,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 18. FENHEENR
2018
—ET-N\F
RMB’000
ARBFT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January R—A—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary I i — B A ) 155,000
Released to profit or loss during the year FRERIER (1,354)
At 31 December W+=—B=+—H 153,646
As at 31 December 2018, the amount represented prepayment of rentals R-E—NFE+-_A=+—H &%
for leasehold lands situated in the PRC. Such prepaid lease payment was B APEMNBEE T M HEETERN -
reclassified as right-of-use assets upon the initial application of IFRS 16 (Note REREABERYERELERE65R
2). % BEBENHAEXREEETNSEAR
EREEE KME2) -
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REWMEWFIEZD
2018
—E-)N\F
RMB'000
AREF T
Current portion mENE D 3,248
Non-current portion EmBEL D 150,398
153,646
J—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
RMB’000
ARBF T
COST B
At1January 2018 RZE—-—NF—H—H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 30) W B B B8~ =) A (P 3% 30) 182,013
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 RZE-N\F+ZA=+—HBRK
—E-hF+=-A=+—H 182,013
IMPAIRMENT AR
At 1January 2018 and 31 December 2018 Eﬁf T—-NF—-—H—BK
—E-N\F+ZA=1+—H -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FA E EEE%WTE%TE 60,000
At 31 December 2019 —NF+ZA=+—H 60,000
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE-NF+_A=+—H 122,013
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—8H 182,013
For the purpose of impairment assessment, the Hualin’s Goodwill of RAEFEME HEREEARE

—_—

RMB56,601,000 (2018: RMB56,601,000) has been allocated to the Anhui
Hualin CGU. In addition, the Kangxin's Goodwiill of RMB125,412,000 (2018:
RMB125,412,000) has been allocated to the Kangxin Hospital CGU. At 31
December 2019, the directors of the Company conducted reviews of the
carrying values of Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU containing
their respective goodwiill.

The recoverable amount of the Anhui Hualin CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation by reference to a valuation report
prepared by an independent professional valuer. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management
for the next five years. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using growth rate of 3.0% (2018: 3.0%). A pre-tax discount
rate of 14.6% (2018: 17.1%) is used for this CGU and derived using risk-free
rate, the market return and CGU specific factors. The key assumptions are
growth rates and pre-tax discount rates which are estimated based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market. The directors of
the Company believe that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this CGU
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU and determined
that there is no impairment of this CGU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL (Contd)

The recoverable amount of the Kangxin Hospital CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation by reference to a valuation report
prepared by an independent professional valuer. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management
for the next seven (2018: eight) years. Cash flows beyond the seven-year
(2018: eight-year) period are extrapolated using growth rate of 3.0% (2018:
3.0%). A pre-tax discount rate of 14.6% (2018: 14.6%) is used for this CGU
and derived using risk-free rate, the market return and CGU specific factors.
The key assumptions are growth rates and pre-tax discount rates which are
estimated based on past practices and expectations of future changes in
the market. After taken into consideration of the historical performance and
most recent actual performance of the Kangxin Hospital CGU, the directors
of the Company considers that the estimated future growth in revenue from
hospital services business relating to the operations of Kangxin Hospital will
be lower than previously expected. In view of the aggregate recoverable
amount of Kangxin Hospital CGU is below its aggregate carrying amount,
an impairment loss of RMB60,000,000 (2018: nil) is recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The goodwill relating to the Kangxin
Hospital CGU is approximately RMB65,412,000 as at 31 December 2019.

FIXED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2019, the fixed bank deposits carried fixed interest rates
ranging from 4.13% to 4.26% (2018: at 3.20%) per annum with original
maturity at 3 years and is classified as non-current assets since their
remaining maturity is over 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Restricted bank balances represented (i) deposits required by Dongguan
Social Insurance Bureau which are based on annual assessment on the
medical service quality of the hospitals, such deposits will be discharged
upon completion of the annual assessment; and (ii) proceeds from the
initial public offering of the Company’s H Shares remitted to PRC banks, the
usage of which is subject fo relevant approval. The restricted bank balances
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.30% to 0.35% (2018: 0.30% to
0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2019.

Bank balances carried prevailing market rates ranging from 0.00% to 1.05%
(2018: 0.00% to 0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2019.

19.

20.

ARE RS ER AR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2009F12A3NHIEFE

[GEAE D,

ELOERESEASBUMAIKRESHE
BREFHEETE ¥2E2BILHE
EHEMRENGEERSET - %t
EFERAEREEBIENARRLE (=
E-N\FN\F)PHKBEENRESR
sEAH -BBLEtE(ZZE—NF: N
F)HNRESREFHAIN(ZE—N
F3.0%) IERRER - ZREEL
BAEA14.6% (ZF—\E :14.6%)
BB AT AT IR R - 5 B A AL R R -
MEEABREREELBMNNEERE
BH FERRBERER LTATALE
RO ZELREREBEEH TS
KRB TBHEE - £EBEFED
BERBReELBEUNESRBNRA
HEBRXRREZ ARQRREERAE @
B0 BB B 2 18 5 B Y B B AR 75 E TS UK
HEEE RIS RS ER LR TEE
ERFREOBERIRSESEEM A IRE
CHABERERTAE REE—-
Z-NFE+_A=Z+—"BILFEER
BB E 1B A A R 60,000,000 7T (—
TZ-NF:\) R_ZTE—hF+_A
—t+—8B EBRELERRESELEM
BENEELN A AR 65,412,000 7T °

EHRIT R, B REIRT &
% RTEBRES

R-E—HE+-_A=+—H0 TH
WRITERNETEFEN FT413%E
426% (=F— )\F :3.20%) ' R E|Hf
AA3F MmEaRTHRITERNH
TEIE B ABREHRETI2ME A KU
MO BAEERDEE -

ZREIRITEBENRIBERESL SR
ERENBT TREHEENFEER
BERGEZTEMETE  ZEFERE
REKFE R HE R - LA E A
FRERTELRABIZBEREERAS
B E X AR ERANGHRFEHE -
RZFE—hhE+=_A=+—8H 2R
HI14R 1T 45 82 3R N F-0.30% £ 0.35% (—
T—NF  FFENT030%ZE0.35%)
B E E & FI K5 e

RITESRERTBETAHRAE R
E-RE+_A=+—8 EHEN
F0.00% E1.05% (= — )\ F : F£F|=
F0.00% = 0.35%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

21.

22.

—_—

INVENTORIES 2. BE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARET T
Pharmaceutical products B 48,898 28,476
Consumables and others FEM M EAD 20,870 16,882
69,768 45,358

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. FEWRBRF K H At FE UL FXIE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETIT
Accounts receivables e UK BR 3k 273,928 186,063
Less: Allowance for credit loss W EEEERE (9,769) (9,573)
264,159 176,490
Prepayments to suppliers TE A 44 FE P R I8 9,935 n,715
Interest receivables UL FI] B, 995 1,048
Others Hih 25,499 17,763
Total accounts and other receivables JE LG BR 3R N H A U SRR AR RE 300,588 207,016

As at 1 January 2018, the carrying amount of accounts receivables from
contracts with customer was RMB102,705,000, net of impairment allowance
of RMB7,668,000.

The individual patients of the Group would usually settle payments by cash,
credit cards or government's social insurance schemes. For credit card
payments, the banks will normally settle the amounts approximately 30
days after the transaction date. Payments by the PRC government's social
insurance schemes will normally be seftled by the local social insurance
bureau or similar government departments which are responsible for the
reimbursement of medical expenses for patients who are covered by the
government's medical insurance schemes ranged from 30 to 180 days from
the transaction date. Corporate customers will normally seftle the amounts
within 90 days after the transaction date by bank transfers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivables, net of allowance
for credit loss, presented based on the revenue recognition date at the end
of the reporting period:

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

22. FEURBRR R H A FEWRIE (48)

HERMERRKWSER BP0 -
WS (R EEBEEE NREKD
s

2019 2018

—E-hHF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARET T

Within 30 days 30 KA 128,564 15,761
3110 90 days RIETPN 67,041 21,351
9110180 days 91E 180K 41,195 25,954
18110 365 days 181 % 365X 25,821 12,847
Over 365 days HBiE 365K 1,538 577
264,159 176,490

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality of
accounts receivables and considers the debts that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality. Receivables that were neither past
due nor impaired related to the customers for whom there was no history
of default.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s accounts receivables
balance are receivables with aggregate carrying amount of RMB68,554,000
(2018: RMB39,378,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of
the past due balances, RMB27,359,000 (2018: RMB13,424,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses accounts
receivables’ aging to assess the impairment for its accounts receivables
except for accounts receivables from the PRC government's social insurance
schemes and certain credit-impaired debtors of which ECL are assessed
individually. These receivables consist of a large number of small patients
with common risk characteristics that are representative of the patients’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

Details of impairment assessment of accounts and other receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 37(bl(iii).

R B ) B R R
SEEZ 3 35 M8 H 5 R (A
EHEARFNISEEE - @K
5 12 40 M 00 B % 3 R A
BMESEM -

R-E—hh&+=-_A=+—8 HA
N5 B Y B R BR SR A4S 8 R Y JIE URBR 3Kk
AR & 58 58 A R 68,554,000 (=
T — \F: AR%39,378,0007T) *
WEBHE R - B ER S ST -
AR#27,359,000C (ZZFE—\F: A
R 13,424,000 7T) & % #1190 % =% LA
E W HEBRABED -

ERAREEERREEN—& 7 -
7R 55 [ {50 ) P A0 e A5 ) B e 2R R A
FEWBR K RRE - P BB EE
R a3 EUBR R M A TR GEEE
BEBFHEOERBEBRB ARSI -
ZERUBETHREARARERS
B/ MEBAEK - ZFERBERERHBER
ERRA IR IR RN 2 EARES -

BE-_Z-NF+_A=1T—BLHF
[ # & Y B 3% K L b 8 MK R IERE (8L Y
it & B B B =E 37(blliii) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITORLOSS  23. A FEFABENERMEE

2019 2018
—ET-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Unlisted fund (note i) ELmES (L) - 23,162

Porffolio investment fund (note (iil) wEBEES (HE) 77,150 53,980

Structured bank deposits (note (iii) AERE IR 7T 17 K (BT 5 i) 400,000 402,000

477,150 479,142

Notes: Bt 5t

) The unlisted fund represents an investment in equity securities of an unlisted (i FEMESERFE-—RIFELTA
company in the PRC and is measured at fair value. In January 2019, all of the RINERESFINE THRATERE -
unlisted fund was disposed at a consideration of RMB23,162,000. RZZE-NF—A MBEFLTES

VARG (B AR ¥ 23,162,000 7T H 6 ©

lil  The Group engaged a fund manager fo invest info a portfolio investment fund (ii) AEEBRBAENREBRE—RBEESK
in Hong Kong for investment returns. The portfolio maintained by the fund BIREANBEAHGESRIIRER
manager on behalf of the Group includes a mixture of cash and shares which o ZREHEAESKEBRALEER
are primarily listed in Hong Kong and is measured af fair value. BE BEREFZEFBLTH

MR EMEE - WA TFERE -

lil  The Group invested into structured deposits with a bank in the PRC for (i) ANEERENR -—KPEBRITHERE
investment returns. Majority of these structured deposits are with maturities of MEF R ABREUE A B3R o K045
less than six months and the principal is generally renewed when matured. MEROIHABLNAMER  KAe—

RN BB -
24. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. FEAYBRF I H AR A FIR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

Accounts payables FETBR X 262,040 263,927

Accrued expenses FERTAX 83,062 77,541

Receipts in advance (note) TE B (i EE) 61,017 73,182

Payables for acquisition of property, WY - BRE R EEN R

plant and equipment 57,397 54,460

Other tax payables H IR 3,796 3,129

Provision for medical dispute claims BREAHRERE 375 1,280

Others HA 20,847 8,320

Other payables o E S R IE 226,494 217,912

Total accounts and other payables JE S BR R B HAth JE 5 SRIB 4258 488,534 481,839

Note: Included in the balance are advances from the PRC social insurance which M MAESRBEEFEEERBRBN
represent operating cash of RMB20,667,000 (2018: RMB42,831,000) advanced HERPFBEBNARNERLESR
from the PRC government for the daily operations of the hospitals operated by WAFELERMEKEHREARE
the Group. 20,667,0007C (ZE—N\F: AR

42,831,0007C) ©
-\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

24. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd) 24, BRI EMENSRIEE)
The credit period of accounts payables is ranged from 30 fo 90 days from EREFNEEHEHZAHETN
the invoice date. F30EI0K °
The following is an aged analysis of accounts payables based on the date ERIE B B R BR R BR i D T
of receipt of goods: R

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARHBF T ARBT T
Within 30 days 30 R 99,938 66,394
31to0 90 days RIEXNFS 100,364 94,213
9110180 days 91E 180K 31,467 64,499
18110 365 days 1812 365K 10,793 20,769
Over 365 days HBiE 365K 19,478 18,052
262,040 263,927
Included in other payables is provision for medical dispute claims which the HAHEMEMNTENEEAUDZER
Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising from its #H RAEEEAEEMELNAR
ordinary course of business. The following is the movement in provision for ¥GARTREEMN A TERAULME
medical dispute claims: Mz HERE UTABERAUMHRE
BEnE
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTIT
At the beginning of the year REF 1,280 503
Provision for the year FRBE 597 1,462
Utilisation of the provision B ARE (1,502) (685)
Atthe end of the year RER 375 1,280
AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/A NON-CONTROLLING 25. BN —ERR —EHELH

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

As at 31 December 2018, the amount due to a shareholder represented
amount due to Kanghua Group. The amount was non-trade nature,
unsecured, inferest-free and repayable on demand. The amount is settled
in full in the current year.

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary represents
amount due to B = E 2 B & & B R 2 Al, the non-controlling
shareholder of Kangxin Hospital. As at 31 December 2019, the amount is
non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, except for RMB21,000,000 as payable for
acquisition of Kangxin Hospital, the remaining amount is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The amount is settled in full in the
current year.

Ay — B R IR IR SRR IE

RZF-NF+-_A=1+—80 " Ef
—BRFAREN RESBAFRIA ©
ZRERFEZHHE  EBER 28
RRBREE ZRABERERFEEH

BiE -

e — P B & BBy — & FF IR A R R
RIS e B B8 B 9 JE R BUR IR
EREEBEREBRARNEA LK
BERIIFBEZHEE  EER 2ERE

ERMEE -

R-ZE—N\FE+-A=+—0 Kk
8 B 0 B2 Bt FE AN A9 AR 5 21,000,000 7T
Gh B AERE B NBIREX
B - ZANERAFERYEE -

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019

N————

203



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

26.

—_—

BANK LOANS 26. SRITER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AR®FT
Variable rate secured bank loan EEFRITEROZEFR)
(note (al)) (P (@) 155,601 -
Fixed rate secured loan (note (b)) BEMEF (EEF ) (M5 b)) 60,652 -
216,253 -
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBF T
The carrying amounts of the loans are EFEEBERUTRBER
repayable*:
Within one year —F R 7,468 -
Within a period of more than one year but not  — & i 4 B B A
exceeding two years 7,574 -
Within a period of more than two years but not M % T 4 B iR A
exceeding five years 57,818 -
Within a period of more than five years 3 1 F B A 143,393 -
216,253 -
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B mBBEETHRR
under current liabilities —F AR HR IR (7,468) -
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities IEREBBBE T RNIE 208,785 -
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * DNEARIBE A E R ZE st &8
loan agreements. SKEHR
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26. BANK LOANS (Contad)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2019, the bank loan carry interest at the benchmark interest
rate for loan offered by the People’s Bank of China adjusted annually from
the drawn down date. The effective interest rate of the secured bank loan is
5.90% per annum. The main purpose of the loan is to finance the payment of
phase 2 medical facility development of Kangxin Hospital and to seftle certain
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.

At 31 December 2019, the bank loan was secured with the key terms and
securities pledged as follows:

(i) financial guarantees provided by the Company, Mr. Wang Junyang,
chairman of the Group, R 2T % 5K A # B R 2 &, a company
controlled by Dongguan Xingye Group Co., Ltd. ("Xingye Group”), and
Roei B E B R A Al (collectively referred as the “Guarantors”)
with respective maximum amount of RMB500,000,000; and

(ii) share pledges over the equity shares in Kangxin Hospital held by the
Company and R EEHEREFRQA).

The fixed rate secured loan represents a financing arrangement with Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co., Ltd., an independent third party.
Pursuant to the arrangement, the Group has transferred legal title of certain
medical equipment to Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co.,
Ltd. and shall then be leased back for use by the Group. Upon expiry of the
lease term, the Group has an option to repurchase these medical equipment
at a cash consideration of RMB1. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amount of these medical equipment is approximately RMB58,816,000 (2018:
nil), and is guaranteed by the Guarantors.

These legal transfer does not satisfy the requirements of IFRS 15 to be
accounted for as a sale of the machinery and accounted for as a secured
loan. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has raised
RMB66,000,000 borrowings in respect of such arrangements. The loan
carrying effective interest rate of 6.74% per annum and would be settled with
quarterly instalments until September 2027.

26. $R1T
i

(b)

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

B

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—8 " #£17
BEREARIZBESFEAENF
BARBITIRHEMEREER KE
B BHEBRITERNERFMNEA
590%  EREEZHRINELER
FoMRERBERMEORE WEBE
TR —FEH B A F N — & IEER
MR EFIE -

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—8 " #£17
BEREER  TZEAREERES
mE

(i) HARA - AEBEFIES
TECEEMERKAMBRA
A (—HBREmEXEEE
RAR(EEEE]) EHIHNA
A RBEEREEEREAR
A (FEEERAD REHE
BER SEERSEAAR
# 500,000,000 7T : &

il HEARARRZREBEERRE
BRAREA RO S R
BB ) B

EEFENERFEREBEERB LS
ZHIRSRHEEERARGYN
BEZHE e BIERTH - AEEDH
ETEELENGEIMEEEET
THRE/MAERRAR - HEBHEA
EIAEAEEFR - AHERE &
EEEENBESREARBILER
ZEBRERE R _T—AF+_A
=+—H ZEBEEXENERERAEY
A AR 58,816,000 T (ZF—)\4F ¢
) WHERAREER -

ZELAREZIFAEABRT B RS
AR ZE1557 18 F I & 1E A L &
AEREAERFERAR -BHEZ
E-AF+A=+—RBILFE"
AEBREBLHEEERARE
66,000,0007T - EXKERFFE A
674% BHE_Z_t+FNAFKE
EoHEE -

—

EREEBRERNABR AR FH 2019

N————

205



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES . HE&aE
2019
—ZT-hEF
RMB’000
ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: ERHEEAE -
Within one year —FR 26,294
Within a period of more than one year but not more  — 2= /@ & #Y B X
than two years 29,576
Within a period of more than two years but not more ® % 4 B #ifE A
than five years 116,366
Within a period of more than five years B iR T F a9 BA R A 53,942
226,178
Less: Amount due for seftlement with 12 months B RENEE ETFﬁ/TﬁAW (EDERRER:
shown under current liabilities EEHR (26,294)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown — FERENEEIB T FT/RA 128 A& 2 Hf
under non-current liabilities EEMFRIE 199,884

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (ASSETS)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and
movements thereon during the year:

28. IEERIBEEE (BE)

UTRFABRNTIBRENIEGE
(BE) RE2H:

Accelerated  Pre-operating

tax expenses
depreaohon written off Total

INEBW  MEEE SRR
e 53 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFT ARBTR AR®BTxR
At 1January 2018 RZE-N\F—H—H - - -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B B B8 A =) 26,456 (4,262) 22,194
Credit fo profit or loss (Note 13) T AEE (FEE13) (231) (1,478) (1,709)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NF+-_A=+—H 26,225 (5,740) 20,485
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (Note 13) (3t A) 0Bk B 25 (FH5E13) (193) 1,091 898
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF+-_A=+—H 26,032 (4,649) 21,383

—_—
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e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (ASSETS) (Contd) 28. EEMIBEE(EE) @)
At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately RZE-NAREFEF+R=+—8"

AEEBEBERFEARBBEEOARE
170,954,000 L (ZZE— NF : AR¥E
84,665,000 7T) + A] 4K §H K 2K S F o 5%
EHEBFRBYEERELCHRBEE -
REANREEEBAAUNR -_ZE - —4F
BT -NFREZAFEE UK
RIRH FEMTLATISEE -

At 31 December 2019, the Group has deductible temporary difference RZE-HNF+ZA=+—HB" &K
amounted to approximately RMB18,596,000 (2018: RMB22,962,000). SENTENEREZEENAAR
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the deductible #18,596,0007T (ZE — \F : AR
temporary difference of RMB18,596,000 (2018: RMB22,962,000) at the end 22,962,0007C) e ¥ E AR - E Bt A
of the reporting period. HINE = 8 A R #618,596,000 7T
—Z—\F: AR%22962,0007T)

RBELETHIEEE ©

RMB170,954,000 (2018: RMB84,665,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of such tax losses.
The unused tax losses can be carried forward up to five years ranged from
202110 2024, to offset future taxable profits.

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Number of
domestic Number of
shares Hshares  Share capital
RNEREE HREE IR 7R
‘000 ‘000 RMB'000
T 1% TR AR®TFT
At1January 2018, 31 December 2018 HR—_Z—\F—H—H -
and 31 December 2019 - \F+_A=+—8B«K
—hFE+=-_A=+—H 250,000 84,394 334,394
30. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. WENBAR
(a)  Acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group () WIELBERSE

On 1 April 2018, the Group acquired 57% equity interest in Anhui
Hualin Group by way of (i) an equity transfer of 49.71% equity interest
in Anhui Hualin from the vendor, an independent third party, at a
consideration of RMB58,660,000; and {ii) inject RMB20,000,000
capital into Anhui Hualin.

Anhui Hualin Group is engaged in the provision of rehabilitation and
other healthcare services in the PRC. On the acquisition date, Anhui
Hualin directly and indirectly (through its wholly-owned subsidiary)
holds sponsor interests in certain private non-enterprise entities in
the PRC, including one class Il rehabilitation hospital, one class |
general hospital, nine rehabilitation centres for the disabled and one
vocational training school in Anhui province, the PRC.

RZZE—NEFEFWMA—H &
EEWRBELZREREEDNST%
R ARNANARBARE
58,660,000 B & H (— & BT
B BB TRERL I
*&E’JM&EL% R i) 18] 22 U R
£ & AR 20,000,000 7T °

THEFREEEPRYERMEE
EREMEERE - RWEE
THEFRERAEZENBARE
ELEEETRZERMIECE
B ERRERD BEREH
TEHEN B REEER - —
M — B4R A B - NEEEARE
B R — BB o

—
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

30. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 30. WiE
(@)  Acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group (Contd) (a)
This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method. The

amount of Hualin's Goodwill relating to diversification from acquired
operations of RMB56,601,000 was recognised as a result of the

Bt X =] (#2)
WHEZHERER (&)
ZBEWERBEEAR - EA%

HREEREWERHZ T
ERNHEREENSRARE

acquisition. 56,601,000 7T °
Consideration comprised of: REBHE -
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cash paid during the year ended HE-ZE—)\FT+_A=1+—HILFE
31 December 2018 Eﬁfﬁi 53,660
Capital injected into Anhui Hualin during E_E - \F+_A=+—HLEFE
the year ended 31 December 2018 F'? THERTE 20,000
Deposit paid during the year ended BE-_T +&+-_A=t—BIEE
31 December 2017 =ANEEA 5,000
78,660

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB707,000 had been
excluded from the consideration transferred and had been
recognised as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
were as follows:

Uy 5% A8 8 A AN A R 707,000 7T
ENEEEREF IR - TRE
2T N\Ft+-_A=+— EHJ:
FEZIRAEaEMEEEE
FRATER metﬁzﬁﬂi

REEBREIANEEREBER
FEMT

RMB'000

ARBTF T

Property, plant and equipment ME - WER&RE 9,535

Inventories BE 1,237

Accounts and other receivables JFE Uit BR 0 e E A i UG 3R 19,205

Bank balances and cash RITEHRMES 2,568

Accounts and other payables JE AT AR 3R B EL At JE A< 5K IE (10,330)
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FE A<t — R BB 2 71— 2 S PR R

of a subsidiary IR SR IE (3,515)

18,700

—_—
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30. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a)  Acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group (Cont‘d)

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

30. WEEMTEB A B (&)
() WEZHEREERE)

Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 19): W EE R EE (FEE9)
RMB’000
AREEF T
Consideration transferred EEENKE 78,660
Add: Non-controlling interests (43% of Anhui Hualin) 0 : JE#2 PR 25 (& BHE TR B 43%)
(note) (Bt 3E) 16,641
Less: Net assets acquired B FTIEEEFE (18,700)
Less: Increase in net assets pursuant to capital B B EEEFEEN
injection (20,000)
56,601

Note: The non-controlling interests (43%) in Anhui Hualin recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to their proportionate
share of net assets acquired of RMB18,700,000 and the capital injection

of RMB20,000,000 from the consideration.

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition for the year ended 31

e RS B RN RER
IR (A3% T2 EH
RELEFRBEEFEAR
518,700,000 7T &) & AR #
20,000,000 7T 2 Lt BlET & ©

BE_T-N\F+-_A=1+—H

December 2018: IEFEREEENRRLFE:

RMB'000

ARBT T

Consideration paid in cash IR & ZRHHRE 78,660
Less: Deposit paid during the year ended W BE_T—tF+ZA=1+—H

31 December 2017 LHFEEENFT2 (5,000)

Less: Capital injection in Anhui Hualin in cash B AR mEBERTE (20,000)

Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : FTUIEIR © MRS S B W% (2,568

51,092

Included in the profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB2,510,000 attributable to Anhui Hualin Group. Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2018 included RMB49,670,000 that

was attributable to Anhui Hualin Group.

Had the acquisition of Anhui Hualin been effected at the beginning of
the prior year, the total amount of revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 would have been RMB1,650,855,000, and
the amount of profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 would

have been RMB159,475,000.

THEFEEBEMARE
2,510,000 Lt AREBEZE —F
—NF+_A=+—HIFE
BaH - -#E2—E—-N\F+=A
—t+—HULEFEWS PR
T B ' AR 49,670,000 7T ©

WM BZHERRBEFEIE
=K BEE-ZE-N\FE+ A
—T—HLEFEASENKE
wmEE e A A R ¥1,650,855,000
T mEBEZE_E—N\F+ A
—t+—HLEFENGFSELES
A AR #159,475,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

30. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)
(b)  Acquisition of Kangxin Hospital (b)

On 1 August 2018, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in Kangxin
Hospital, a PRC entity, by way of an equity transfer of 60% equity
interest in Kangxin Hospital from the vendor, an independent third
party, at a consideration of RMB270,000,000. Kangxin Hospital was
engaged in specialised cardiovascular hospital operation in the PRC.

This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method. The
amount of Kangxin’s Goodwill relating to expected synergies from
combining operations of RMB125,412,000 was recognised as a result
of the acquisition.

30. WEEKIEB A=) (&)

WL BB

RZZE—NFNA—HB ~&EE
Hﬂzﬁ%—F‘ﬁﬂhlﬁﬁfDu £ B /Y
60% I T AUREARE
270,000,000tE B/ (—& B L
F =) 15 B 60% M HE
H’]HX%LE% BOER EERNS

BB OMERERIERER -

ZEWBIRBEEAR B
EEERES FEEELENTER
BRREEBANEOEESEA
R #5125,412,000 7T, °

Consideration comprised of: REBE
RMB'000
ARBT T
Cash paid during the year ended BHE_ZE-)\F+_A=+—BLEFE
31 December 2018 [=ENEK 249,000
Consideration payable at 31 December 2018 RZBE-NF+ZA=+—HEMNRE
lincluded in amount due fo a non-controlling (BREEEMN—HENBRARMN—%
shareholder of a subsidiary) FEVERR PR R FRIH) 21,000
270,000
Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB271,000 had been Ut i A8 A X AR A R 6 271,000 7T

excluded from the consideration transferred and had been
recognised as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

—_—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)

Acquisition of Kangxin Hospital (Contd)

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

30. WEEMTEB A B (&)
b) UEEEE L BBt ()
R B EERANEEREBED

were as follows: FEMT
RMB'000
ARBTTT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 312,917
Prepaid lease payment TETHE & FRIR 155,000
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, Wiz - BERSREN TS
plant and equipment 5,834
Inventories FE 3,669
Accounts and other receivables JFE UK BR SR % L A B M SRR 68,721
Bank balances and cash WITHEB LIRS 5,600
Accounts and other payables JRE AT R 3R % EL A JE A< K (37,374)
Amount due to the Group FEAT R S B IE (104,489)
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder ofa & —f M‘T% NEK—RIEER
subsidiary e (86,704)
Bank loan (note (i) RITER (Bﬁ E0) (60,000)
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEAR (22,194)
240,980
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 19): WhEE £ EE (MEE19)
RMB'000
ARBFT
Consideration transferred BHEERE 270,000
Add: Non-controlling inferests (40% of Kangxin hnc FEEE AR R R (B0 B8 B B9 40% (B 7% (i)
Hospital) (note (iil) 96,392
Less: Net assets acquired B T EEFE (240,980)
125,412
Notes: F 3
(i) Subsequent to the acquisition, the bank loan of RMB60,000,000 was (i) WEEENE  RITERARE
settled during the year ended 31 December 2018. 60,000,000 THEZ —F — )\
F+ZA=+—HLEFEEH
o
(il The non-controlling interests (40%) in Kangxin Hospital recognised at (i) PAUEAHEROELER 2

the acquisition date were measured by reference to their proportionate

share of net assets acquired.

FEIE IR RE 25 (40%) Y 2 E H A
B EEFE LIS -

—
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

30. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)
(b)  Acquisition of Kangxin Hospital (Contd) (b)

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition for the year ended 31

30. WEEKIEB A=) (&)

WhE R L BB ()
BE-F-/\ft+=-A=+—H

December 2018: IEFENIBEEMIR S 58 -

RMB'000

AREF T

Consideration paid in cash IR & ZREHRE 270,000
Less: Consideration payable as at R E-NF+_A=+—H

31 December 2018 i ANEA (21,000)

Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : FTUESIR & NI & S E WA & (5,600)

243,400

Included in the profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 was loss of RMB29,441,000 attributable to Kangxin
Hospital. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 included
RMB16,185,000 was attributable to Kangxin Hospital.

Had the acquisition of Kangxin Hospital been effected at the
beginning of the prior year, the total amount of revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been
RMBI1,657,976,000, and the amount of profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have been RMB116,126,000.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018 had the Kangxin Hospital
been acquired at the beginning of the prior year, the directors of
the Company had calculated depreciation of property, plant and
equipment acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in the initial
accounting for the business combination rather than the carrying
amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition financial statements and
accounted for related deferred tax effect.

—_—
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B 0B B FE 1R A R #5 29,441,000
THEBT ALAEEHZ_-F
—NE+_A=+—BIEE
BmH o BEzE—E—NE+—-A
Z+—HULEFEHRZBERD
BEp E 1R A R#516,185,000 7T °

WK ERELERRBEFEVE
=R AIAEEHE—_Z—N\F
+-A=+—HIEFEMKZE
RS A ARE,657,976,000 7T
Mz - N\F+_A=1+—
BILEFEENZFHETEEAAR
116,126,000 7T, ©
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 31.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, acquisition of property, plant and
equipment was seftled by utilising deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment of RMB48,056,000 (2018: RMB54,488,000) during the
year.

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements for the use
of leased properties in PRC for period ranging from 2 to 6 years. On the
lease commencement, the Group approximately recognised RMB8,427,000
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32.

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising
from its normal business operations. Except for those disputes with
provision made as disclosed in Note 24, the management of the Group
believes that the final result of other medical disputes with total claims of
RMBS5,789,000 (2018: RMB9,807,000) as at 31 December 2019 will not have
a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group and
the amount of outflow, if any, cannot be determined with sufficient reliability
prior to judicial appraisals. Accordingly, no provision is made in this regard.

OPERATING LEASES 33.

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was committed to make the following
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

FTEFBRERS
BE-—T-NF+-A=+—AL#F

el uﬁzﬁ%%% BEREBEINERN
KB % - BB KRB e
% B AR 148,056,000 (Z T — )\
£ AR#54,488,0007T) 2 45H -

FRAEEFTVHEERDE  UE
FRERAEYZE HEBENT2E6%F -
REEMKE AEERRERESE
E;HEE BN ARYS,427,000 T °

FREE

AEBEAEESESNE —REKSE
BREANE TEBEAUD - BRHE24
FT Bt SA D ER B E - &K
EFEEEEBHEN-_ZE—LE+=A
=+—H8 H$ R AR S5789,0007T (=
T —N\F: AR#¥9,807,0007T) B9 E
mgfﬂiﬁsﬁﬂ&%%ﬂﬁT\ HARE
BB Rk G B ERERTE
miatafE (nE)BEARN AL TR
ORI SEMETE At AEEITE
LU 1 B o

2«( jFH 1=
REBERAEA

RZF-N\F+_A=+—H &%
B A GE AR IR T A R AR S E MR A
TARREEHEEMNK  HBHENT

2018
T—\F
RMB'000
ARBTT

Within one year —F R
In the second fo fifth year inclusive

Over five years AFMNE

F_FEFLF (BHREREMF)

30,949
140,168
88,453

259,570

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable by the Group for
leasehold land and buildings used for provision of hospital services. These
leases were negotiated for terms ranging from three fo ten years with fixed
monthly rental. None of the leases included any contingent rental.

REHENFTEARERARNIEHRE
BRGHEE L MEFRNNES -

KR ZEHERB=21T5T%
YEHETEAE BEHEREEWN
P
EEFEEERHARAT 52019 213
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

33. OPERATING LEASES (Conta) 33. R&EHE (#)
The Group as lessee (Contad) RNEBERAMEA (B)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments for future minimum RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H £&
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases with Kanghua Bt AR S T E AR R &
Group, the shareholder, and the non-controlling shareholder of 55~ & EEENTERE ERBRERESE
22[2 PR A A (Dongguan Renkang Hospital Co., Ltd.) ("Renkang Hospital”) MRZCEBRBRAR ((MCERER ]
amounted to RMB244,334,000 which fall due as follows: Y FEFE AR AR A AR 244,334,000 7T
HIEHAWMT :
2018
—E-N\F
RMB'000
AR®TTT
Within one year —F R 28,234
In the second fo fifth year inclusive E_FEFLF(BEEEMFE) 134,130
Over five years AFME 81,970
244,334
The Group as lessor REBEEA/LHEA
Rental income earned during the year was as follows: FARRMESWALT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETTT
Rental income Ha WA 6,235 4,728
Non-cancellable operating leases of the properties at the end of the RMEIR  ZEWERN T A BUEEL
reporting period fall due as follows: EHEWT
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREEF T ARETTT
Within one year —FR 17 56
In the second fo fifth year inclusive F_FEFNF(RIEEREME) - 17
17 73

—_—

The leases of the properties with committed tenants are negotiated for
terms ranging from one year to two years.
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34.

35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34, BAREIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBFT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant RA4RA B ERERFEETH
and equipment contracted for but not provided 1B R B EH W2 - B E
in the consolidated financial statements LEENEARRE 311,631 115,950
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 35. RIKBAIFEI
The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong REBRBEERBMBAEREENKL
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the BIEEFTE - ZATEICEERAER
Group, in funds under the control of frustees. The Group contributes 5% of BESAERE BIEATENES
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by FE - AEEHEABRESTENESR
employees. For certain employees, the maximum monthly contribution is EEBEERHEHFEAARS%N S HEIER
limited to HK$1,500 per employee. A -HRETEE BAZRIE
PR %8 /= & & 81,500 % 7T
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of state- AEBENFHEWEAREES BHRF
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. BT EENBIRE R BRKBEGE
The subsidiaries are required to confribute a certain percentage of payroll MK B - ZEM B R RIARZRIKE
costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only M8l MHEENIEXAE TED
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to LERIRIE - EREBEARKER & - K
make the specified contributions. EEEZERKBANFENOE -—FFE
EVEHIEEMHRK -
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EXREMERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include amounts
due to a shareholder/a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, bank
loans and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 25, 26 and 27 respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendation of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

AEEERHERUABRREAEEARDN
ERGESERLE RNEBELE
BRBRAFEZEAERSBREE -
AEENEBRBEEEFRETE -

AEENEARBERBES EHE
R EE25 ~ 26 %2 27 5 Bl 2 58 69 FE 1-F
—HZBR B R RN — B IEE
PR RIE - RITERMEERE (30
BIRE MRS EEY) ARARBER
ABIERED (BREALFER) -

ARREZTEHRIERARE - ER
ZBEEH—ED  ARAEETERES
BEAHEBOKRALAR - RBEAR
RAEENEBER AKESEBX
TR B~ BATHTIRIA R B AT R B 3k
BORBEEHTOEBBENRRERE -

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

—_—
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(a)

(b)

37. €I A

Categories of financial instruments () SRt AERER
2019 2018
—E-nE T \AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARBET T
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEABGNECREE 477,150 479,142
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEK AT ENSHEE 547,734 433,702
Financial liabilities ==
Amortised cost B A 695,386 531,360

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, accounts and other receivables, fixed bank deposits,
restricted bank balances, bank balances and cash, accounts and
other payables, amount due to a shareholder, amount due to non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, bank loans and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(i) Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable rate bank balances and bank loans (2018: bank
balances) due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed rate bank deposits and restricted
bank balances (2018: fixed rate bank deposit and restricted
bank balances). The Group currently does not have a policy
on hedging of interest rate risks. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposures and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Market risk (Cont'd)
Interest rate risk (Contd)

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial liabilities
is detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of benchmark interest rate for loan offered by
the People’s Bank of China arising from bank loans.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for bank loans and bank
balances (2018: bank balances). The analyses were prepared
assuming these balances outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.

50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points) increase represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. The management does not anticipate a
decrease in inferest rate for bank loans and bank balances
(2018: bank balances) in the next financial year having regard
to the trends in benchmark interest rate for loan offered by the
People’s Bank of China and global economic environment.
Accordingly, sensitivity analysis on a decrease in interest rates
is not presented.

If interest rates on bank loans and bank balances (2018: bank
balances) had been 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points)
higher and all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on profit for the year:

e SRR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12 3B ILEE

37. €M I A #®)
b) & @EkREE R REK (&)

(i)

5 AR ()
Flm s ()

AEBEAZNSRABN
R B B AP RE R B
BEoRBER - AL
BRERENEREREE
SRR HEIRTERSED
FREARBITRHNER
HEENZRE -

TXZHERED M IRE
RITERLBITER(ZF
— )\ : SRITHEER) B X
R mEE - &2 M IR
RN BEHRNZERE
BERTDNEEREEMD

S0EER (= —N\F : 50
RS Mg NEEREY
RAEREENAEEHH
o ZEEFPEARIRE
TIREMEREEN KR
BEREHREERE &
BB ABHRITERK
RiTEHR (2 —N\F R
1TH#R) WA Eg £ T EE
BEETH AITES
FIF =5k D B E D AT o

HIRTTER R RITHE R (=
T—)\F RITEHR) OF
K TS0 EER (—T—N
F S0fEIERS) MATA H A
HHRETE  WERNR
MEVEEZEWN TR

2019 2018

—E-hF AN

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTIT

Increase in profit for the year S pingprpill 20 836
S
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

37. €I A #®)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd) bl SEEREEBZEREE#E)
i) Market risk (Contd) 0 SRR E)
Foreign currency risk SN E 7 2
The Group’s exposure to currency risk attributable to monetary AEEEBREANEEE
assets and liabilities (bank balances and cash, other BNEERNINEETIE
receivables and other payables), which are denominated in WEKEERAE (BRITLE
currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to R RIR S - H A FE W KIE
which they related. The Group considers its foreign currency K E M ER RIE) 2 B R
exposure is mainly arising from the exposure of RMB against o REERR - HINE
HKS. FERFrEka ARKERE
TLHYELA o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RZE-NERZZE—N
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 31 F+ZHA=+—H &x&
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: NNET BN BB EE
REBEREEBENT
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—Z2-NF - \F ZEB-hF = —\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TR ARETET
HK$ BT 80,034 95,890 1,469 247

—_—
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The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had strengthened/weakened
against RMB by 5% (2018: 5%) with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been higher/lower
approximately RMB3,268,000 (2018: RMB3,815,000) mainly as
a result of increase/decrease in net foreign exchange gains on
translation of bank balances and cash, other receivables and
other payables denominated in non-functional currencies of
the relevant group entities.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(ii)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through portfolio
investment fund (2018: unlisted fund and portfolio investment
fund) classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

For investment in portfolio investment fund, the composition
of the underlying investment mainly consists of listed equity
securities, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group’s invested in unlisted fund for an investee
operating in manufacturing sector for long term strategic
purposes. The Group has designated a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise. The Group’s post-tax profit
for the year would increase/decrease by RMB7,715,000 (2018:
RMB2,316,000 and RMB5,398,000 respectively) if the price of
the portfolio investment fund (2018: unlisted fund and portfolio
investment fund) had been 10% higher/lower.

The management considered the remaining balance of
financial assets at FVTPL, representing structured bank
deposits, is not subjected to material price risk.

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
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37. €M I A #®)

(ii)

b) & @EkREE R REK (&)

H b B RR

AEEBRBREMAAES
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LRREHAES) HRER
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REAFEFABRENE
BMEE -
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HEEREHNEXRETESR
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e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

—_—

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Accounts receivables

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of these assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for the accounts receivables. The
Group assessed the ECL for accounts receivables from the PRC
government's social insurance schemes and certain credit-
impaired debtors individually as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

37. €I A #®)

TRIAREE QIR RBR (E)

(iii)

EERER MR EF G
JEW IR

WEF T REBITHEL
AIARE B R H|E AR E
BEHERTMEERBEAN
RAEERRBORAE
B4R & B 15 IR 0 R T R
SEEEMKREE -

ERAEEEERRE R
M — & AKBEEME
R AT EEFR -
R-ZFB-NAFR_FT-N
F+-ZRA=+—H &%
) 51 7 B BT A0 A AR R
AEIRETERBERS
AR EUWER R TR MR
EEE-

Movement in the allowance for credit loss EEFBERENE
2019 2018
—E-h#E —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
At the beginning of the year F9 9,573 7,668
Loss allowance recognised EHEREERE 596 3,503
Write-off g (400) (1,598)
At the end of the year FR 9,769 9,573

As at 31 December 2019, the allowance for credit loss
represents 12m ECL recognised on individually impaired
accounts receivables with gross aggregated balance of
RMB9,769,000 (2018: RMB9,573,000) as the management
considered these outstanding balances were uncollectible. The
Group does not hold collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)
Accounts receivables (Contd

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided
loss allowance for accounts receivables with aggregated
balance of RMB596,000 (2018: RMB3,503,000) as the
management considered those receivables are credit impaired.
As at 31 December 2019, allowance for credit loss with an
aggregate balance of RMB9,769,000 (2018: RMB9,573,000)
represents individually impaired accounts receivables as the
management considered the outstanding balances from those
receivables were uncollectible.

No loss allowance is recognised for the remaining accounts
receivables since the probability of default is not significantly
increased based on historical credit loss experience. The
management has also assessed all available forward-looking
information, and concluded that there is no significant increase
in credit risk.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Company has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures over the customers to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of each year to ensure that adequate loss allowance is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 78.6% (2018:
62.4%) and 83.7% (2018: 69.4%) of the total accounts
receivables was due from the Group’s largest accounts
receivable and the five largest accounts receivables,
respectively.

e SRR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12 3B ILEE

37. €M I A #®)
b) & @EkREE R REK (&)

(iii)

EERR MR EF G (&)

JEW IR ()
RBE-_ZFT-ALF+=
A=+t—BLFE X&
EI R e T
BE RERASAREK
F

596,0007T (=& — :
AR 3,503,0007T) @ AE
BEERBZESERERSE
FEERE-R_ZT—NF
+=—A=+—8 BRE
BERABZSEWHIEN
REEBELEHEZIKRE )
CFEBEREREARE
9,769,000 7T (=& — )\ 4 :
AFR#9,573,0007T) A& R
B FE U AR FR

—
—

HREOBERY RKAES
EEERLRMBZEEN -
ML 4 T 4 E U BR BRORE
REEBEE - TEBIT
HET BT HMRTEMEER
TEHEREERRIL &
BEWL -

REAERESERRE
ARREREEZIR—@E
EFREBEEREELH
EELR EFEEHLE
b ES 1R RR 7 FEAR R LR
#E R Y B B EIE A o 1t
Sh REBMNFFRBE
E {8 5 B 7% H AT U Bl £ 7 -
FE IR b S AT U B & BB E
RHEREE - BT E
ARBEERRAEEDW
EERRE KERD -

rEBNEERRERE
B78.6% (& — )\ 4F :
62.4% ) * FEUER Gk 42 88
#83.7% (=& — )\ :
69.4%) 7 B2k B AN & B &
KB FE U BR 3% & FLK B IR
BRFK ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

—_—

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)
Other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made for other receivables
since the directors of the Company consider the probability of
default is minimal after assessing the counter-parties’ financial
background and creditability.

Fixed bank deposits/restricted bank balances/bank balances

The credit risk on fixed bank deposits, restricted bank balances
and bank balances are limited because the majority of the
counter-parties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. The Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the management, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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TRIAREE QIR RBR (E)

(iii)

(iv)

EER R MR ERF G (&)
H 1 JE W
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

37. €M I A #®)

BEREERBERNBR AR F 2019

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd) bl SERREREBZEREE#E)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) v m“BERRE (&)
Liquidity tables B EZH

Weighted On
average  demand or Total
effecive  lessthan undiscounted
inferestrate ~ Tmonth -3 3months cashflows — Carrying
WEEY  BERY monhs  folyer  TSyears  SSyears AKEEE  amount
EBAZE  OWMER  1Z3BB EBZIE 135E  HBSE  REEE SHE
% RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000 RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000
% ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2019 RZE-1F
tZh=+-H
Accounts ond other poyables BRI R E(FUR - 3021 - - - - o219 340219
Amount duefo a non-confroling & — B 2 Al
shareholder of a subsidiary —ZERRRRE - 13885 - - - - 138854 138854
Bank loans RIER 611 574 3,840 18773 106697 174294 298578 216,253
Sub-fotal gt 479,707 3,840 13,173 106,697 174,294 il 695,386
Lease liabilfes G 575 3,249 6498 28864 16936 5628 2075 26178
482,956 10,338 42,031 283,633 230522 1,049,486 921,564
At 31 December 2018 RIB-N\F
tZh=t-A
Accounts ond other payables  FERBRF R LA IE(FUR - 318474 - - - - W4T 3T84T4
Amount duetoa shareholder BN — &R R R - 682 - - - - 682 682
Amount dueto a non-controling &S — B A
shareholder of asubsiciary ~ — & ERERZA - 152204 - - - - 152204 150,004
531,360 - - - S0 531360
S —
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(c)

—_—

Fair value

37. €I A #®)

Other than the financial assets carried at fair value as detailed in
the following table, the directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial instruments that are recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values.

(c)

AF(E

BRTRAHAZEATEINENS
MEESN ARAEZERR 2
B ARG MBRER T AR
MEMERTAMNKEERZER
FEMRE -

Fair values Fair values
as at as at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018 Valuation techniques and
RIE-NE RZZ-N\F Fairvalue ke inputs
+ZB=+-8H +ZA=+—H hierarchy ~ EERKILR
Financial assefs SRHEE HATE MRTE AEEEE FEHAYE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARETF T
Unlisted fund FEmES = 23,162 level2  Quoted price froma
%4 financial institution
RERECRKE
Portfolio investment fund REHAES 77,150 53,980 level2  Quoted price froma
SZ#  financial insfitution
RERECEME
Structured bank deposits HEERITER 400,000 402,000 level2  Quoted price from a
F-#  financial institution

There was no transfer between Level 2 and other Levels in both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 38. EERHEENEEYHER
ACTIVITIES
TRAMAEEREIHELENER
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from 28 AR MIReEH -GBE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities V& EJJE EMBERBAEMENRNRR
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or enERTAERNGERHeRER
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of PHAEABREZDRERENAE -
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Amount
duetoa Payable of
non-controlling bank loan
shareholder arrangement
of a subsidiary Amount feeand
Bl —F dueto inferest
MEBLEE  ashareholder Bank Diidend  FERERTEH lease
— BBk -4 loans payable ZHER lioilties Total
RRFE REFE BOER ERRE RHE HERRE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  AR%ETx
(Note 25 (Noe 25 (Note 26] (Note 14| (Note 27)
(Fir3E25) (fir3¥25) (fir5+26) (MzEa) (Fit3¥27)
A1 January 2018 RZZ-\E-A-H - 925 - - - - 925
Financing cash flows (note) BERSTE (W) 40,985 (243) (60,0001 (54,2301 936) - (74,424)
Non-cash changes 122
Acquisitions of subsidiaries =N 90,219 - 60,000 - - - 150,219
Inferest expenses MEFAx - - - - 936 - 936
Dividend recognised EEIRE - - - 54230 - - 54230
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-/\F
+ZA=+-H 131,204 682 - - - - 131,886
Adjustment upon application BB BBR B 3R A
of IFRS 16 [Note 2 FOFEETIE
(B 2) - - - - - 239,724 239,724
M1January 2019 (restated) ~ RZZ—-AF—-A—R
(5 131,204 682 - - - 239,724 371610
Financing cash flows (note) BERETE (W) 7650 (682) 220,690 (53,363 (3,874 (35,316 135,105
Non-cash changes FHE2E8
New leases enfered SEIVEE - - - - - - 8427 8427
Inferest expenses MEFAx - - 843 - 4544 13,343 18730
Dividend recognised ERARE - - - 53,363 - - 53,363
Recogniion on payables of bank  FERASFITERNZHE R
loan arrangement fee MERTE - - (52801 - 5280 - -
1 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+ZA=t-H 138,854 - 216,253 - 5950 226,178 587,235
Note: The cash flows from amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a Wt EN—ENB RN —% 3HI % B
subsidiary make up the net amount of proceeds and repayments in the RRENRESREERGEESR
consolidated statement of cash flows. ERIPTGRUE &R F %E
J—
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e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In addition to the amount due to a shareholder/a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary in Note 25, and transactions, balances and
commitments disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had entered into the following related party transactions:

39. BB IKEE

BREMFE25 FE IS — B AR R, — R KB 2
A H) — 2 FFHE B R SRR A MR A B
BHRIEMBMMBRENRLS B8R

KA HESN  REBERTSLIA T R

5
As at/ As at/
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
RZB-hE RIT-N\F
+=A T—H
=t-8/ =+—H
Name of related companies Relationship Nature of transactions HZEZH /BZE%A
)N EE & REME LFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARET T
Kanghua Group Shareholder Right-of-use assets
FES [P recognised
EHRRCHAERE 154,323 -
Interest expenses on lease
liabilities
MERBZNERMX 10,672 -
Lease liabilities
HEAaE 175,739 -
Lease payment
MERR 33,306 -
Rental expense
HEmx - 25,106
Dongguan Tongli Enterprise Non-controlling shareholder Right-of-use assets
Co., ltd. of Renkang Hospital recognised
REMRANEEERAT R BB IR AR R CHACAEEE 28,246 -
Interest expenses on lease
liabilities
BERBZNEFAX 2,045 -
Lease liabilities
HEaE 33,675 -
Lease payment
HERNRK 5,578 -
Rental expense
HeM% - 3,624
Dongguan Dongcheng Stone Company controlled by Purchase of construction
Supply Co., Ltd* Xingye Group (note) materials
REMRKAMERAT EE%%%T%HE’U’AE? EEREMH
T - 17

Note: Xingye Group is controlled by one of the Controlling Shareholders.

—_—
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39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd)

Save as disclosed in Note 26, in addition to the guarantee and securities
provided by the Group fo the relevant bank, the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary also provided guarantee and had pledged its equity shares
to secure some of the bank loans of the Group. At the end of the reporting
period, the key terms and securities pledged are set out as follows:

(i financial guarantee of a maximum amount of RMB500,000,000; and

(il  pledged of the equity shares of Kangxin Hospital owned by the
Company.

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel includes directors and supervisors. The
remuneration of the key management personnel during the year is
disclosed in Note 11. The remuneration of directors and supervisors
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

39.

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

B 77 15 5 ()
W B 5 26 AT R & 5b - IR Ak % M AR
BRTRENERRESIN - —RH

BARMIFFEBRBRTERERLD
BAREE  URARNEEHE D RT
ERREHER RBEHR T2 K
RAREERESFAT

il &= AR % 500,000,000 7T #) 8
BHER: R

i) EAARREREANFOBEAE o

2
B 2T E R E N
N-EXENEFNTHHTHEZES
REBEARREHSBEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 40. 772 B HY B ESHIR R 3R
2019 2018
—ET-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KERWBERF] 769,246 768,596
Fixed bank deposit TEBRIRTT 5N 33,000 -
802,246 768,596
Current assefs REEE
Other receivables E {th fE W FRI8 66,185 65,252
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABENERMEE 400,000 400,000
Amount due from a subsidiary & Uk — eI B B A B Zk IR 55,715 58,590
Restricted bank balances PR ISR 1T 4 o 1,265 16,947
Bank balances and cash RITEHRLRS 15,374 45,877
538,539 586,666
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals Hin e IE R EETE A 3,016 3,622
Amount due fo a subsidiary FEAF — P B A R 308 163,121 162,686
Amount due to a shareholder B — R RE A = 682
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder [ {f — FEI B} |8 2 B #9 — & FE & A%
of a subsidiary % R FIE = 21,000
166,137 187,990
Net current assets RBEEFE 372,402 398,676
Net assets EEFE 1,174,648 1,167,272
Capital and reserves EARR#HE
Share capital [N 334,394 334,394
Reserves 1 840,254 832,878
Total equity fEmAER 1,174,648 1,167,272

—_—

228 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
SEEEE——



40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

40. RNQ BB AR R IR (2)

Movements in reserves: e E
Share Capital Statutory Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
A EE ERGE HERE REBF wst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
(note)
(frz)
At1January 2018 w-—ZE—\F—H—H 698,214 53,394 473 63,794 815,875
Profit and total comprehensive 4 P93 ) & 2 R
income for the year 1z - - - 71,233 71,233
Dividend [hds - - - (54,230) (54,230)
Transfers E=Fe 4 - - 16,624 16,624) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-RA=+—H 698,214 53,394 17,097 64,173 832,878
Profit and fotal comprehensive 4 A1 A Je 2 E A
income for the year FEk - - - 60,739 60,739
Dividend e - - - (53,363 (53,363)
Transfers ik - - 6,074 (6,074) -
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+-R=1+—H 698,214 53,394 23,171 65,475 840,254
Note: According to the relevant laws in the PRC, the Company which was Wi RiEPEEEERE  RNERKSN

established in the PRC is required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit
after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a
non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve fund can be used to offset
the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon

liquidation.

RRABRERDEEHERRERR
1% AR 2 4210% 5 AN B] 99 IR 7
BE BRREEEREIEMELRD
50% ° IR FEA A9 K% S Al 78 4 A
BEEED 2B ANEHES
EFEEEMIA)  BRIFERL T8
A DK

—
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. fBARER
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 RARRZZE-—NFRZZZ-NF
are as follows: TZAZ=+—HANMBARERNT
(@) General information of subsidiaries ) HEBATE—KRER
Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment/ Issued and fully
operations paid share capital/
e/ registered/paid up capital Attributable equily
Name of subsidiary R/ &8 BRTRAR inferest o e Group Principal acfivifies
HEAREH AR A R/ B4EA AREERE IERHR
2019 2018 2019 218
“E-nf 20 ZE-afE 0 ZE)E
Directyy held
EERE
Dongguan Kanghua Hospital Co, Ltd.* The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Operafing of hospital
15 September 2005 paid up capital paid up captal
RIMB350,000,000 RMB350,000,000
RRREERARLA Gilei AMRES ifRES meghk
_FZ1fF BRARE ERARY
NATHA 350,000,000 350,000,007
Renkang Hospitcl The PRC Registered and Registered and 57% 57%  Operating of hosptal
23 August 2005 paid up capital paid up captal
RMB60,000,000 RMB60,000,000
CRER Gilei AR EA AMRES Beghk
ZE%nE ERARE ERARE
NA=+=H 60,000,0007 60,000,007
Kangxin Hospital The PRC Registered and Registered and 60% 60%  Operafing of hospitcl
10 June 2014 paid up capital paid up capial
RMB270,000,000 RMB270,000,000
ROER hE ARRES AMRES Begh
ZT-IF ERAR® ERARY
~ATH 270,000,0007c 270,000,000
Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Provision of hospital
Management Co,, Lid * 1February 2016 paid up capital paid up captal management services
RMBIT,000,000 RMBI1,000,000
REREBRERARLA hE AMRES AMRES REERERRH
Z55F LN EXARE
ZA-A 11,000,000 70 11,000,000 72
Kanghua Heatthcare Management (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Provision of management
Company Limited 17 May 2016 HKS10,000 HKS10,000 senices
REREER(FH)BRAT Bk LaEk Lk REEERE
ZEE 10,0007 100007
RATLA
-\
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HZE2019F12 A8 LFE

41.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 4. MEBRRER @)
(a)  General information of subsidiaries (Contd) () HWBARM—RER (&)
Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment/ Issued and fully
operafions paid share capital/
AT/ reglsiered/Pmd up capital Attrioutable equity
Name of subsidiary R/ /g8 R#E interest to the Group Principal activities
KEAREH iﬁ%&&ﬁ,ﬁﬂ Hﬁl‘/‘iﬂﬁ/;iﬁﬁli AEEELRE IEXH
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E2-nE “E-\E  ZE-AF ZE-)\%
Dongguan Kanghua Pharmaceutical The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceufical products
Co, Ltd* 14 April 2017 paid up capital paid up captal
_RUBS000000  RABS000,000 \
RRTREREERAT hE AfREAER ift REGER HEREER
Z5-tF N ARH
mATHH 5,00000070 5,000,007
Dongguan Kanghua Heatthcare ndustry -~ The PRC Registered capital Registered capital 100% 100%  Inacfive
Investment Fund Co, Lid * 15.June 2017 RIMB100,000,000/ RMB100,000,000/
paid up capital paid up captal
RMB200,000 ) ni
FRREBRERRAECERAA  wE AfERARS iMERARY TERK
“T-tf 1000000007/ 1000000007z,
~ATER BhER BHER
AR 20000070 &
Dongguan Kanghua Elderly Care Senvices  The PRC Registered capital Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
Management Ca,, Lid * 9 August 2017 RIMB10,000,000/ RMB10,000,000/
paid up capital paid up capial
RIMBS,000,000 . RIB5,000,000
RRRERZRBERARDA hE AMERARE iMERARK REBR
ZEtE 10,000,0007,/ 100000007,/
NANB BHEx Egan
ARB5000000% AR 50000007
Dongguan Kanghua Medical Rehabiffiation ~ The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Co,, Ltd.* 16 January 2018 paid up capital paid up captal
) ) RMB80,000,000 RIMB80,000,000 )
RRREREBRREARLA T dAMEEMER  IRREHER RERR
3\ ARH AEE
—RTAH 80,000,0007 80,000,000
Dongguan Kangrui Medical Investment The PRC Registered capital N/A 90% N/A - Inacfive
Co, Ltd* 20 June 2019 RIMB10,000,000/
paid up capitl
RMB500,000
RETRRBRRABRA Gilei AMEEARY R TER  EERK
“I-0E 100000007,/
~AZTH FEELS
ARH5000007
Kanghua International Hospital Co,, Lid.* ~ The PRC Registered capital N/A 100% N/A - Inacfive
2 August 2019 RIMB100,000,000/
paid up cqpiial
ni
REARERARAD hE AMERARY Bl TER  BERK
“E-0% 100,000,0007%/
NAZA g%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ

—
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41.
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 4. WBARER &)
General information of subsidiaries (Contad) () MEBARIN—MRER &)
Place and date of
incorporation/
esfobishment/ Issued and full
operafions paid share capital/
AL/ registered/paid up copitl Afrbutable equiy
Name of subsidiary B/ &8 BRIRAR inferest to the Group Principal activities
HEBARER WER A B/ BRER FEEELRE 1258
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-nE “E-\E ZB-nE ZE3)\E
Indlrectly held
HEEE
Hefei Xingu Medical Rehabiltation The PRC Registered and Registered and 57% 57%  Provision of rehabilitfion and
Investment Co,, Lid.* 22 October 2014 paid up capital paid up captal other healthcare services
RMB1,000,000 RVIB1,000,000
AEEARERBRERRDA hE ARREHER iMRESER RUEFBEREMBERE
—E-mE ARE ARE
+A=1zH 1,000,007 100000072
AnhuiHualin The PRC Registered and Registered and 57% 57%  Invesiment holding/provision
19 December 2016 paid up capital paid up captal of rehabilitation and other
RMB23,390,000 RIMB23,390,000 healthcare services
RHER T AMREHER iMRESHER RERR/RERER
ZEE ARH ARE A 2ERE
tZRThE 23,390,007 23,390,000
Dongguan Renkang Nursing Services The PRC Registered capital Registered capital 100% 100% ~ Provision of elderly healthcare
Co,, Ltd.* formerly known as Dongguan 27 September 2017 RMB5,000,000/ RIMB5,000,000/ services
Renkang Elderly Care Senvices Co,, Lid.¥ paid up capital paid up captal
RIB2,000,000 RMB2,000,000
RECFEERARRA ile AEAARE  ERETARK RUZLERRY
(ERRZCREZRHERAR) Ttk 5,000,007,/ 5,0000007t,/
AAZTEE BhER 610
AR®2000000T  AE%2,0000007T
Dongguan Kanghua Jiankanggu The PRC Registered capital Registered capital 100% 100%  Inacfive
Investment Development Co,, Lfd. 7November 2017 RIMB5,000,000/ RMBS5,000,000/
(formerly known as Dongguan Kanghua paid up capitl paid up capital
Elderly Care Services Co, Lid.* RMB200,000 nil
CRERFAREZRARLT hE AfERARE iMERARS TEXH
(IERRZRERZRBARAR)  —F3-tF 5,000,000,/ 50000007/
t-AtH ghen E4Ex
AR200,000 7T i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a)

(b)

General information of subsidiaries (Contd)

*Note: The English names are translation of the Chinese names for
identification propose.

Except for Kanghua Healthcare Management (HK) Company Limited,
all other subsidiaries are wholly-domestic owned enterprise with
limited liability established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling interests at the end of
each year:

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

4. WERRER (&)

(a)

(b)

Hi 8~ AR —ARE Y ()
P BSGRE E R -

BREREEREE (FE) ARAR
S PR B AR B A R R E
R BREERANZEDLE -

BEMNBARNFE RS EITEM
ERES -

BAEERFEBERHIEE
NGNS VR

TRETAEEFFZENERA]
REFEEFEAERERN

HE

Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal and voting rights held by Profit {loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling inferests non-controlling interests non-controlling inferests
BRI FERER S AEREFERER
MELREHRE REZEEHY RERRREELA faEF (E8) ZitEeRER
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Z3-0F  FNE ZE-AE SI0F SE-RE S
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT ARETR  ARETR
Renkang Hospital The PRC 43% 43% 5,876 4,026 30,353 28,201
CRER e
Anhui Hualin Group The PRC 43% 43% (1,885) 1079 15,681 17,720
CHERSE e
Kangxin Hospital The PRC 40% 40% (29,567) 1,776) 55,049 84,616
BLOBR e
Other non-wholly owned
subsidiary with immaterial
non-controlling interests - - 50 -
FRTERFERERME
FEEMEAT
(25,576) (6,671) 101,133 130,537

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 4. BARER &)
(b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material b) FEEBARIFERERTED

non-controlling interests (Contd) BHI B A TR EES (48)
BRHABARSFERE R
BB ERBIEHIIMT -
ANTEHBERBEREEBARF
HESEEEIENEA

Summarised financial information in respect of Renkang Hospital
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

—_—

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Current assets mENE E 65,040 64,406
Non-current assets EmENE E 151,979 132,900
Current liabilities mEE & (116,194) (131,722)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (30,236) -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN Bl A A FE{G S 40,236 37,383
Non-controlling inferests of Renkang Hospital 1= 5 &2 FE 4% A% #E 25 30,353 28,201
2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBT T
Revenue W = 238,407 224,522
Other income HAb YA 857 1,456
Total expenses B (225,600 (216,615)
Profit and total comprehensive income F AR &2 E WAL
for the year 13,664 9,363
Profit and total comprehensive income VAR & T8 FE 15 5 R0& A 2
for the year attributable to: EMALEE :
— owners of the Company S VNGIEZZS DN 7,788 5,337
- non-controlling interests — IR AE S 5,876 4,026
13,664 9,363
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEEMFFEREMN 25,895 35,314
Net cash outflow from investing activities RERHFABFReRD (6,795) (8,686
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEFHFFFRERD (24,488) (34,112)
Net cash outflow FIRE T (5,388) (7,484)

234 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019

EEE——



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3BIEFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 4. MBARER (&)
(b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material b) BHEEBARIFERERTED

BB R R 15 ()

BRAA BRI a7 B
BEREENMBEERBZE 0
T UTHBENRERREEER

non-controlling interests (Contd)

Summarised financial information in respect of Anhui Hualin Group
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.

GG EEEIE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARBTT
Current assets mMENE E 40,246 30,817
Non-current assets EMEE E 39,779 24,180
Current liabilities mENBE (29,513) (13,786)
Non-current liabiliies EmEatE (14,044) -
Equity aftributable to owners RARHEE ANELER
of the Company 20,787 23,491
Non-controlling interests of LTHERE B I RER
Anhui Hualin Group 15,681 17,720
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARBT T
Revenue W g 87,115 49,670
Other income Eg A 833 2,358
Total expenses B (92,333) (49,518)
(Loss) profit and fotal comprehensive FR(ER) "MNEEE
(expense) income for the year (AX) WAz (4,385) 2,510
(Loss) profit and fotal comprehensive AT EIERIEFEA (EE)
(expense) income for the year w2 ()
attributable to: WA 4B EE -
— owners of the Company . /NEIEZFE N (2,500) 1,431
— non-controlling interests — AR S (1,885) 1,079
(4,385) 2,510
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating KEESEFRE (ORE)
activities MA (1,587) 7,236
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEESBFRES R (2,796) (18,527)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEFBFEFRERA 7,725 16,485
Net cash inflow FEE WA 3,342 5,194
S
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 AR LFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd) 4. WBARER &)

(b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material bl HEEEAFZEBRESNIEE
non-controlling interests (Contd) BB ARINFFIE (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of Kangxin Hospital EEBEEEREEREZNREL
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The BB ERBIZHIOT -
summarised financial information below represents amounts before NTHBERREREEANRF
infragroup eliminations. MY HAT S5

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTT

Current assets MEEE 30,798 23,540
Non-current assets ERBEE 556,728 477,714
Current liabilities mENBE (215,387) (263,491)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (234,516) (26,225)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN Bl A A FE{G S 82,574 126,922
Non-controlling inferests of Kangxin Hospital 5 /0 &2 e FE %2 A% #E 25 55,049 84,616
2019 2018

—ZE-NEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBTT

Revenue W = 54,830 16,185
Other income E A 235 126
Total expenses B (128,981) (45,752)
Loss and fotal comprehensive expense FREBEEREERAZRE

for the year (73,916) (29,441)
Loss and fotal comprehensive expense AT & IBEEFANEE R

for the year attributable to: HEMZEE :

— owners of the Company S VNGIEZZS DN (44,349) (17,665)

- non-controlling interests — IR AR RE RS (29,567) (1,776)

(73,916) (29,441)

Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating KEEBAEFERS (ORh)

activities mA (49,206) 38,545
Net cash outflow from investing activities BERHMBFHRESR (102,917) (13,089)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing BEESBFREMA

activities Om ) 153,370 (20,058)
Net cash inflow FIREMA 1,247 5,398

—_—
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42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of coronavirus disease ("COVID-19") in the PRC and the
subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the PRC government as
well as the travel restrictions imposed by other countries in early 2020 has
affected almost all industries and sectors, which may lead to a slowdown
in the local and global economies. The situation has resulted in some
businesses to temporarily cease operations for a significant period of time
during the first quarter of year 2020.

Although most of the Group’s operations are located in Guangdong,
Chongqing and Anhui in the PRC, the Group’s business is largely operating
as usual, subject to a certain degree of business disruptions, including
temporary closures of our rehabilitation centres and rescheduling of
some of our non-emergency services and surgeries. The directors of the
Company is of the view the operations and financial condition of the Group
as a whole are relatively less affected by the COVID-19 situation, primarily
because the Group’s revenue from healthcare services are not directly
correlated to the economic cycles and the overall demand of the Group's
healthcare services (particularly those that are essential to health and
well-being) is likely to remain strong despite the COVID-19 situation in the
medium to long term.

The Group considers that the impact to the Group will be largely temporary
and expects patient flows and major surgeries (which have been
rescheduled) will resume gradually from May 2020 onwards. However,
given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company consider that the financial effects on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements cannot be reasonably estimated as at the date these
financial statements are authorised for issue, but such circumstances are
expected to affect the consolidated results for the first half and full year of
2020.

42.

ARE RS ER AR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2009F12A3NHIEFE

BEHRRER

PEERFARNTREE KRB
([ COVID-19 1) % A B B A BE 12 BR BLAY
Bl M-S -—SFHEMWR
REMAOIKEARR S - B8 &L TR
BTEEETE BHEALEZKRE
BRE ZERERETAEN_Z
TEFEE-TEADHHEEREIL
BB o

BERNEBRIDEBMNPEER
EEMTH BASEEMNEBKRAR
ELrREEE X —TREME
Hhl o BEEEEARRFANESED
DREBENLZHEE T IEBRZRBHFIT -
AAREERARNEENEELEL
B FS R 2 B COVID-19Z 1B &2 £ 47
Hub FERAAAEEREEER
5 H U A B A PR HA D M E R AR
if1 4 /£ B 7k & COVID-19 5 15 P i Ak
MEE  REBEBBERSG (LELYHE
BEREUEEEEMNRG) NEEEXK
TalgeRBRS -

AEERRYAEEOZEG KB
REENE YEHE-_FT-_TFA0A
EELSMEBERENBEAFM(EE
LBE) o AW - ERZFBERNBE
HE > ARREERASNEE LM%
FHMBHABH  BAGBMGEFHA
SESEAMBMRTER 2 HZE -
BzEREMEYE T _TF ¥
FREFHHRAEE -

—
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Financial Summary

HBEE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE ZE-)N\F ZE—+tF ZE-RF ZE-AF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREFTT ARETRT ARBTRT ARETT
RESULTS #i5
Revenue Wz 1,955,525 1,639,287 1,389,169 1,240,390 1,063,702
Profit before taxation B 50 B A 117,485 221,754 218,076 198,473 148,818
Income tax expenses g Rif X (68,797) (60,482) (56,937) (52,786) (29,854)
Profit and fotal comprehensive & R 7 2 2 E A
income for the year HE 48,688 161,272 161,139 145,687 118,964
Attributable to: AT ALTREIGER
Equity owners of the Company RN AIEZ A A 74,264 167,943 156,592 141,260 118,847
Non-controlling interests RS (25,576) 6,671) 4,547 4,427 n7
48,688 161,272 161,139 145,687 118,964
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-AE ZZ-N\F ZT—+tF ZT-XF ZT-HF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Total assets BEE 2,583,161 2,203,052 1,732,393 1,595,978 1,105,920
Total liabilities wmafrE (1125,603) (693,578) (442,994 (420,935) (859,172
1,457,558 1,509,474 1,289,399 1,175,043 246,748
Equity attributable to: AR A AR HE R
Equity owners of the Company ~ RN EIEZFA A 1,356,425 1,378,937 1,265,224 1,155,415 231,547
Non-controlling interests RS 101,133 130,537 24,175 19,628 15,201
1,457,558 1,509,474 1,289,399 1,175,043 246,748
Notes: MIEE

() The financial information sef out above is prepared in accordance with International i) P B AR RBR M SRS AR

Financial Reporting Standards.

il The financial summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements. (i) HMBHELTEKES M BRERE &5 -

—E-RFENUBERBRE AR =%
—ANFETAZTEANGERS -

il The financial information for the year 2015 was extracted from the accountants’  {iii)
report dated 27 October 2016.

—_—
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AGM
(A RBF AR ]

Anhui Hualin

[ R HERR ]

Anhui Hualin Group
[ BEEREE

Articles

Audit Committee

E 3

Board of Directors or Board

3-8
CG Code
(BRI
Company

EAVNCIN

Controlling Shareholders

[ 2R AR IR

Director(s)

[E%]

Definitions

B

the annual general meeting of the Company for the year 2019 to be convened and held on
23 June 2020
ARABR-F-BEXA-+ZABHRETH-E-AFRRTBEAE

Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co., Ltd. (Z2 7R B E IR E B R A 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 19 December 2016 with 57% of its equity interest being
held by Dongguan Kanghua Medical Rehabilitation Investment Company Limited (5 52 &
EFEERBEREGR DA, awholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and 43% held by
Hefei Haihua Enterprises Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (& E
HHEPEERBNEBE(ERA ), anIndependent Third Party
ZHRERBEREBRAT  RZE—R"FT_ATHNBEHFEXIHERAQF -
HEESD B —BARA2ENBAR (RxREREEEREFR AR KBV
E-H(ERECEEEARNGELE(BRER))FHHS57% & 43%

Anhui Hualin together with the entities the results of which are consolidated into its financial
statements
THERERAERNEESHITBRRT

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, modified or supplemented from
fime fo time
RAFEPFIER] - BRI B RN ARG ER

the audit committee of the Board

ExgER%E®

the board of Directors of the Company
RRAREEE

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

AR LTHRAMEE+ARAENCEEERTAD

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Lid. (& 3 E 2 & /& 3% 9 B BR 2 &), a joint stock
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC, the H Shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 3689)
BREEBEBEBRNARAF  —KBREBEHPEVEEKINROHERAR - HHRNE
BB X BT AR T (AR 5% - 3689)

has the meaning ascribed under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Kanghua Group, Xingye
Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin and Xingda Property as a group of Controlling
Shareholders of the Company, and each of them, a “Controlling Shareholder”
ERBLTRAMETHORE  RIEXBSAME BEEHLLE TERELL
FRELE FEEE RUEREE FTEHLLREEVMEER—EARRRIERERER -
miEEsan— B ERRER]

the director(s) of the Company
RAAREEHER—UES

—
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Definitions

Domestic Sharel(s)
[RERK]

GI’OUp or we or our

(AR SEE = #

Guangdong HFPC

[BRE®E

H Sharels)

[HAx ]

HK$ or Hong Kong dollars
&7t

Hong Kong
(&8

Hong Kong Listing Rules
[&B EmRA

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
[ & BB

Huaxin Building
[ZENE]

Independent Third Party(ies)

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB and are unlisted Shares which are
currently not listed or traded on any stock exchange

RABIFMETEREEARARELO TIAARERBEIARS AHERAN B -
WERBAAREERAESFR S LR HHIE LT

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRABREKE AT

the Health and Family Planning Commission of Guangdong Province (& 52 & %1 4 Mzt 2l
4 & % B &), which was reorganised from the former Guangdong Province Department
of Health (& 3 % &7 £ E2) and Guangdong Province Population and Family Planning
Commission (EEE A O FETE|4 B Z 8)in October 2013 and includes its predecessor
regulatory bodies for the purpose of this document

BEREFENAELEEFZES N2 =F+AANGEREAEEREREA
AMAEEEZEGHENYL RAXHME - BREZSNFEEKE

overseas listed foreign invested ordinary share(s) in the ordinary share capital of the
Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
AAREBERRARZREMEARELOOTTHIRIIN ETHINE ERAT - IAB TREE
NREE REBBMIMERLED

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BEETES

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEEFRIITE R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
(BEABMARGMARARES LMRAD) - BAREET - MR AR BN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMAERHAARIDR

refers to the complex (2 0, #) at Kanghua Hospital which was commissioned to provide
VIP healthcare services
REBRENE BORREHEZEBRERE

Any entity or person who is not a connected person of our Company within the meaning
ascribed thereto under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

REFELTRA - FERES EMARRETHRE  WIERNQFREEALHEM
B AL

—

240 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2019
——



Kangdi Enterprise

[FRHEE]

i

Kanghua Group

[EREESE ]

Kanghua Hospital

[ BR & B Pr |

Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

[REBREE =

Kangxin Hospital

[0 B8

Model Code
[Z2E=F A

NHFPC

ZEXCRES

Definitions

—h S e Al

Dongguan Kangdi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (R Z£ T FE 7 & % B R 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 25 July 2014 with 50% of its equity interest held by
Mr. Wang Zhengren (£ B 1) and 50% by Ms. Wang Keying (E 7] &), all of whom are
members of the Wang Family, being cousins of Mr. Wang Junyang. Kangdi Enterprise holds
a 15% equity interest in Renkang Hospital

RETRTEEERAA — KRR ZE-—OFLtA-+HAEFBEKINERET
NA EREBRTRCEERTALERTEFER0% BREHARTRRENKE K
TELGAENENRELK - BHEENCRBRRE15% AR HE

Dongguan Kanghua Investment Group Co., Ltd. (R m B E R EE B AR A 7)),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 29 March 2002 and one of the
Controlling Shareholders holding approximately 59.06% interest in the Company. It is
owned as to 97.46% by Mr. Wang Junyang and as to 2.54% by Ms. Wang Aici. Kanghua
Group, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Xingye Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang
Aigin and Xingda Property are acting together as a group of Controlling Shareholders
REMBRERESBEBRAR — KRB F=-AZ+NBEEFREKILIHER
BERRREMES —BIERRE - FHFEEARALN59.06% s EoRHEESL L
EREERELLHER 97.46% [ 2.54% -FRESE ITEHELE FTERLT EEEKH .-
BREASESE TEH LT REEYEER —EZERKRE —BITH

Dongguan Kanghua Hospital Co., Ltd. (5 %5 5 %= & Br 5 R 2 &), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 15 September 2005 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

REREBRARLAF  — KR _ZEZERFNAATERERBEKIHNEGREELRF]
BERARRANZEN B AR

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Kanghua Hospital and
Kanghua Group with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of
Kanghua Hospital
HEEREREFEEERERR S EREN T REEYIIINARR TR
FHUA+BENEERR

Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Lid. (& B BE 58 2 B 0 I &
TR E BT A IR A F)), alimited liability company established in the PRC on 10 June 2014 and a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

EEFEZBONERERAERAF  R_E—NFNATAEFEXAIHNERA
Al R HARFREEEMBE LT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules
BB LIRS TR ETETAEFTETESRHRETRD

the National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC (/1 & A R £ F1 B8 &5 &
F&tEI4£E B % 8 &), which was reorganised from the former Ministry of Health (74 3F)
and the National Population and Family Planning Commission (IS A DMzt EI4EE L 8
&) in March 2013 and includes such predecessor regulatory board for the purpose of this
document

REARRNMBGEMNFEEELZEG RS =F=ZABHMNFEEBRERA
AMAEEEZERBENY REAXHMNE - BEZSHIEERE

—
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Definitions

Nomination Committee

[fREZEg]
Non-Competition Undertaking
(R F A

08&G
B ERH

PRC or China
[ [ |

PRC Company Law

[hEREDE]

Prospectus

[ =R

Remuneration Committee

[FZE 2

Renkang Hospital

[ R &k

Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement
[(CEREREE

Reporting Period
[ ¥ HAE
RMB

[AR®]

—

The nomination committee of the Board

EFxgR®%EE

the non-competition undertaking dated 11 October 2016 provided by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company
ERBRRARR R R BZARKNBAR T —RF+ A+ B THF AR

obstetrics and gynaecology

aEH

the People’s Republic of China
hEE ARHM

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (#F # A B £ M E 2 717%), as
amended and adopted by the Standing Committee of the Twelfth National People’s
Congress on 28 December 2013 and effective on 1 March 2014, as amended,
supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time

(REARHEFMBEQARE)  AFT_EB2BRARRKRREEBZEGN _Z—=F
TZAZTN\BEFTLBRE BT —MF=A—ARBER  ETRKEF] #rk
WA E At 75 R AE 2R

the prospectus of the Company dated 27 October 2016
ARRBEHPA-ZT—AR"EF+A-TLHENERER

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFeVMEES

Dongguan Renkang Hospital Co., Ltd. (R 52{Z FE & ft B R 2 1), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 23 August 2005 with 57% of its equity interest being
held by the Company, 15% by Kangdi Enterprise, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan and 13% by
Ms. Wang Aier, respectively

RECRBERBRAR  —FKR_ETRF N \AT=ZBEFBERINEREER
HE#EDABARR BHEX  RARLKEIREERLERHE57%  15% 15%&
13%

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Renkang Hospital and Tongli
Enterprise with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of Renkang
Hospital

HERERERNEXRCRERECEREN LI EZEY IV NARA T
FHA+ANEERZ

the yeor ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+_A=+—BLFE

the lawful currency of the PRC

REEEER
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Definitions

IR

SFO the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

&% M & & p ] EREDIESNE(ESR RBERA) G RFER]  #rm s A= M7 B %)

Sharel(s) sharels) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including the Domestic Share(s) and the H Sharel(s)

[ 15 ] ARARRAFEREEARBELOOITH RS - BERNERKEHE

Shareholder(s) holder(s) of the Share(s)

[ARER ] LSESTEPN

subsidiary or subsidiaries has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong)

NNl BEEBEBEOE 622 (A RGO R TZ AN SR

substantial shareholder(s) has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Hong Kong Listing Rules

[E 2R HEEB LR TZANEE

Supervisor(s) the members of the Supervisory Committee

(B EEgXE

Supervisory Committee the Company’s supervisory committee established pursuant to the PRC Company Law

(B RRBIBREBERERARDERINERE

Tongli Enterprise Dongguan Tongli Enterprise Co., Ltd. ((RZET [A /1 B 2% A R A A1), a limited liability

company established in the PRC on 23 June 2003 with 43% of its equity interest being held
by Ms. Wang Aigin, 29% by Ms. Wang Aici, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan (5 737%) and 13%
by Ms. Wang Aier (£ & 52), respectively, all of whom are members of the Wang Family,
being aunts of Mr. Wang Junyang. Pursuant to a nominee arrangement among the Wang
Family, (il Ms. Wang Aici (an aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang) agreed to hold 16% of her equity
interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang; (il Ms. Wang Aigin (an aunt of
Mr. Wang Junyang and the spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi) agreed to hold 15% and 6.5%
of her equity interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, respectively; and (i) Ms. Wang Aigin agreed to hold 15% of her equity interest in
Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Wencheng (£ 32X )

[RINE 2% REMRANEEERAA —ZR_ZZ=F A T=ZHEFEKINERE
ERF ERESHBHEEH XL EFEXL RAAXKEIAREERLLIHA
43% ~ 29% ~ 15% % 13% - WFEHY/EIRRENRERIEGRENGHRET - R
BERREPHORBALH (1 EERZL (EBLAENER) ARERKRIESL T
HRAERRNERI6%ER : (| EE B2+ (EBRH K ENGTE RRER T ANER)
RERREBGEERREREEDRIFAERR N B 15% K 6.5% K
IFEHLTRABRRENKEEHBERRANEE15%E R

—

EEFEEERHARAT 52019 243

N————



Definitions
Wang Family
[ERXKIE]

Xingda Property

[BLEY %]

\

Xingye Group

(B &E]

%
%

The family members of the founder of the Group, the late Mr. Wang Jincheng (£ & ),
including (i) his children; (i) his siblings; (iiil the spouses of his siblings; and (iv) the children of
his siblings

REBEAPAERESHAENREXE - R EF 2 (i) ETHBEBIK (i) KT
BIPIRAACE - K (iv) B L B IREY F K

Dongguan Xingda Property Investment Co., lid. (Ree i ELZEWEREER 2 7)), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 14 December 2001 and one of the
Controlling Shareholders holding approximately 8.22% interest in the Company. It is owned
as to 50% each by Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin. Xingda Property, Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group are acting fogether as a group of Controlling Shareholders
REmEEYEREERAR —FR_ZE—F+_ATHBAEPBEKINER
NAECFHARNRTFL8.22% - HFARENRAEREESH L L XIER 50% - BEYE -
BRI GEE  TEHA T  TEBEE TEREZLT RESEREESEER—
BB —31TH

Dongguan Xingye Group Co., Ltd. (5521 8 2 &= B A IR 2 &), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 15 April 1997 and one of the Controlling Shareholders holding
approximately 7.48% interest in the Company. It is owned as to 80% by Mr. Wang Junyang
and as fo 20% by Ms. Wang Aici, respectively. Xingye Group, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Kanghua Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin and Xingda Property are acting
together as a group of Controlling Shareholders

REMEXEEERAT — KR - ANEtFNA+RBEFBEKINERAE R
BMER —BERRE  FEARANT48% R ERTEHEERTEREL L
DRIFER 80% K 20% - FELE ETEHLLE EIERLLT BREEE  WREMRLL
EEHLLTREEYRER —AEBRBRR-BTH

percentage ratio
ER a2

—
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